EDGAROnline

U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC.

FORM 10-K

(Annual Report)

Filed 03/20/15 for the Period Ending 01/03/15

Address 16941 KEEGAN AVE
CARSON, CA 90746
Telephone  (310) 735-0085
CIK 0001378950
Symbol PRTS
SIC Code 5531 - Auto and Home Supply Stores
Industry  Retail (Catalog & Mail Order)
Sector  Services
Fiscal Year 12/29

Powere 4 &y EDGAROnline

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2015, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.
Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

UNITED STATES

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The statements included in this report, other te@tements or characterizations of historical orremt fact, are forward-looking
statements within the meaning of Section 27A oBdwirities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Secsriet”) and Section 21E of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended “Exchange Act”), and we intend that such forwaraking statements be subject to the safe harbors
created thereby. Any forward-looking statementtuihed herein are based on management's beliefssaadmptions and on information
currently available to management. We have attednfmtédentify forward-looking statements by termshsas “anticipates,” “believes,”

“could,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “shou Id,” “will,” “would”, “will likely
continue,” “will likely result” and variations ofhese words or similar expressions. These forwaoltiltg statements include, but are not
limited to, statements regarding future events,fature operating and financial results, financedpectations, expected growth and strategie:s
current business indicators, capital needs, finaggblans, capital deployment, liquidity, contradiigation, product offerings, customers,
acquisitions, competition and the status of ouilitées. Forward-looking statements, no matter wéaéiney occur in this document or in other
statements attributable to the Company involve knamd unknown risks, uncertainties and other factbat may cause our actual results,
performance or achievements to be materially défiefrom any future results, performances or aactmesnts expressed or implied by
forward-looking statements. We discuss many of theseingk®ater detail under the heading “Risk Factoiig’Part I, ltem 1A of this report.
Given these uncertainties, you should not placeuarrdliance on these forward-looking statements. fwuld read this report and the
documents that we reference in this report and lideg as exhibits to the report completely andhwiite understanding that our actual future
results may be materially different from what wpemt. Also, forward-looking statements represemtmeanagement’s beliefs and assumptions
only as of the date of this report. Except as remliby law, we assume no obligation to update tfi@seard-looking statements publicly, or to
update the reasons actual results could differ miatg from those anticipated in these forward-ldmd statements, even if new information
becomes available in the future.
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

We are one of the leading online sources for autmmaftermarket parts and repair information. @igion is that vehicle repairs and
upgrades are easy and affordable. Our missionpsoigide an exceptionally easy experience for aist@mers. Our mantra is "make it easy for
our customers." Our five core values are: custdiomirs, teamwork, integrity, quality, and continudmgrovement.

We operate under two reportable operating segmeé&hiscriteria we use to identify operating segmengsprimarily the nature of the
products we sell or services we provide and thealichated operating results that are regularlyawed by our chief operating decision maker
to assess performance and make operating decidibagwo reportable operating segments we idedtdie the core auto parts busine&a
USAP”) and an online automotive repair informatsmurce of which we are a majority stockholder (“éD”).

We principally sell our products, identified ascktdeeping units (“SKUs”), to individual consumesough our network of websites and
online marketplaces. Our user-friendly websitewjol® customers with a comprehensive selection pf@pmately 1.6 million SKUs with
detailed product descriptions, attributes and piyafohs. We have developed a proprietary produebdat that maps our SKUs to product
applications based on vehicle makes, models and.yea

Our online sales channel and relationships wittpbers enable us to eliminate intermediaries intthditional auto parts supply chain
and to offer a broader selection of SKUs than ailebe offered by offline competition.

We were incorporated in Delaware in 1995 as aidigtr of aftermarket auto parts and launched st Website in 2000. We then
expanded our online operations, increasing the eumbSKUs sold through our e-commerce networkjragiddditional websites, improving
our internet marketing proficiency, and commendgates on online marketplaces. Like most e-comnetedlers, our success depends on our
ability to attract online consumers to our webséted convert them into customers in a cost-effeatianner. Historically, marketing through
search engines provided the most efficient oppdstia reach online auto part buyers. In ordembgpiiove our business, we worked towards
enhancing the process of consolidation and impléimgimmprovements to our multiple websites in ortteimprove our ranking on online
search results and pursued opportunities in thémdyponline marketplaces. Our efforts to improve Website purchase experience for our
online customers have included our efforts to:h@dp our customers find the parts they want tothugugh a customized and guided




shopping experience specific to key part namesin2ease order size across our sites through wegreecommendation engines; and (3)
provide best in-class customer service and prosiymport.

We intend to continue to implement strategies todase gross profit per transaction, increasedddios attachment rate, increase repea
purchases, and improve conversion; together allhi€h we believe will increase our customer lifedialue and allow for more efficient
marketing.

In October 2008, we acquired AutoMD.com for thegmse of developing content and a user communigdtecate consumers on
maintenance and service of their vehicles. Thepsitigides auto information, with tools for diagnagicar troubles, locating repair shops,
estimating the cost of repairs, accessing recatistachnical service bulletins, reading do-it-y@lir§'DIY”) repair guides, and getting
guestions answered in the automotive enthusiastmority forum. Currently, AutoMD estimates auto regasts to help consumers
understand the costs and time involved in selepdirs and to improve the consumer’s experienaanvgietting their vehicle serviced. In
2013, we launched our AutoMDsta-Quotesprogram. In locations where service shops weretmleo participate in the AutoMDsta-
Quotes!program, AutoMD provides real-time price estimatpscific to each participating shop. In locationghaut the AutoMDInsta-Quotes
program, AutoMD provides general estimates baseiddustry standard parts and labor data as avaifablthe consumer’s location. In
October 2014, we sold a noncontrolling interesaitoMD to outside investors and certain of our 8. shareholders. We believe this
investment will help AutoMD grow the number of répshops participating in the AutoMDista-Quotesprogram, and establish AutoMD as
the preferred resource for vehicle repair informmafior consumers.

In August 2010, we acquired all of the issued amdtanding shares of Automotive Specialty Accegsosind Parts, Inc. and its wholly-
owned subsidiary Whitney Automotive Group, Incféreed to herein as “WAG”"), at the time, the nat®leading catalog and internet direct
marketer of automotive aftermarket performancespant accessories. The acquisition of WAG allowetbiexpand of our product line, whi
increased our ability to reach customers in the Blifomobile and off-road accessories market. 204fksrithe 100 year anniversary of JC
Whitney and we are celebrating this milestone wittentennial celebration and other promotional esvémmoughout the year.

Our flagship websites are locatednatw.autopartswarehouse.cqmvww.carparts.comwww.jcwhitney.corandwww.AutoMD.conand
our corporate website is locatednatw.usautoparts.net

We report on a 52/53-week fiscal year, ending @Shturday nearest the end of December. Referém@€4.4 relate to the 53-week
fiscal year ended January 3, 2015. References18 20d 2012 relate to the 52-weeks ended Decendh@023 and December 29, 2012,
respectively.

Our Products

We offer a broad selection of aftermarket autopaite continually refine our product offering byroducing new brands and parts
categories, while discontinuing low-selling brarmasl SKUs. We broadly classify our products int@¢hcategories: body parts serving the
collision repair segment, hard parts to serve ¢éipacement/wear parts market and performance padtsiccessories.

Body Parts The body parts category is primarily comprisegaits for the exterior of an automobile. Our partthis category are
typically replacement parts for original body patat have been damaged as a result of a coll@idmrough general wear and tear. The
majority of these products are sold through oursiteb. In addition, we sell an extensive line ofrori products, including our own private-
label brand called Kool-Vue™, which are marketed aold as aftermarket replacement parts and asdegto existing parts.

Hard Parts. The hard parts category is comprised of engimkechiassis components as well as other mechanidadlaentrical parts.
These parts serve as replacement parts for existigime parts and are generally used by profedsiana do-it-yourselfers for engine and
mechanical maintenance and repair.

Performance Parts and Accessoriad/e offer performance versions of many parts sokhch of the above categories. Performance
and accessories generally consist of parts thatreghthe performance of the automobile, upgradstiegifunctionality of a specific part or
improve the physical appearance or comfort of titeraobile.

Our Sales Channels
Our sales channels include the online channel leadffline channel.

Online Sales ChannelOur online sales channel consists of our e-coroeneebsites, online marketplaces and online acuegti Our e-
commerce channel includes a network of e-commesdwsites, supported by our call-center sales agéfasalso sell our products through
online marketplaces, including third-party auctsites and shopping portals, which provide
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us with access to additional consumer segmentsmitjerity of our online sales are to individual samers. We sell online advertising and
sponsorship positions on our e-commerce websithgtdight vendor brands and offer complementandpicts and services that benefit our
customers. Advertising is targeted to specificisestof the websites and can also be targetedetifspusers based on the vehicles they
drive. Advertising partners primarily include paeindors, national automotive aftermarket brandd,aartomobile manufacturers.

Offline Sales ChannelWe sell and deliver to collision repair shopsiirour Chesapeake, Virginia warehouse facility. iée anarket oL
Kool-Vue™ products nationwide to auto parts wholeshstributors and serve consumers by operatiregaal outlet store in LaSalle, lllinois.

Our Fulfillment Operations

We fulfill customer orders using two primary metBodl) stock-and-ship, where we take physical @ejivof merchandise and store it in
one of our distribution centers until it is shipgeda customer, and (2) drop-ship, where mercharidishipped directly to customers from our
suppliers. We believe that the flexibility of fulfing orders using two different fulfillment methsdllows us to offer a broader product
selection, helps optimize product inventory andagrdes our overall business profitability.

Stock-and-Ship FulfillmentOur stock-andhip products are sourced primarily from manufaatiand other suppliers located in Asia
in the U.S. and are stored in one of our distritnutienters in Chesapeake, Virginia and LaSaliepiB. All products received into our
distribution centers are entered into our inventognagement systems, allowing us to closely momi@ntory availability. We consider a
number of factors in determining which items tockte our distribution centers, including which drts can be purchased at a meaningful
discount to domestic prices for similar items, vwhzoducts have historically sold in high volumasg which products may be out of stock
when we attempt to fulfill via drop-ship.

Drop-Ship Fulfillment We have developed relationships with several-baSed automobile parts distributors that opetete bwn
distribution centers and can deliver products diygo our customers. We internally developed gppiegary distributor selection system, Auto-
Vend™, which allows us to electronically select tiplé vendors for a given order. Auto-Vend™ wilteahpt to first direct an order to one of
our warehouses. If the product is not in stock,0Adend™ will process the order to the next appmerivendor based on customer location,
cost, contractual agreements, and service levelrkis

Suppliers

We source our private label products primarily fraranufacturers and trading companies located if\i@-Pacific region. We source
our branded products primarily from U.S.-based nfecturers and distributors. In some cases we dhyp-orders for products manufacturet
the U.S. directly from our manufacturers and disttdors. We have developed and implemented appitgtiogramming interfaces with the
majority of these drop ship suppliers that allowtaiglectronically transmit orders, check inventawgilability, and receive the shipment
tracking information which is easily passed on tio customers. We are a significant customer forynarour drop-ship vendors and have long
standing relationships and contracts with manyheéé suppliers. For the fiscal year ended Jany&915% , three of our drop-ship vendors
accounted for 12% of our total product purchases.

Marketing

Our online marketing efforts are designed to attvégitors to our websites, convert visitors intrghasing customers and encourage
repeat purchases among our existing customer Wéseise a variety of marketing methods, includiniipenmarketing methods to attract
visitors, which include paid search advertisingrsh engine optimization, affiliate programs, edmaarketing, print catalogues and inclusion
in online shopping engines. To convert visitore ipaying customers, we periodically run promotiforsdiscounted purchases. We seek to
create cross-selling opportunities by displayinmptementary and related products available for $atmughout the purchasing process. We
utilize several marketing techniques, includingy&ed e-mails about specific vehicle promotionsnéoease customer awareness of our
products.

International Operations

In April 2007, we established offshore operatianthie Philippines. Our offshore operations allowaiaccess a workforce with the
necessary technical skills at a significantly lowest than comparably experienced U.S.-based pmiofeas. Our offshore operations are
responsible for a majority of our website developtmeatalog management, and back office suppont.ofishore operations also house our
main call center. We had 704 employees in the giiilies as of January 3, 2015 . In addition to @arations in the Philippines, we have a
Canadian subsidiary; the subsidiary currently lmeperations or employees. We ship auto parts tfiraufreight forwarding partner
throughout the world. In 2014 , we shipped autdspar over 132 different countries.

3




Competition

The auto repair information and parts industryampetitive and highly fragmented, with productgrilisited through multi-tiered and
overlapping channels. We compete with both onlime @ffline retailers who offer original equipmenanufacturer (“OEM”), aftermarket and
private label parts to either the DIY or do-it-fore (“DIFM”) customer segments. Current or potenti@npetitors include the following:

. national auto parts retailers such as Advande Rarts, AutoZone, Napa Auto Parts, CarQuedRedly Automotive and Pe
Boys;

. large online marketplaces such as Amazon.com dledssen eBay

. other online retailers and auto repair informati@bsites

. local independent retailers or niche auto partsless; an

. wholesale aftermarket auto parts distributors saschKQ Corporatior

We believe the principal competitive factors in ouarket are helping customers easily find theitga@ducating consumers on the
service and maintenance of their vehicles, maiirtgia proprietary product catalog that maps indigidparts to relevant vehicle applications,
broad product selection and availability, pricepwtedgeable customer service, rapid order fulfiliinend delivery, and easy product returns.
We believe we compete favorably on the basis ofdtiactors. However, some of our competitors makatgger, may have stronger brand
recognition or may have access to greater fingnteiehnical and marketing resources or may have bperating longer than we have.

Government Regulation

We are subject to federal and state consumer gimtdaws, including laws protecting the privacyoofstomer non-public information
and the handling of customer complaints and reguiatprohibiting unfair and deceptive trade praticThe growth and demand for online
commerce has and may continue to result in moirgggtnt consumer protection laws that impose adwificompliance burdens on online
companies. These laws may cover issues such aprisaey, spyware and the tracking of consumewdigs, marketing e-mails and
communications, other advertising and promotiomatfices, money transfers, pricing, content andityuaf products and services, taxation,
electronic contracts and other communications afafration security. In addition, most states hpassed laws that prohibit or limit the us
aftermarket auto parts in collision repair work @mdequire enhanced disclosure or vehicle ownasent before using aftermarket auto par
such repair work and additional legislation of tkisd may be introduced in the future.

There is also great uncertainty over whether or bBristing laws governing issues such as propertyesship, sales and other taxes,
auctions, libel and personal privacy apply to thiednet and commercial online services. These ssswsy take years to resolve. For example,
tax authorities in a number of states, as well @srgressional advisory commission, are curreeyemwing the appropriate tax treatment of
companies engaged in online commerce, and newtatategulations may subject us to additional stéates and income taxes. New legislatior
or regulation, the application of laws and regolasi from jurisdictions whose laws do not curremibply to our business or the application of
existing laws and regulations to the Internet amahmercial online services could result in significadditional taxes or regulatory restrictions
on our business. These taxes or restrictions duaNeé an adverse effect on our cash flows and sesfitiperations. Furthermore, there is a
possibility that we may be subject to significainet or other payments for any past failures toglgmwith these requirements.

Seasonality

We believe our business is subject to seasondlfitions. We have historically experienced higlaes of body parts in winter months
when inclement weather and hazardous road conditigrically result in more automobile collisionsidine parts and performance parts and
accessories have historically experienced higHes $ia the summer months when consumers have limoeetd undertake elective projects to
maintain and enhance the performance of their apitdles and the warmer weather during that timeisdeicive for such projects. We expect
the historical seasonality trends to continue, suncth trends may have a material impact on our €isdcondition and results of operations in
subsequent periods.

Employees

As of January 3, 2015 , we had 279 employees itttited States and 704 employees in the Philippioea total of 983 employees.
None of our employees are represented by a labhonuand we have never experienced a work stopj




Available Information

Our Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reportd~orm 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and aimeats to those reports are
available free of charge on the Investor Relatgeion of our corporate website locategvatwv.usautoparts.nets soon as reasonably
practicable after such reports are electronicéyfwith, or furnished to, the Securities and Exape Commission (“SEC”). The inclusion of
our website address in this report does not inchrdacorporate by reference into this report arfgimation on our website.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

Our business is subject to a number of risks whiehdiscussed below. Other risks are presentedviisee in this report and in our oth
filings with the SEC. You should consider carefthly following risks in addition to the other infioation contained in this report and our ott
filings with the SEC, including our subsequent rpon Forms 1-Q and 8-K, and any amendments thereto, beforedoerto buy, sell or
hold our common stock. If any of the following knaw unknown risks or uncertainties actually occuith material adverse effects on us, our
business, financial condition, results of operasi@md/or liquidity could be seriously harmed. lattevent, the market price for our common
stock will likely decline and you may lose all @ripof your investment.

Risks Related To Our Business

Purchasers of aftermarket auto parts may not chodseshop online, which would prevent us from acqjnig new customers who ai
necessary to the growth of our business.

The online market for aftermarket auto parts is sveloped than the online market for many othsimtess and consumer products, anc
currently represents only a small part of the ovafsermarket auto parts market. Our successdeflend in part on our ability to attract new
customers and to convert customers who have tasttyripurchased auto parts through traditionalirated wholesale operations. Specific
factors that could discourage or prevent prospeatiistomers from purchasing from us include:

. concerns about buying auto parts without factate interaction with sales person

. the inability to physically handle, examine and game product

. delivery time associated with Internet ord

. concerns about the security of online transactiomsthe privacy of personal informati
. delayed shipments or shipments of incorrect or dgtigroduct:

. increased shipping costs;

. the inconvenience associated with returning or arging items purchased onli

If the online market for auto parts does not gaitlespread acceptance, our sales may decline artisimess and financial results may
suffer.

We depend on search engines and other online sositoeattract visitors to our websites, and if wesamable to attract these visitors and
convert those into customers in a cost-effectivermer, our business and results of operations wi# barmed.

Our success depends on our ability to attract erdonsumers to our websites and convert them urgtomers in a costffective mannet
We are significantly dependent upon search engstegping comparison sites and other online sodoresur website traffic. We are includ
in search results as a result of both paid se#@thds, where we purchase specific search teratshil result in the inclusion of our listing,
and algorithmic searches that depend upon thelsaeccontent on our sites.

Algorithmic listings cannot be purchased and indteiee determined and displayed solely by a seatrofidilas utilized by the search
engine. Search engines, shopping comparison sitestaer online sources have in the past, andcaiitinue to revise their algorithms from
time to time in an attempt to optimize their seane$ults. For example, search engines, like Googlése their algorithms regularly in an
attempt to optimize their search results. In figesrs 2012 and 2013, we were negatively impacgiatidochanges in methodology for how
Google displayed or selected our different webdtesustomer search results, which reduced owquevisitor count and adversely affected
our financial results. We believe that we have adsied the challenges due to the changes in thedudtigy for customer search results that
we experienced in 2012 and 2013; however no asseiigan be made whether we will be successful ineadthg similar changes in the future.
If other search engines, shopping comparison sitegmilar online sources on which we rely for wigbgraffic were to modify their
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general methodology for how they display or setestwebsites in a manner similar to the changeserbgdsoogle, or if Google continues to
make changes to Google’s search results rankiragitlghs that cause those algorithms to interadt witr platform in a manner that continues
to reduce our unique visitors, even fewer consummerg click through to our websites, and our finahgésults could be further adversely
affected.

Similarly, if any free search engine or shoppingparison site on which we rely begins charging feesisting or placement, or if one
or more of the search engines, shopping compasites and other online sources on which we relyptochased listings, modifies or
terminates its relationship with us, our expengegdrise, we could lose customers and trafficuowebsites could decrease.

Shifting online consumer behavior for purchasers aftermarket auto parts may shift from desktop bedge mobile device based onlii
shopping, which could impact the growth of our busiss and our financial results could suffe

Mobile device based online shopping representaemeasing part of our business. Shifting consureabior indicates that our
customers may become more inclined to shop forrafteket auto parts through their mobile devicesbNéocustomers exhibit different
behaviors than our more traditional desktop baseohemerce customers. User sophistication and téobival advances have increased
consumer expectations around the user experieno®bile devices, including speed of response, fanatity, product availability, security,
and ease of use. If we are unable to continuedptaalir mobile device shopping experience from tigskased online shopping in ways that
improve our customer’s mobile experience and irsge¢he engagement of our mobile customers our sagslecline and our business and
financial results may suffer.

During fiscal 2014, our net losses continued, an@ wxpect our net losses to continue in 20

During the fiscal year ended 2014, we incurredtdass of $6,879 compared to a net loss of $15f6Bthe fiscal year ended 2013.
Overall, we expect our net losses to continue itb2@lthough at a lower level than in 2014. If theegative trends continue, they could
severely impact our liquidity, as we may not besabl provide positive cash flows from operationsiider to meet our working capital
requirements. We may need to borrow additional $uindim our credit facility, which under certainatimstances may not be available, sell
additional assets or seek additional equity ortamithl debt financing in the future. There can beassurance that we would be able to raise
such additional financing or engage in such asdesn acceptable terms, or at all. If the netdesve have experienced continues for longer
than we expect because our strategies to retysaditive sales growth and profitability are not@essful or otherwise, and if we are not able t
raise adequate additional financing or proceeds fisset sales to continue to fund our ongoing t¢ipasy we will need to defer, reduce or
eliminate significant planned expenditures, restmecor significantly curtail our operations, filer bankruptcy or cease operations.

Our operations are restricted by our credit facylitand our ability to borrow funds under our crediacility is subject to a borrowing base.

Our credit facility includes a number of restrigtigovenants. These covenants could impair our dingrand operational flexibility and
make it difficult for us to react to market condiis and satisfy our ongoing capital needs and wipated cash requirements. Specifically,
such covenants restrict our ability and, if apfgieathe ability of our subsidiaries to, among ottings:

. incur additional deb

. make certain investments and acquisiti

. enter into certain types of transactions with effds

. use assets as security in other transac

. pay dividends on our capital stock or repurchmsgeequity interests, excluding payments of prefiéistock dividends which
are specifically permitted under our credit fagilit

. sell certain assets or merge with or into other ganies

. guarantee the debts of oth

. enter into new lines of busine

. pay or amend our subordinated d

. form any joint ventures or subsidiary investme




Restrictions in our credit facility could also pest us from satisfying certain of our contingenligdtions set forth in the documents we
entered into in connection with AutoMD’s sale ohumon stock. For example, in order for us to be &blonsummate the purchase of
2,000,000 shares of AutoMD common stock as requisetthe terms of the purchase agreement we enigi@dith AutoMD, which would be
triggered in the event that AutoMD fails to meetdified cash balances and numbers of approvedrap#ir shops submitting a quotation on
AutoMD’s website, at the time such obligation iggered we must have excess availability to boruoer the credit agreement of at least $4
million and must satisfy a minimum fixed charge emge ratio of 1.25:1.0. In addition, in order digrto be able to reimburse AutoMD for
legal expenses incurred by AutoMD in connectiorhvpitoceedings related to AutoM®intellectual property, which we could be requitedic
for a period of three years, at the time of sudmbarsement we must have excess availability todvounder the credit agreement of at least
$4 million. In the event that restrictions in ouwedit facility cause us to breach our contractudigations under the documents we entered intc
in connection with AutoMD'’s sale of common stocle would be sued for breach of contract, be lialeldmages to other investors in
AutoMD, and AutoMD'’s support from its strategic estors could be compromised, each of which cowe laamaterial adverse effect on our
financial condition and results of operations.

In addition, our credit facility is subject to arbomwing base derived from certain of our receivabieventory, property and equipment. In
the event that components of the borrowing basadwersely affected for any reason, including astv@narket conditions or downturns in
general economic conditions, we could be restrigtgtle amount of funds we can borrow under thditfacility. Furthermore, in the event
that components of the borrowing base decreaséetoebbelow the amount of loans then-outstandindeun the credit facility, we could be
required to immediately repay loans to the extémsugh shortfall. If any of these events were tousgcit could severely impact our liquidity &
capital resources, limit our ability to operate business and could have a material adverse efffiegtir financial condition and results of
operations.

Furthermore, under certain circumstances, our tfadiity may require us to satisfy a financiavemant, which could limit our ability to
react to market conditions or satisfy extraordinzapital needs and could otherwise impact our difqpiand capital resources, restrict our
financing and have a material adverse effect orresults of operations.

Our ability to comply with the covenants and ottegms of our debt obligations will depend on ouufa operating performance. If we
fail to comply with such covenants and terms, weiltdoe required to obtain waivers from our lendersaintain compliance with our debt
obligations. In the future, if we are unable toadbtany necessary waivers and our debt is accetkratmaterial adverse effect on our financial
condition and future operating performance wouklile Additionally, our indebtedness could have amant consequences, including the
following:

. we will have to dedicate a portion of our casiwfto making payments on our indebtedness, theretbycing the availability
of our cash flow to fund working capital, capitabenditures, acquisitions or other general corgopatrposes;

. certain levels of indebtedness may make us lessctitte to potential acquirers or acquisition tasg

. certain levels of indebtedness may limit our fléiipto adjust to changing business and markeditions, and make us mc

vulnerable to downturns in general economic coadgias compared to competitors that may be lessdged; and

. as described in more detail above, the docunpntdding for our indebtedness contain restricte@enants that may limit
our financing and operational flexibility.

Furthermore, our ability to satisfy our debt seevabligations will depend, among other things, uffoctuations in interest rates, our
future operating performance and ability to reficeimdebtedness when and if necessary. Thesedat#pend partly on economic, financial,
competitive and other factors beyond our controk May not be able to generate sufficient cash fsparations to meet our debt service
obligations as well as fund necessary capital ediperes and general operating expenses. In addifiare need to refinance our debt, or obr
additional debt financing or sell assets or equgtgatisfy our debt service obligations, we mayb®able to do so on commercially reasonable
terms, if at all. If this were to occur, we may déee defer, reduce or eliminate significant planeggdenditures, restructure or significantly
curtail our operations, file for bankruptcy or ceaperations.

We may not be able to successfully acquire new besses or integrate acquisitions, which could cawse business to suffer.

We may not be able to successfully complete patkstiategic acquisitions if we cannot reach agexgron acceptable terms, due to
restrictions under our credit facility or for otheasons. If we acquire a company or a divisioa cdbmpany, we may experience difficulty
integrating that company’s or division’s personaietl operations, which could negatively affect querating results. In addition:

. the key personnel of the acquired company may dauid to work for u:
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. customers of the acquired company may decide nmitchase products from

. we may experience business disruptions as a m@sinformation technology systems conversii

. we may experience additional financial and aotiog challenges and complexities in areas sudhxaglanning, treasury
management, and financial reporting;

. we may be held liable for environmental, tax orepttisks and liabilities as a result of our acgiosis, some of which we mi
not have discovered during our due diligence;

. we may intentionally assume the liabilities loé tompanies we acquire, which could materially ahversely affect our
business;

. our ongoing business may be disrupted or recesdfficient management attenti

. we may not be able to realize the cost savimggleer financial benefits or synergies we antitgpaeither in the amount or in

the time frame that we expect; and

. we may incur additional debt or issue equityusiies to pay for any future acquisition, the issoe of which could involve
the imposition of restrictive covenants or be dvetto our existing stockholders.

Integrating any newly acquired businesses’ wehsiéefinologies or services is likely to be expeasind time consuming. Our
integration activities in connection with our acgjtions have also caused a substantial diversi@munfanagemerg’attention. If we are unat
to successfully complete the integration of acqjoiss, we may not realize the anticipated synerfy@®s such acquisitions, we may take furt
impairment charges and write-downs associated suith acquisitions, and our business and resutip@fations could suffer. We may
selectively pursue additional acquisitions of basses, technologies or services in order to expandapabilities, enter new markets or
increase our market share.

If our assets become impaired we may be requiredetmord a significant charge to earning

We review our long-lived assets for impairment wiegents or changes in circumstances indicate thrgieg value may not be
recoverable. Factors that may be considered amgelsan circumstances indicating that the carryi@ige of our assets may not be recoverabl
include a decrease in future cash flows. We margheired to record a significant charge to earningsur financial statements during the
period in which any impairment of our assets i®datned, resulting in an impact on our resultspérations. For example, during the second
quarter of 2013, we recorded an impairment charggroperty and equipment of $4.8 million and omingible assets of $1.3 million. During
the fourth quarter of 2012, we recorded an impantedarge on goodwill of $18.9 million and on ingérie assets of $5.6 million.

If we are unable to manage the challenges assodatgth our international operations, the growth afur business could be limited and ol
business could suffer.

We maintain international business operations éRhilippines. This international operation inclsdievelopment and maintenance of
our websites, our main call center, and sales acHl bffice support services. We also have a Canalibsidiary, which we may in the future
operate to facilitate sales in Canada. We are stutgjea number of risks and challenges that smadiji relate to our international operations.
Our international operations may not be succedsiug are unable to meet and overcome these clyaiewhich could limit the growth of our
business and may have an adverse effect on ourdsssand operating results. These risks and cigaenclude:

. the amount and timing of operating costs andtabg@xpenditures relating to the maintenance aqéesion of our business,
operations and infrastructure;

. difficulties and costs of staffing and managfareign operations, including any impairment to celationship with
employees caused by a reduction in force;

. restrictions imposed by local labor practices avdsl on our business and operati

. exposure to different business practices and kegaldard:

. unexpected changes in regulatory requirem

. the imposition of government controls and resiitsi

. political, social and economic instability and tiek of war, terrorist activities or other interiwatal incidents

. the failure of telecommunications and connectiintiyastructure

. natural disasters and public health emerger




. potentially adverse tax consequen
. the failure of local laws to provide a sufficierdggiee of protection against infringement of oueliectual property; ar

. fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates rtative weakness in the U.S. dol
We are dependent upon relationships with supplierdraiwan, China and the United States for the vamgjority of our products.

We acquire substantially all of our products froramafacturers and distributors located in Taiwann@land the United States. Our top
ten suppliers represented 44% of our total progunthases during the fifty-three weeks ended Jgrja2015 . We do not have any long-term
contracts or exclusive agreements with our forsigppliers that would ensure our ability to acqtivetypes and quantities of products we
desire at acceptable prices and in a timely manneddition, our ability to acquire products framar suppliers in amounts and on terms
acceptable to us is dependent upon a number afréatttat could affect our suppliers and which agdnd our control. For example, financial
or operational difficulties that some of our suppdimay face could result in an increase in theafahe products we purchase from them. In
addition, the increasing consolidation among aatdspsuppliers may disrupt or end our relationstith some suppliers, result in product
shortages and/or lead to less competition and ecpuently, higher prices. Furthermore, as part ofroutine business, suppliers extend crec
us in connection with our purchase of their produltt the future, our suppliers may limit the amioofncredit they are willing to extend to us
connection with our purchase of their productany. If this were to occur, it could impair our lihito acquire the types and quantities of
products that we desire from the applicable suppl@ acceptable terms, severely impact our litpid capital resources, limit our ability to
operate our business and could have a materiatsaleffect on our financial condition and resuftsgerations.

In addition, because many of our suppliers areideitsf the United States, additional factors cdntdrrupt our relationships or affect ¢
ability to acquire the necessary products on aatdpterms, including:

. political, social and economic instability and tiek of war or other international incidents in Agir abroac
. fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates tiay increase our cost of produ

. tariffs and protectionist laws and business prastitiat favor local business

. difficulties in complying with import and exporties, regulatory requirements and restricti

. natural disasters and public health emergencial

. import shipping delays resulting from foreign omustic labor shortages, slow downs, or stopj

Additionally, if we do not maintain our relationglsiwith our existing suppliers or develop relatidps with new suppliers on acceptable
commercial terms, we may not be able to continugffer a broad selection of merchandise at conmipetrices and, as a result, we could lose
customers and our sales could decline.

We are dependent upon third parties for distributi@nd fulfilment operations with respect to many our products.

For a number of the products that we sell, we autsothe distribution and fulfillment operation aax@ dependent on our distributors to
manage inventory, process orders and distributeetpooducts to our customers in a timely mannarthefifty-three weeks ended January 3,
2015, our product purchases from three drop-diypleers represented 12% of our
total product purchases. If we do not maintaineisting relationships with these suppliers andagher distributors on acceptable commel
terms, we will need to obtain other suppliers aray mot be able to continue to offer a broad sedaatif merchandise at competitive prices,
our sales may decrease.

In addition, because we outsource to distributararaber of these traditional retail functions rglgtto those products, we have limited
control over how and when orders are fulfilled. ®®o have limited control over the products thatdistributors purchase or keep in stock.
Our distributors may not accurately forecast thadpcts that will be in high demand or they maycdte popular products to other resellers,
resulting in the unavailability of certain produéts delivery to our customers. Any inability toferf a broad array of products at competitive
prices and any failure to deliver those productsuocustomers in a timely and accurate mannerdaayage our reputation and brand and
could cause us to lose customers.




We depend on third-party delivery services to daligur products to our customers on a timely anche@stent basis, and any deterioration in
our relationship with any one of these third parieor increases in the fees that they charge couédrh our reputation and adversely affect
our business and financial condition.

We rely on third parties for the shipment of oungrcts and we cannot be sure that these relatipmghil continue on terms favorable to
us, or at all. Shipping costs have increased fiom to time, and may continue to increase, whialidcbarm our business, prospects, financial
condition and results of operations by increasimgamsts of doing business and resulting in redgreds margins. In addition, if our
relationships with these third parties are terng@dadr impaired, or if these third parties are uaabldeliver products for us, whether due to
labor shortage, slow down or stoppage, deteriggdiivancial or business condition, responses totist attacks or for any other reason, we
would be required to use alternative carrierslfierghipment of products to our customers. Changamnders could have a negative effect on
business and operating results due to reducedlitisitif order status and package tracking and ykela order processing and product delivery
and we may be unable to engage alternative canieestimely basis, upon terms favorable to ustail.

If commodity prices such as fuel, plastic and sta@rease, our margins may reduc

Our third party delivery services have increaseal surcharges from time to time, and such increasgatively impact our margins, as
we are generally unable to pass all of these ds#stly to consumers. Increasing prices in the ponent materials for the parts we sell may
impact the availability, the quality and the prafeour products, as suppliers search for altereatio existing materials and as they increase tt
prices they charge. We cannot ensure that we cawvee all the increased costs through price ine@gaand our suppliers may not continue to
provide the consistent quality of product as theysubstitute lower cost materials to maintainipgdevels, all of which may have a negative
impact on our business and results of operations.

If our fulfillment operations are interrupted for ay significant period of time or are not sufficientb accommodate increased demand, «
sales would decline and our reputation could be haed.

Our success depends on our ability to successktlyive and fulfill orders and to promptly delivarr products to our customers. The
majority of orders for our auto body parts produans filled from our inventory in our distributi@menters, where all our inventory managerr
packaging, labeling and product return processeparformed. Increased demand and other considiesatiay require us to expand our
distribution centers or transfer our fulfillmenteyptions to larger facilities in the future.

Our distribution centers are susceptible to danwageterruption from human error, fire, flood, pawess, telecommunications failures,
terrorist attacks, acts of war, break-ins, eartkgaand similar events. We do not currently mainkeick-up power systems at our fulfillment
centers. We do not presently have a formal disast&very plan and our business interruption inscganay be insufficient to compensate us
for losses that may occur in the event operatibsiafulfilment center are interrupted. Any inteptions in our fulfillment operations for any
significant period of time, including interruptionssulting from the expansion of our existing faieis or the transfer of operations to a new
facility, could damage our reputation and brand sulastantially harm our business and results ofatjpss and alternate arrangements may
increase the cost of fulfillment. In addition, ievdo not successfully expand our fulfillment caps in response to increases in demand, we
may not be able to substantially increase our aless

We rely on bandwidth and data center providers astter third parties to provide products to our costers, and any failure or interruption
in the services provided by these third parties lcbdisrupt our business and cause us to lose custesn

We rely on third-party vendors, including data egrand bandwidth providers. Any disruption in tletwork access or co-location
services, which are the services that house anddardnternet access to our servers, provided bgehhird-party providers or any failure of
these third-party providers to handle current ghkr volumes of use could significantly harm ousibass. Any financial or other difficulties
our providers face may have negative effects orbasiess, the nature and extent of which we cameatict. We exercise little control over
these third-party vendors, which increases ouresalpility to problems with the services they previtiVe also license technology and related
databases from third parties to facilitate elemehtsur e-commerce platform. We have experiencebexpect to continue to experience
interruptions and delays in service and availabftir these elements. Any errors, failures, intptians or delays experienced in connection
with these third-party technologies could negativeipact our relationship with our customers andeasely affect our business. Our systems
also heavily depend on the availability of eledtyicwhich also comes from third-party providerfswk were to experience a major power
outage, we would have to rely on back-up generaldrsse back-up generators may not operate profredygh a major power outage, and
their fuel supply could also be inadequate durimgagor power outage. Information systems such &s imay be disrupted by even brief power
outages, or by the fluctuations in power resulfiogn switches to and from backup generators. Toigccdisrupt our business and cause us to
lose customers.
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We face intense competition and operate in an intyavith limited barriers to entry, and some of ogpmpetitors may have greater
resources than us and may be better positionedapitalize on the growing e-commerce auto parts meatrk

The auto parts industry is competitive and highgmented, with products distributed through mtidtied and overlapping channels. '
compete with both online and offline retailers wifter original equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) anfieamarket auto parts to either the DIY
or do-it-for-me customer segments. Current or ggaeoompetitors include the following:

. national auto parts retailers such as Advande Rarts, AutoZone, Napa Auto Parts, CarQuedRedly Automotive and Pe
Boys;

. large online marketplaces such as Amazon.com aagl;

. other online retailers and auto repair informati@bsites

. local independent retailers or niche auto partmenietailers; ar

. wholesale aftermarket auto parts distributors saschKQ Corporatior

Barriers to entry are low, and current and new catitgrs can launch websites at a relatively lowt.cgsany of our current and potential
competitors have longer operating histories, laogstomer bases, greater brand recognition andfisatly greater financial, marketing,
technical, management and other resources tharoweod example, in the event that online markeplammpanies such as Amazon or eBay,
who have larger customer bases, greater brandmiiogand significantly greater resources thandaeefocus more of their resources on
competing in the aftermarket auto parts markepild have a material adverse effect on our busiaed results of operations. In addition,
some of our competitors have used and may contmuse aggressive pricing tactics and devote sotisligz more financial resources to
website and system development than we do. We egpetoccompetition will further intensify in thetfure as Internet use and online commerc
continue to grow worldwide. Increased competitioaymesult in reduced sales, lower operating maygeduced profitability, loss of market
share and diminished brand recognition.

Additionally, we have experienced significant cotifpee pressure from our suppliers who are nowirsgltheir products directly to
customers. Since our suppliers have access to aratide at very low costs, they can sell producksvedr prices and maintain higher gross
margins on their product sales than we can. Oanfiral results have been negatively impacted kgctisales from our suppliers to our current
and potential customers, and our total number @éierand average order value may continue to aedlie to increased competition.
Continued competition from suppliers of ours that @apable of maintaining high sales volumes andigag products at lower prices than us
will continue to negatively impact our business agsllts of operations, including through reducaldss lower operating margins, reduced
profitability, loss of market share and diminish@dnd recognition. We are in the process of implging several strategies to attempt to
overcome the challenges created by our supplilisgsdirectly to our customers and potential caséws, including by lowering our prices by
increasing foreign sourced products and by imprammin our websites, which may not be succesifiilese strategies are not successful,
our operating results and financial conditions ddug¢ materially and adversely affected.

If we fail to offer a broad selection of productd eompetitive prices to meet our custor’” demands, our revenue could decline.

In order to expand our business, we must succégsfifier, on a continuous basis, a broad seleatioauto parts that meet the needs of
our customers, including by being the first to nesinkith new SKUs. Our auto parts are used by coessifior a variety of purposes, including
repair, performance, improved aesthetics and fanatity. In addition, to be successful, our prodaffé¢rings must be broad and deep in scope
competitively priced, well-made, innovative andattive to a wide range of consumers. We canndligtreiith certainty that we will be
successful in offering products that meet all @&stirequirements. If our product offerings faibédisfy our customers’ requirements or respon
to changes in customer preferences, our revenud dealine.

Challenges by OEMs to the validity of the aftermatkauto parts industry and claims of intellectuatqperty infringement could adversely
affect our business and the viability of the afteamket auto parts industry.

OEMs have attempted to use claims of intellectuaperty infringement against manufacturers anditistors of aftermarket products to
restrict or eliminate the sale of aftermarket piciduhat are the subject of the claims. The OEMe lmought such claims in federal court and
with the United States International Trade CommissiVe have received in the past, and we anticipatenay in the future receive,
communications alleging that certain products wkisiginge the patents, copyrights, trademarks ttade names or other intellectual property
rights of OEMs or other third parties. For instaraer approximately three and a half years @fdiion and related costs and expenses, on
April 16, 2009, we entered into a settlement agesgnwith Ford Motor Company and Ford Global Tecbgas, LLC that ended the two legal
actions that were
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initiated by Ford against us related to claimsntéliectual property infringement. The United S¢aBatent and Trademark Office records
indicate that OEMs are seeking and obtaining mesegh patents then they have in the past. To ttenethat the OEMs are successful with
intellectual property infringement claims, we coblklrestricted or prohibited from selling certafteamarket products which could have an
adverse effect on our business. Infringement claioudd also result in increased costs of doingress arising from increased legal expenses
adverse judgments or settlements or changes tousimess practices required to settle such clamsattsfy any judgments. Litigation could
result in interpretations of the law that requiseta change our business practices or otherwisease our costs and harm our business. We d
not maintain insurance coverage to cover the tgpetaims that could be asserted. If a succes$diowere brought against us, it could exf
us to significant liability.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual propgrrights, our reputation and brand could be impail and we could lose custome

We regard our trademarks, trade secrets and simitdlectual property such as our proprietary bank order processing and fulfillment
code and process as important to our success. Werré¢rademark and copyright law, and trade sguretection, and confidentiality and/or
license agreements with employees, customers,graramd others to protect our proprietary rights. 8&nnot be certain that we have taken
adequate steps to protect our proprietary riglsiseeally in countries where the laws may not poteir rights as fully as in the United States.
In addition, our proprietary rights may be infrimiger misappropriated, and we could be requiredcar significant expenses to preserve them
In the past we have filed litigation to protect @itellectual property rights. The outcome of slitbation can be uncertain, and the cost of
prosecuting such litigation may have an adverseanpn our earnings. We have common law trademaskaiell as pending federal tradem
registrations for several marks and several regidtearks. Even if we obtain approval of such pegdegistrations, the resulting registrations
may not adequately cover our intellectual propertprotect us against infringement by others. Eifectrademark, service mark, copyright,
patent and trade secret protection may not beahlaiin every country in which our products and/ieers may be made available online. We
also currently own or control a number of Interdemain names, includingww.usautoparts.netwww.carparts.com
www.autopartswarehouse.camvww.jcwhitney.corand www.AutoMD.comand have invested time and money in the purcbBdemain
names and other intellectual property, which majniggaired if we cannot protect such intellectuaperty. We may be unable to protect these
domain names or acquire or maintain relevant domaines in the United States and in other countifi@ge are not able to protect our
trademarks, domain names or other intellectual gntgpwe may experience difficulties in achievinglanaintaining brand recognition and
customer loyalty.

If our product catalog database is stolen, misappriated or damaged, or if a competitor is able t@ate a substantially similar catalo
without infringing our rights, then we may lose aimportant competitive advantage.

We have invested significant resources and timfmutldl and maintain our product catalog, which isntaned in the form of an
electronic database, which maps SKUs to relevardymt applications based on vehicle makes, moaelyaars. We believe that our product
catalog provides us with an important competitidgamtage in both driving traffic to our websiteslaonverting that traffic to revenue by
enabling customers to quickly locate the produnty require. We cannot assure you that we willlide # protect our product catalog from
unauthorized copying or theft or that our prodwtatog will continue to operate adequately, withay technological challenges. In addition,
it is possible that a competitor could develop talcg or database that is similar to or more cotmgnsive than ours, without infringing our
rights. In the event our product catalog is damawed stolen, copied or otherwise replicated tmpete with us, whether lawfully or not, we
may lose an important competitive advantage andosiness could be harmed.

Our e-commerce system is dependent on open-sowfterare, which exposes us to uncertainty and potahliability.

We utilize open-source software such as Linux, ApadlySQL, PHP, Fedora and Perl throughout our preperties and supporting
infrastructure although we have created proprigpaograms. Open-source software is maintained pgdaded by a general community of
software developers under various open-sourcedegrnncluding the GNU General Public License (“GQPThese developers are under no
obligation to maintain, enhance or provide anydire updates to this software in the future. Addislly, under the terms of the GPL and othel
open-source licenses, we may be forced to releathe tpublic sourceede internally developed by us pursuant to swenies. Furthermore,
any of these developers contribute any code ofrstteeany of the software that we use, we may Ipepsad to claims and liability for
intellectual property infringement. A number of kuits are currently pending against third partiesr the ownership rights to the various
components within some opeource software that we use. If the outcome ofethessuits is unfavorable, we may be held liabteritellectua
property infringement based on our use of thesa-Gpearce software components. We may also be faocedplement changes to the code-
base for this software or replace this softwardwiternally developed or commercially licensedwafe.
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We face exposure to product liability lawsuits.

The automotive industry in general has been subjegtiarge number of product liability claims doghe nature of personal injuries that
result from car accidents or malfunctions. As dritigtor of auto parts, including parts obtaine@i®eas, we could be held liable for the injury
or damage caused if the products we sell are defeat malfunction. While we carry insurance agapreduct liability claims, if the damages
in any given action were high or we were subjecntdtiple lawsuits, the damages and costs couléekthe limits of our insurance coverage.
If we were required to pay substantial damagesrasudt of these lawsuits, it may seriously harmlmusiness and financial condition. Even
defending against unsuccessful claims could casige imcur significant expenses and result in @dilon of management'’s attention. In
addition, even if the money damages themselveaalidause substantial harm to our business, thagno our reputation and the brands
offered on our websites could adversely affectfature reputation and our brand, and could resudt decline in our net sales and profitability.

We rely on key personnel and may need additionakpeanel for the success and growth of our business.

Our business is largely dependent on the persditatssand abilities of highly skilled executivechnical, managerial, merchandising,
marketing, and call center personnel. Competit@rstich personnel is intense, and we cannot adsafreve will be successful in attracting ¢
retaining such personnel. The loss of any key eyggl®@r our inability to attract or retain other lified employees could harm our business
and results of operations.

System failures, including failures due to naturdisasters or other catastrophic events, could prexeccess to our websites, which col
reduce our net sales and harm our reputation.

Our sales would decline and we could lose existingotential customers if they are not able to as@ir websites or if our websites,
transactions processing systems or network infretstre do not perform to our customers’ satisfactiny Internet network interruptions or
problems with our websites could:

. prevent customers from accessing our web:

. reduce our ability to fulfill orders or bill custars
. reduce the number of products that we

. cause customer dissatisfaction

. damage our brand and reputat

We have experienced brief computer system intdongtin the past, and we believe they may contiowcur from time to time in the
future. Our systems and operations are also vubteeta damage or interruption from a number of sesy including a natural disaster or other
catastrophic event such as an earthquake, typkotranic eruption, fire, flood, terrorist attaclkagnaputer viruses, power loss,
telecommunications failure, physical and electrdmak-ins and other similar events. For example headquarters and the majority of our
infrastructure, including some of our servers,lacated in Southern California, a seismically astiggion. We also maintain offshore and
outsourced operations in the Philippines, an draaitas been subjected to a typhoon and a voleamjition in the past. In addition, California
has in the past experienced power outages as laoéBmited electrical power supplies and duedcent fires in the southern part of the state.
Such outages, natural disasters and similar eweaysrecur in the future and could disrupt the ofi@neof our business. Our technology
infrastructure is also vulnerable to computer \é@gjgphysical or electronic break-ins and similaruptions. Although the critical portions of
our systems are redundant and backup copies argaima&id offsite, not all of our systems and dagafally redundant. We do not presently
have a formal disaster recovery plan in effect @ag not have sufficient insurance for losses thay occur from natural disasters or
catastrophic events. Any substantial disruptionwftechnology infrastructure could cause intelions or delays in our business and loss of
data or render us unable to accept and fulfill@muslr orders or operate our websites in a timelymagror at all.

Risks Related To Our Capital Stock

Our common stock price has been and may continuééovolatile, which may result in losses to ouratbolders.

The market prices of technology and e-commerce emmg generally have been extremely volatile ave hecently experienced sharp
share price and trading volume changes. The traatieg of our common stock is likely to be volatiied could fluctuate widely in response to,
among other things, the risk factors describedhim teport and other factors beyond our controhsagfluctuations in the operations or
valuations of companies perceived by investorsstoadmparable to us, our ability to meet analystpeetations, or conditions or trends in the
Internet or auto parts industries.
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Since the completion of our initial public offeriing February 2007 through January 3, 2015 , ttairtgpprice of our common stock has
been volatile, ranging from a high of $12.61 persho a low per share of $0.91. We have also éeqmard significant fluctuations in the
trading volume of our common stock. General ecorand political conditions unrelated to our perfarmoe may also adversely affect the
price of our common stock. In the past, followireripds of volatility in the market price of a pubtiompanys securities, securities class ac
litigation has often been initiated. Due to theardnt uncertainties of litigation, we cannot préthe ultimate outcome of any such litigation if
it were initiated. The initiation of any such liiion or an unfavorable result could have a mdtadaerse effect on our financial condition and
results of operations.

Our common stock may be delisted from the Nasdagl@l Market (“Nasdaq”) if we are unable to maintainompliance with Nasdaq's
continued listing standards.

As a company traded on the Nasdag, we are subjectnipliance with Nasdaq's listing rules, whichuieg, among other things, that our
Board of Directors be comprised of a majority afépendent directors. In July 2013, we receivedte@eadrom Nasdaqg that the Company’s
Board of Directors was no longer comprised of aamityj of independent directors due to the resigmatif one of our independent directors.
We regained compliance in November 2013 with th@oagment of two new independent directors, priothte expiration of the cure period
provided by Nasdaq,

Nasdaq imposes, among other requirements, contiisigd) standards including minimum bid and pulflcat requirements. The price
of our common stock must trade at or above $1.@®toply with Nasdaq's minimum bid requirement fontinued listing on the Nasdag. If
our stock trades at bid prices of less than $1od@ fperiod in excess of 30 consecutive businegs, dae Nasdaq could send a deficiency notic
to us for not remaining in compliance with the minim bid listing standards. In 2014 our common stoeker traded below $1.00. At certain
times during the third quarter of 2013, our commtutk traded below $1.00 per share at closing befoeturned to trading at or above $1.00
to comply with Nasdag's minimum bid requirement éontinued listing on the Nasdag, however, at me tdid such period exceed 30
consecutive business days. If the closing bid pfogur common stock fails to meet Nasdag’'s minimalosing bid price requirement, or if we
otherwise fail to meet any other applicable requiats of the Nasdag and we are unable to regaiplcome, Nasdag may make a
determination to delist our common stock.

Any delisting of our common stock could adversdfga the market liquidity of our common stock ahé market price of our common
stock could decrease. Furthermore, if our commocksivere delisted it could adversely affect outighio obtain financing for the
continuation of our operations and/or result inlties of confidence by investors, customers, sepphnd employees.

Our executive officers and directors and certainated parties own a significant percentage of odosk.

As of January 3, 2015, our executive officers diméctors and certain related parties and entitiasare affiliated with them beneficially
owned in the aggregate approximately 52.5% of etstanding shares of stock. This significant cotregion of share ownership may
adversely affect the trading price for our commtmtls because investors often perceive disadvaniagesning stock in companies with
controlling stockholders. Also, these stockholdarding together, will be able to significantly lidnce our management and affairs and co
matters requiring stockholder approval including éhection of our entire Board of Directors andaiarsignificant corporate actions such as
mergers, consolidations or the sale of substaptiliof our assets. As a result, this concentratibownership could delay, defer or prevent
others from initiating a potential merger, takeowepther change in our control, even if theseoastiwould benefit our other stockholders and
us.

The rights, preferences and privileges of our ekisf preferred stock may restrict our financial anaperational flexibility.

In March 2013, our Board of Directors, under théharity granted by our Certificate of Incorporati@stablished a series of preferred
stock, our Series A Convertible Preferred, which Warious rights, preferences and privileges senitine shares of our common stock.
Dividends on the Series A Convertible Preferredpayable quarterly, subject to the satisfactionestain conditions, at a rate of $0.058 per
share per annum in cash, in shares of common stackany combination of cash and common stockedsrchined by our Board of Directors.
While we may, at our election, subject to the $atison of certain conditions, pay any accruedunpaid dividends on the Series A Convert
Preferred in either cash or in common stock, we bwaynable to satisfy the requisite conditionggying dividends in common stock and,
under such circumstances, we will be required toquech accrued but unpaid dividends in cash. lh sircumstances, we will be required to
use cash that would otherwise be used to fund egoiag operations to pay such accrued but unp&idetids. To the extent we do pay
dividends in common stock, the ownership percentdgeir common stockholders who are not holdeithefSeries A Convertible Preferred
will be diluted. Our Series A Convertible Preferigdnitially convertible for 4,149,997 shares ohtmon stock, and to the extent that the S
A Convertible Preferred is converted, the commaoglsbwnership percentage of our common stockholdbisare not converting holders of
the Series A Convertible Preferred will be diluted.
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Our future operating results may fluctuate and mégil to meet market expectations.

We expect that our revenue and operating resultemitinue to fluctuate from quarter to quarteeda various factors, many of which
are beyond our control. If our quarterly revenueperating results fall below the expectationsnwestors or securities analysts, the price of
our common stock could significantly decline. Thetbrs that could cause our operating results mtirmee to fluctuate include, but are not
limited to:

. fluctuations in the demand for aftermarket autds;

. price competition on the Internet or among offlietailers for auto part

. our ability to attract visitors to our websit@sd convert those visitors into customers, inclgdmthe extent based on our
ability to successfully work with different searehgines to drive visitors to our websites;

. our ability to successfully sell our productsatiigh thirdparty online marketplace

. competition from companies that have longer afieg histories, larger customer bases, greaterdm@cognition, access to
merchandise at lower costs and significantly gre@sources than we do, like third-party online keaplaces and our
suppliers;

. our ability to maintain and expand our suppéied distribution relationships without significgrice increases or reduced
service levels;

. our ability to borrow funds under our credit faigjj

. the effects of seasonality on the demand for oodycts

. our ability to accurately forecast demand for products, price our products at market ratesraaithtain appropriate
inventory levels;

. our ability to build and maintain customer loya

. our ability to successfully integrate our acquisis

. infringement actions that could impact the viabibif the auto parts aftermarket or portions the

. the success of our brahdilding and marketing campaig

. our ability to accurately project our future reveapearnings, and results of operati

. government regulations related to use of therirdt for commerce, including the application ab&Rrg tax regulations to
Internet commerce and changes in tax regulations;

. technical difficulties, system downtime or Interbbebwnouts

. the amount and timing of operating costs andtabgxpenditures relating to expansion of our bass, operations and

infrastructure; and

. the impact of adverse economic conditions on retdés, in gener:

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting or comply wittsection 404 of the Sarban-Oxley Act o
2002, we may not be able to accurately report donahcial results or prevent fraud, and our stockipe could decline.

While management has concluded that our internatols over financial reporting were effective ddanuary 3, 2015 , we have in the
past, and could in the future, have a significaftoiency or material weakness in internal contnetr financial reporting or fail to comply with
Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.dffail to properly maintain an effective systeniraérnal control over financial reporting, it
could impact our ability to prevent fraud or toussour financial statements in a timely manner phasents fairly our financial condition and
results of operations. The existence of any suditidacies or weaknesses, even if cured, may &iad to the loss of investor confidence in the
reliability of our financial statements, could haoor business and negatively impact the tradingepof our common stock. Such deficiencies
or material weaknesses may also subject us to lesygwestigations and other penalties.

Our charter documents could deter a takeover effavhich could inhibit your ability to receive an gaisition premium for your shares.

Provisions in our certificate of incorporation amdaws could make it more difficult for a third pato acquire us, even if doing so wo
be beneficial to our stockholders. Such provisimetude the following:

15




. our Board of Directors are authorized, withorbpstockholder approval, to create and issuegprefl stock which could be
used to implement anti-takeover devices;

. advance notice is required for director nominationfor proposals that can be acted upon at stddkhmeetings

. our Board of Directors is classified such that all members of our board are elected at one, timhéch may make it more
difficult for a person who acquires control of ajordy of our outstanding voting stock to repladecs a majority of our
directors;

. stockholder action by written consent is prohibiéxdept with regards to an action that has beeroapg by the Boar

. special meetings of the stockholders are pegthtid be called only by the chairman of our BodrBicectors, our chief
executive officer or by a majority of our Boardifectors;

. stockholders are not permitted to cumulate theesdor the election of directors; ¢

. stockholders are permitted to amend certain prongsdf our bylaws only upon receiving at least 882 of the votes entitle
to be cast by holders of all outstanding shares #mditled to vote generally in the election ofeditors, voting together as a
single class.

We do not intend to pay dividends on our commonckto

We currently do not expect to pay any cash dividesrd our common stock for the foreseeable future.

General Market and Industry Risk

Economic conditions have had, and may continue tavie an adverse effect on the demand for aftermarketo parts and could adverse
affect our sales and operating results.

We sell aftermarket auto parts consisting of baaly @ngine parts used for repair and maintenancfrpence parts used to enhance
performance or improve aesthetics and accesshiagaicrease functionality or enhance a vehicle&dres. Demand for our products has bee
and may continue to be adversely affected by géeemmomic conditions. In declining economies, econers often defer regular vehicle
maintenance and may forego purchases of nonedsestiarmance and accessories products, whichesudtrin a decrease in demand for autc
parts in general. Consumers also defer purchasesvwof/ehicles, which immediately impacts perforneaparts and accessories, which are
generally purchased in the first six months of hide’s lifespan. In addition, during economic dawms some competitors may become more
aggressive in their pricing practices, which woadhversely impact our gross margin and could carge Ifluctuations in our stock price.
Certain suppliers may exit the industry which mapact our ability to procure parts and may advgrsepact gross margin as the remaining
suppliers increase prices to take advantage ofddrdompetition.

Vehicle miles driven, vehicle accident rates andumance companies’ willingness to accept a variefytypes of replacement parts in the
repair process have fluctuated and may decreaseictvisould result in a decline of our revenues anégatively affect our results of
operations.

We and our industry depend on the number of vehiiles driven, vehicle accident rates and insurarmeepanies’ willingness to accept
a variety of types of replacement parts in the irgpacess. Decreased miles driven reduce the nuoflaecidents and corresponding demand
for crash parts, and reduce the wear and tear loiclge with a corresponding reduction in demandvigdicle repairs and replacement or hard
parts. If consumers were to drive less in the &itas a result of higher gas prices or otherwigesales may decline and our business and
financial results may suffer.

The success of our business depends on the contirgrewth of the Internet as a retail marketplace @éhe related expansion of the
Internet infrastructure.

Our future success depends upon the continued ae$pread acceptance and adoption of the Intesn@tvahicle to purchase products.
If customers or manufacturers are unwilling to tieelnternet to conduct business and exchangenaftion, our business will fail. The
commercial acceptance and use of the Internet rogantinue to develop at historical rates, or maydevelop as quickly as we expect. The
growth of the Internet, and in turn the growth af business, may be inhibited by concerns ovempsiand security, including concerns
regarding “viruses” and “worms,” reliability issuagsing from outages or damage to Internet infuastire, delays in development or adoption
of new standards and protocols to handle the desnahiticreased Internet activity, decreased adoiisgiincreased government regulation,
and taxation of Internet activity. In addition, dursiness growth may be adversely affected if tierhet infrastructure does not keep pace wit
the
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growing Internet activity and is unable to suppgh& demands placed upon it, or if there is anyydielahe development of enabling
technologies and performance improvements.

We may be subject to liability for sales and othiakxes and penalties, which could have an adverdectfon our business.

In 2014, we collected sales or other similar teowly on the shipment of goods to the states off@alia, Kansas, Virginia, lllinois and
Ohio. The U.S. Supreme Court has ruled that vengtbsse only connection with customers in a stabyisommon carrier or the U.S. mail
free from state-imposed duties to collect salesummdtaxes in that state. However, states coukltedmpose additional income tax obligations
or sales tax collection obligations on out-of-statenpanies such as ours, which engage in or feilinline commerce, based on their
interpretation of existing laws, including the Seime Court ruling, or specific facts relating to fisales tax obligations are successfully
imposed upon us by a state or other jurisdictiomcauld be exposed to substantial tax liabilit@spgast sales and penalties and fines for fa
to collect sales taxes. We could also suffer deg@aales in that state or jurisdiction as thecéffe cost of purchasing goods from us increase
for those residing in that state or jurisdiction.

In addition, a number of states, as well as the Gdhgress, have been considering various inigatthat could limit or supersede the
Supreme Court’s apparent position regarding saldsuge taxes on Internet sales. If any of thes$itivies are enacted, we could be required t
collect sales and use taxes in additional statdanrevenue could be adversely affected. Furtbeznihe U.S. Congress has not yet extende
a moratorium, which was first imposed in 1998 bag Bince expired, on state and local governmehifityato impose new taxes on Internet
access and Internet transactions. The impositiostdite and local governments of various taxes Upt@nnet commerce could create
administrative burdens for us as well as substi@ntrapair the growth of e-commerce and adversélga our revenue and profitability. Since
our service is available over the Internet in nuldtistates, these jurisdictions may require usiadify to do business in these states. If we fz
qualify in a jurisdiction that requires us to dg a@ could face liabilities for taxes and penalties

Security threats to our IT infrastructure could exyse us to liability, and damage our reputation ahdsiness

It is essential to our business strategy that echiriology and network infrastructure remain seemcis perceived by our customers t
secure. Despite security measures, however, amporieinfrastructure may be vulnerable to cyber@ksaby hackers and other security threat:
As a leading online source for automotive afterreaigarts and repair information, we may face cyditaeks that attempt to penetrate our
network security, including our data centers, toosage or otherwise disable our network of websitesonline marketplaces, misappropriate
our or our customers’ proprietary information, whimay include personally identifiable informati@m,cause interruptions of our internal
systems and services. If successful, any of thitseka could negatively affect our reputation, dgenaur network infrastructure and our abi
to sell our products, harm our relationship witlstomers that are affected and expose us to findradidity.

If we do not respond to technological change, ouelgites could become obsolete and our financialfesssand conditions could be advers
affected.

We maintain a network of websites which requirdsstantial development and maintenance efforts eaails significant technical and
business risks. To remain competitive, we mustinaetto enhance and improve the responsivenessjdaality and features of our websites.
The Internet and the e-commerce industry are ctexiaed by rapid technological change, the emergehoew industry standards and
practices and changes in customer requirementprafigrences. Therefore, we may be required todie@merging technologies, enhance our
existing websites, develop new services and tecigyahat address the increasingly sophisticatedvandd needs of our current and
prospective customers, and adapt to technologibalreces and emerging industry and regulatory stdsdand practices in a cost-effective anc
timely manner. Our ability to remain technologigatbmpetitive may require substantial expenditanes lead time and our failure to do so
may harm our business and results of operations.

Existing or future government regulation could expe us to liabilities and costly changes in our bsss operations and could redu
customer demand for our products and services.

We are subject to federal and state consumer pgimtdaws and regulations, including laws protegtihe privacy of customer ngublic
information and regulations prohibiting unfair agheceptive trade practices, as well as laws andatguos governing businesses in general an
the Internet and e-commerce and certain envirormhéaws. Additional laws and regulations may bepdd with respect to the Internet, the
effect of which on e-commerce is uncertain. ThasesImay cover issues such as user privacy, spyamar¢he tracking of consumer activities,
marketing e-mails and communications, other adsiagiand promotional practices, money transfeisiny, content and quality of products
and services, taxation, electronic contracts ahdratommunications, intellectual property rightsd énformation security. Furthermore, it is
not clear how existing laws such as those goverisisiges such as property ownership, sales and t@tkes, trespass, data mining and
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collection, and personal privacy apply to the Ine2rand esommerce. To the extent we expand into internatioraakets, we will be faced wit
complying with local laws and regulations, somevbich may be materially different than U.S. lawsl aegulations. Any such foreign law or
regulation, any new U.S. law or regulation, orititerpretation or application of existing laws aedulations to the Internet or other online
services or our business in general, may have eriabadverse effect on our business, prospecitandial condition and results of operations
by, among other things, impeding the growth ofltiternet, subjecting us to fines, penalties, damagether liabilities, requiring costly
changes in our business operations and practindgealucing customer demand for our products andces. We do not maintain insurance
coverage to cover the types of claims or liab#itiat could arise as a result of such regulation.

We may be affected by global climate change ordwal, regulatory, or market responses to such chang

The growing political and scientific sentimentligt global weather patterns are being influencethtieased levels of greenhouse gase:
in the earth’s atmosphere. This growing sentimedtthe concern over climate change have led tslgie and regulatory initiatives aimed at
reducing greenhouse gas emissions. For exampleogaits that would impose mandatory requiremengreenhouse gas emissions contint
be considered by policy makers in the United Stdtas/s enacted that directly or indirectly affear suppliers (through an increase in the cos
of production or their ability to produce satisfagt products) or our business (through an impaatwmninventory availability, cost of sales,
operations or demand for the products we sell)dcadiersely affect our business, financial condijtr@sults of operations and cash flows.
Significant increases in fuel economy requirementsew federal or state restrictions on emissidrisabon dioxide that may be imposed on
vehicles and automobile fuels could adversely affieenand for vehicles, annual miles driven or thaglpcts we sell or lead to changes in
automotive technology. Compliance with any new orerstringent laws or regulations, or stricterriptetations of existing laws, could require
additional expenditures by us or our suppliers. @ability to respond to changes in automotive tetbgy could adversely impact the demand
for our products and our business, financial caoojtresults of operations or cash flows.

The United States government may substantially &se border controls and impose restrictions onsstoorder commerce that may
substantially harm our busines:

We purchase a substantial portion of our products fforeign manufacturers and other suppliers whwee products internationally.
Restrictions on shipping goods into the United &&tdtom other countries pose a substantial riskutdousiness. Particularly since the terrorist
attacks on September 11, 2001, the United Stateerigment has substantially increased border slamei and controls. If the United States
were to impose further border controls and resbnst, impose quotas, tariffs or import duties, é&se the documentation requirements
applicable to cross border shipments or take @hbgons that have the effect of restricting thevflaf goods from other countries to the United
States, we may have greater difficulty acquiringiauentory in a timely manner, experience shipgiegays, or incur increased costs and
expenses, all of which would substantially harm lmusiness and results of operations.
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ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

As of January 3, 2015, the total square footagmioteased office and distribution centers was@Jd square feet. This includes
approximately 531,000 square feet for our corpanatedquarters located in Carson, California anulibligion centers in LaSalle, lllinois and
Chesapeake, Virginia; and approximately 43,000 sgjfeget of office space in the Philippines. Foriiddal information regarding our
obligations under property leases, Sdete 10-Commitments and Contingencieg'the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemeén¢s ded
in Part IV, Item 15 of this report.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The information set forth under the captiobégal Matters’ in “ Note 10-Commitments and Contingencietthe Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements, included in Part IV, Itemot$his report, and is incorporated herein by refiee. For an additional discussion of certain
risks associated with legal proceedings, see ttioseentitled “Risk Factors” in Item 1A of thispert.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
Not applicable.
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PART Il

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Market Information

Our common stock is being trading on the Nasdagutite symbol “PRTS.” The table below sets for#h igh and low sales prices of
our common stock for the periods indicated:

High Low

2014:

Quarter ended March 29, 2014 $ 3.3 % 1.82

Quarter ended June 28, 2014 4.0 2.52

Quarter ended September 27, 2014 4.0¢ 2.5t

Quarter ended January 3, 2015 3.1¢ 2.13
2013:

Quarter ended March 30, 2013 $ 224 $ 1.01

Quarter ended June 29, 2013 1.8¢ 1.0

Quarter ended September 28, 2013 1.3¢ 0.91

Quarter ended December 28, 2013 3.1¢ 1.21

On March 12, 2015, the last reported sale priceuofcommon stock on the Nasdaq was $2.63 per.share

Holders
As of March 12, 2015 , there were approximately’3,6olders of record of our common stock.

Stock Performance Graph

The material in this section is not “soliciting neaial,” is not deemed “filed” with the SEC, and dhaot be deemed to be incorporated
by reference into any of our filings under the Sities Act of 1933, as amended, or the SecuritieshBnge Act of 1934, as amended.

The following graph shows a quarterly comparisotheftotal cumulative returns of an investment 8®&in cash on December 31, 2C
in (i) our common stock, (i) the Morgan Stanleychiaology Index, (iii) the S&P 500 Retail Index afid NASDAQ Composite Index, in each
case through December 31, 2014. The performancaraftock, the Morgan Stanley Technology Index,38# 500 Retail Index and the
NASDAQ Composite Index have been obtained fromnentlata available. We have used the availablepatthe end of the week closes
the end of the period for the purposes of the grapk comparisons in the graph are required byst€ and are not intended to forecast or be
indicative of the possible future performance of common stock. The graph assumes that all comtook glividends have been reinvestec
date, we have not declared dividends on our constmrk).
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Dividend Policy

No dividends on common stock were paid during tbeaf year ended January 3, 2015 . We issued ajppataly $240,000 in common
stock to our Series A Preferred shareholders duhadiscal year ended January 3, 2015 . We paidoapmately $64,000 of dividends in cash
and approximately $60,000 in common stock to ouieSeA Preferred shareholders during the fiscal yealed December 28, 2018/e do no
anticipate that we will declare or pay any cashddimds on our common stock in the foreseeabledyhowever, we will have to pay divider
to our preferred shareholders until such sharesegl@emed or converted. We maintain an asset-tvagelbing credit facility with JPMorgan
Chase Bank (the "Credit Agreement") that providesdmong other things, a revolving commitmentriraggregate principal amount of up to
$25 million subject to a borrowing base derivedrircertain of our receivables, inventory and propartd equipment. The Credit Agreement
requires us to obtain a prior written consent fiiiMorgan Chase Bank when we determine to pay amyedids on or make any distribution
with respect to our common stock. Under the Sed&mdndment to Credit Agreement dated March 25, 2@/3pbtained written consent from
JPMorgan Chase Bank to pay dividends on our SArieseferred Shares. Sddquidity and Capital Resourcesih Item 7 of Part Il included
this report for further information on the coversmuahder the secured Credit Agreement. Any fututerdgnation to pay cash dividends on our
common stock will be subject to the above restittas well as restrictions under any other exgsitalebtedness, at the discretion of our Bi
of Directors and will be dependent upon our finahcondition, results of operations, capital regoients, and other factors the Board of

Directors deems relevant.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

None.
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Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities
None.

Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers
We did not repurchase any of our outstanding eqaitrities during the most recent quarter covbyetthis report.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial information asasfd for the dates and periods indicated have beewed from our audited consolidat

financial statements. The information set fortholaels not necessarily indicative of results of feteperations, and should be read in
conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and Asédyof Financial Condition and Results of Operatidn Part Il, Iltem 7 of this report and
our consolidated financial statements and relatgdsnincluded elsewhere in this report (in thousasgcept per share data).

52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks 52 Weeks
53 Weeks Ended Ended Ended Ended
Ended December 28, December 29, December 31, January 1,
January 3, 2015 2013 2012 2011 2011
(“fiscal year (“fiscal year (“fiscal year (“fiscal year (“fiscal year
2014") (1) 2013") (2) 2012" (3) 2011") (4) 2010") (5)
Consolidated Statements of Operations
Data:
Net sales $ 283,50 $ 254,750 % 304,01 $ 327,07 $ 262,27
Cost of sales 205,05¢ 180,62( 212,37¢ 220,07 172,66¢
Gross profit 78,45( 74,13! 91,63¢ 107,00( 89,60¢
Operating expenses:
Marketing 42,00¢ 41,04¢ 51,41¢ 55,78¢ 38,75:
General and administrative 16,70: 17,567 19,857 31,96: 28,62¢
Fulfillment 20,36¢ 18,70: 22,26¢ 19,16« 14,94¢
Technology 4,86: 5,12¢ 6,274 7,272 5,902
Amortization of intangible assets 422 381 1,18¢ 3,67: 2,80¢
Impairment loss on goodwill — — 18,85 — —
Impairment loss on property and
equipment — 4,83 1,96( — —
Impairment loss on intangible asset: — 1,24t 5,61 5,13¢ —
Total operating expenses 84,36: 88,90( 127,42¢ 122,99! 91,03"
Loss from operations (5,917 (14,767 (35,790 (15,999 (1,42¢)
Other expense, net (1,036 (829 (1,129 (6549) (280
Loss before income taxes (6,94¢) (15,59)) (36,919 (16,649 (1,709
Income tax (benefit) provision 13¢ 43 (937) (1,512 12,21¢
Net loss (7,08¢) (15,639 (35,979 (15,13)) (23,92¢)
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling
interests (207) — — — —
Net loss attributable to U.S. Auto Parts $ 6,879 $ (15,639 $ (35,979 $ (15,13) $ (13,926
Basic and diluted net loss per share
$ 0.27) $ (0.48) $ 1179 $ (050 $ (0.4¢)
Shares used in computation of basic anc
diluted net loss per share
33,48¢ 32,69: 30,81¢ 30,54¢ 30,26¢

(1)
(2)
(3)

(4)
()

Fiscal year 2014 included restructuring chamfe$1.1 millionincurred due to the closure of our warehouse irs@grCalifornie
Fiscal year 2013 included severance charg88.@fmillionincurred due to a reduction in workforce during fiingt half of 2013
Fiscal year 2012 included restructuring ca$t$0.6 million related to severance charges ireidue to a reduction in workforce
from the closure of our call center in La Salléndis.

Fiscal year 2011 included acquisition and integratiosts of $7.4 million related to our WAG acquinsi.

During fiscal year 2010, the net sales of $38illion and the net loss of $6.0 million of WA@se the acquisition date of August
12, 2010 were included in the consolidated stat¢mieoperations. We recognized $3.1 million of asdgion and integration related
costs in fiscal year 2010. Also, the recognitior$d8.6 million valuation allowance for deferredange tax assets was included in
fiscal year 2010. The total valuation allowanceorded during the year was $18.3 million, of whieghZmillion was recorded as a
reduction to the value of the acquired deferredassets of WAG recorded as part of the purchassuatiog for WAG.
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January 3, December 29, January 1,

2015 December 28, 2013 2012 December 31, 2011 2011
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,65 % 81 $ 1,03C $ 10,33t $ 17,59¢
Working capital® 14,64¢ 9,761 (4,02)) 8,66¢ 19,17¢
Total assets 82,90° 69,18: 88,87 142,21t 153,53
Revolving loan payable 11,02: 6,77 16,22: — —
Current portion of long-term debt and
capital leases 26¢ 26¢ 70 6,38t 6,257
Long-term debt including capital leases,
of current portion 9,27( 9,50z 70 11,66: 18,06(
U.S. Auto Parts stockholders’ equity 19,271 20,86¢ 27,64« 60,92« 72,80«
Noncontrolling interests 2,94¢ — — — —
(1) As of December 31, 2011 and January 1, 204lanices excluded $2.1 million and $4.1 millionrofestments which were
reclassified to long-term due to illiquidity in tinearket.
ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Cautionary Statement

You should read the following discussion and analysconjunction with our consolidated financitdtements and the related notes
thereto contained in Part IV, Item 15 of this rép@ertain statements in this report, includindesteents regarding our business strategies,
operations, financial condition, and prospectsfaneard-looking statements. Use of the words “aptites,” “believes,” “could,” “estimates,”
“expects,” “intends,” “may,” “plans,” “potential,“predicts,” “projects,” “should,” “will,” “would,” “will likely continue,” “will likely result”
and similar expressions that contemplate futuresvaay identify forward-looking statements.

The information contained in this section is nabaplete description of our business or the risispeiated with an investment in our
common stock. We urge you to carefully review aadsider the various disclosures made by us inréfiert and in our other reports filed with
the SEC, which are available on the SEC’s websitétp://www.sec.gov. The section entitle®Risk Factors' set forth inPart I, Item 1A0of this
report, and similar discussions in our other SHBd$, describe some of the important factors,srskd uncertainties that may affect our
business, results of operations and financial dmrdand could cause actual results to differ nialigrfrom those expressed or implied by th
or any other forward-looking statements made bgruzn our behalf. You are cautioned not to placguarreliance on these forward-looking
statements, which are based on current expectaimhseflect management’s opinions only as of tite thereof. We do not assume any
obligation to revise or update forward-looking staents. Finally, our historic results should noviesved as indicative of future performance.

Overview

We are one of the largest online providers of aftket auto parts, including body parts, hard partd performance parts and
accessories. Our user-friendly websites providéoooers with a broad selection of SKUs, with dethjpeoduct descriptions and photographs.
Our proprietary product database maps our SKUsdduyzt applications based on vehicle makes, madelsyears. We principally sell our
products to individual consumers through our neknafrwebsites and online marketplaces. Our flagslepsites are located at
www.autopartswarehouse.cgmvww.carparts.comwww.jcwhitney.cormndwww.AutoMD.conand our corporate website is located at
www.usautoparts.netWe believe our strategy of disintermediating tiiaelitional auto parts supply chain and sellingdoi@s directly to
customers over the Internet allows us to moreiefiity deliver products to our customers while gatiag higher margins. Industry-wide
trends that support our strategy include:

1. Number of SKUs required to serve the markieé number of automotive SKUs has grown dramatiaaler the last
several years. In today's market, unless the coesiswriving a high volume vehicle and needs g#maintenance item, the part they
need is not typically on the shelf at a brick-andrtar store. We believe our user-friendly websjtas/ide customers with a
comprehensive selection of approximately 1.6 mill@KUs with detailed product descriptions, attrédzsuand photographs paired with
flexibility of fulfilling orders using both drop-sp and stock-anghip as well as our internally developed distrilbg®lection system, at
provide customers with a favorable alternativenm ltrick-and-mortar shopping experience.
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2. U.S. vehicle fleet expanding and agifge average age of U.S. vehicles, an indicatoutf parts demand, remained at a
recordhigh 11.4 years as of January 2014, according ®Adtomotive, a market analytics firm that expahtsaverage age to remait
11.4 years through 2015, and then rise to 11.56y@®aP017 and 11.7 years by 2019. IHS expectsuh#er of vehicles that are 12 ye
or older to increase by 15% by 2019. IHS found thattotal number of light vehicles in operatiorthie U.S. has increased to record
levels, with new vehicle registrations outpacintpppage rates by more than 24%. We believe andsitrg vehicle base and rising
average age of vehicles will have a positive imacoverall aftermarket parts demand because woklgcles generally require more
repairs.

3. Growth of online sale3.he overall revenue from online sales of auto pamntsaccessories is expected to increase fron
billion in 2013 to $16.56 billion in 2020, accordito a forecast from Frost and Sullivan. Lower @si@and consumers' growing comfort
with digital platforms are driving the shift to amé sales. We believe that we are well positiomgdHe shift to online sales due to our
history of being a leading source for aftermarkébenotive parts through online marketplaces andchetwork of websites.

Our History. We were formed in Delaware in 1995 as a distdbof aftermarket auto parts and launched our fedbsite in 2000. We
rapidly expanded our online operations, increatiieghumber of SKUs sold through our e-commerce odtvwadding additional websites,
improving our Internet marketing proficiency androoencing sales in online marketplaces. AdditionatyAugust 2010, through our
acquisition of Whitney Automotive Group, Inc. (refed to herein as “WAG”"), we expanded our prodirgés and increased our customer re
in the do-it-yourself (“DIY”) automobile and off-eml accessories market.

International Operations In April 2007, we established offshore operationthe Philippines. Our offshore operations allosvto access
a workforce with the necessary technical skilla atgnificantly lower cost than comparably experiohU.S.-based professionals. Our offshor
operations are responsible for a majority of oubsiee development, catalog management, and baide agffipport. Our offshore operations i
house our main call center. We had 714 employetin
Philippines as of December 28, 2013 . We had 70di@yaes in the Philippines as of January 3, 20A% believe that the cost advantages of
our offshore operations provide us with the abiitygrow our business in a cost-effective manner.

AutoMD. On October 8, 2014, AutoMD entered into a commsimek purchase agreement to sell seven millioneshair AutoMD
common stock at a purchase price of $1.00 per ghahérd-party investors, reducing the Companyisership interest in AutoMD to 64.1%.

AutoMD's mission is to be the repair shop advofatell vehicle owners, increase their confidentéhie repair process and provide the
most affordable and high quality options for autdif@repair. AutoMD's current focus is on marketargd technology. AutoMD's current
marketing strategy involves driving growth in thegpair shop network. During 2014, marketing efagsulted in approximately 1,700 repair
shops joining AutoMD's network, rising from abo@d4repair shops in January 2014 to approximatdl@@at the end of fiscal 2014. AutoMD
now has repair shops patrticipating in 41 stateadufition to marketing, AutoMD continues to refithe online experience, including their
mobile presence.

E-commerceTo understand revenue generation through our n&tafoe-commerce websites, we monitor several kesjriass metrics,
including the following:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3, 2015 December 28, 2013 December 29, 2012
Unique Visitors (millions) 119.¢ 132.¢ 168.¢
E-commerce Orders (thousands) 2,01( 1,93¢ 2,42
Online Marketplace Orders (thousands) 1,04¢ 741 64¢
Total Online Orders (thousands) 3,05¢ 2,68( 3,07¢
E-commerce Average Order Value $ 111 % 11z % 114
Online Marketplace Average Order Value $ 66 $ 67 $ 77
Total Online Average Order Value $ 9% $ 9€¢ 3 10€
Revenue Capture 85.(% 83.2% 83.%
Conversiont 1.7% 1.5% 1.4%
! Excludes online marketplaces and media properigs AutoMD)
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Unique Visitors:A unigue visitor to a particular website representsser with a distinct IP address that visits faaticular website. We
define the total number of unique visitors in aggivmonth as the sum of unique visitors to eachuofae@bsites during that month. We measure
unique visitors to understand the volume of tratffi@ur websites and to track the effectivenessmuofonline marketing efforts. The number of
unique visitors has historically varied based esmumber of factors, including our marketing actedtiand seasonality. Included in the unique
visitors are mobile device based customers, whd@teming an increasing part of our business. ipiftonsumer behavior and technology
enhancements indicates that customers are becanurginclined to purchase auto parts through theibile devices. User sophistication and
technological advances have increased consumecttioas around the user experience on mobile deyincluding speed of response,
functionality, product availability, security, aedse of use. We believe enhancements to onlineé@@ispecifically catering to mobile based
shopping can result in an increase in the numberdsrs and revenues. We believe an increase queniisitors to our websites will result in
an increase in the number of orders. We seek tease the number of unique visitors to our webgiyesttracting repeat customers and
improving search engine marketing and other intemmarketing activities. During fiscal year 2014uy ainique visitors decreased by 9.9%
compared to the fiscal year 2013 . We expect tted tmmber of unique visitors in 2015 to marginafhprove, as we believe we have
addressed the challenges we experienced from chaegech engines have made to the formulas, orthligs, that they use to optimize their
search results, as described in further detail utidéxecutive Summary” below.

Total Number of OrdersiVe monitor the total number of orders as an indicaf future revenue trends. During the fiscal y2@t4 , the
total number of orders was up by 14.1% comparebddiscal year 2013 , with e-commerce and onlizeketplace orders improving by 4.1%
and 41.6%, respectively. We believe that e-commerders improved through an improved customer égpee and pricing strategies. We
believe that the increase in online marketplaceisrgvas primarily due to competitive pricing stggés. We expect the total number of orders
in 2015 to marginally improve over our results 2x14. We recognize revenue associated with an ariden the products have been delivered
consistent with our revenue recognition policy.

Average Order ValueAverage order value represents our net sales ¢acagorders basis for a given period of time didithy the total
number of orders recorded during the same periaiingf. During the fiscal year 2014 , our averagieovalue decreased by 3.0% compared t
the fiscal year 2013 . We expect this trend toiometin 2015 primarily due to increased
competition, as described in further detail undexécutive Summarfybelow. We seek to increase the average ordeevadua means of
increasing net sales. Average order values vargritipg upon a number of factors, including the congmts of our product offering, the order
volume in certain online sales channels, macro-@eon conditions, and the competition online.

Revenue CapturdRevenue capture is the amount of actual dollaesmed after taking into consideration returns, itreard declines and
product fulfilment. During the fiscal year 2014yr revenue capture increased by 1.7% to 85.0% amedpo 83.3% in fiscal year 2013 . The
increase in revenue capture was due to lower oradit declines and improved product fulfillmen2dil4 compared to 2013 . We expect our
revenue capture level to improve in 2015 as weicoatto improve our customers’ purchase experience.

Conversion:Conversion is the number of orders as a rate ttotiae number of unique visitors. This rate indesahow well we convert a
visitor to a customer sales order. During fiscary2014, our conversion improved by 0.2% to 1.7%gared to 1.5% in fiscal year 2013.

Executive Summary

For fiscal year 2014 , the Company generated et 84 $283,508 , compared with $254,753 for fisesdr 2013 , representing an
increase of 11.3% . Net loss for fiscal year 2054 %6,879 , or $0.21 per share. This comparesiéd loss of $15,634 , or $0.48 per share, for
fiscal year 2013 . We generated net income beftegast expense, net, income tax provision, degtieni and amortization expense and
amortization of intangible assets, plus share-basethensation expense, impairment loss and restimgtcosts (“Adjusted EBITDA") of
$7,903 in fiscal year 2014 compared to $6,00050di year 2013 . Adjusted EBITDA, which is not an@elly Accepted Accounting Principle
measure, is presented because such measure iByussthg agencies, securities analysts, investodsother parties in evaluating the
Company. It should not be considered, howevernadtarnative to operating income, as an indicatdhe Company’s operating performance,
or as an alternative to cash flows as measurdseed€ompany’s overall liquidity, as presented in@wnpany’s consolidated financial
statements. Further, the Adjusted EBITDA measuosvshmay not be comparable to similarly titled measwsed by other companies. Refer
to the table presented below for reconciliatiomef loss to Adjusted EBITDA.

Total revenues increased in fiscal year 2014 coetbtr the same period in 2013 primarily due to ghow our online sales. Our online
sales, which include our e-commerce, online mat&egpsales channels and online advertising, cangth90.7% of total revenues, and our
offline sales, which consist of our Kool-Vue™ antalesale operations, contributed 9.3% of total nees. Our online sales for fiscal year
2014 increased by $27,764 , or 12.1% , to $257¢cb@pared to $229,396 in
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fiscal year 2013 primarily due to a 14.1% increasthe total number of orders. Our offline salesr@ased by $992 , or 3.9% , to $26,349
compared to the same period last year. QuartevBnuge increased year-over-year in each quarted 4. 2Prior to the first quarter of fiscal
2014, year-oveyear quarterly revenue declined for six consecujivarters beginning in the third quarter of 2012e fighest decline occurr
during the first quarter of 2013 (25.2%) as comgdoethe first quarter of 2012, and the least mfthurth quarter of 2013 compared to the
fourth quarter of 2012 (5.0%). The table below prés quarterly revenues (in thousands) and thegehimnquarterly year-over-year revenues.
All quarters presented below represent thirteerkvpegiods with the exception of the quarter endatlary 3, 2015, which is a fourteen week
period.

Year over year quarterly sales trend

Quarter ended Net Sales Quarter ended Net sales % change
Sept. 29, 2012 $ 73,01 Oct 1, 2011 $ 78,59: (7.)%
Dec 29, 2012 $ 62,84¢ Dec 31, 2011 $ 77,23: (18.6%
Mar 30, 2013 $ 65,40: Mar 31, 2012 $ 87,43t (25.2)%
Jun 29, 2013 $ 67,88¢ Jun 30, 2012 $ 80,71¢ (15.9%
Sept. 28, 2013 $ 61,72¢ Sep 29, 2012 $ 73,01 (15.5)%
Dec 28, 2013 $ 59,73t Dec 29, 2012 $ 62,84¢ (5.0%
Mar 29, 2014 $ 68,02¢ Mar 30, 2013 $ 65,40¢ 4.C%
Jun 28, 2014 $ 76,94 Jun 29, 2013 $ 67,88¢ 13.2%
Sep 27,2014 $ 67,96¢ Sept. 28, 2013 $ 61,72« 10.1%
Jan 3, 2015 $ 70,56¢ Dec 28, 2013 $ 59,73t 18.1%

Like most e-commerce retailers, our success depamdsir ability to attract online consumers to wabsites and convert them into
customers in a cogtffective manner. Historically, marketing througtasch engines provided the most efficient oppotyuini reach millions o
on-line auto part buyers. We are included in seegshlts through paid search listings, where welmse specific search terms that will result
in the inclusion of our listing, and algorithmicasehes that depend upon the searchable contentrametrsites. Algorithmic listings cannot be
purchased and instead are determined and disptmjely by a set of formulas utilized by the seagnlgine. We have had a history of success
with our search engine marketing techniques, whale our different websites preferred positionsaarch results. But search engines, like
Google, revise their algorithms from time to timeain attempt to optimize their search results. &#@11, Google has released changes to
Google’s search results ranking algorithm aimeldteer the rank of certain sites and return othissnear the top of the search results based
upon the quality of the particular site as deteadiby Google. Google made additional updates throuigfiscal year 2012 and 2013. We were
negatively impacted by the changes in methodologhdéw Google displayed or selected our differeabsites for customer search results.
This reduced our unique visitor count which advigraéfected our financial results. Our unique \asitount decreased by 13.1 million, or
9.9%, for fiscal 2014 to 119.8 million unique vt compared to 132.9 million unique visitors figchl 2013. In 2012 and 2013 we believe we
were affected by search engine algorithm changegalthe use of our product catalog across multigdbsites. To address this issue we
consolidated to a significantly smaller number efsites to ensure unique catalog content. The tidaton resulted in fewer visitors in both
2013 and 2014 as websites continued to close. Henvbecause of the consolidation and improvementatalog content, orders increased in
2014. As we are significantly dependent upon seangfines for our website traffic, if we are unatol@ttract unique visitors, our business and
results of operations will be harmed.

Barriers to entry in the automotive aftermarketusity are low, and current and new competitorslaanch websites at a relatively low
cost. Due to a number of factors, including the n§online marketplaces, it is easier for a tiaddl offline supplier to begin selling online and
compete with us. These larger suppliers have atoeserchandise at lower costs, enabling themlt@saducts at lower prices while
maintaining adequate gross margins. Our finanesults were negatively impacted by the increasesl f competition. Our average order
value went down marginally by $4, or 3.0% , focéisyear 2014 to $95 compared to $99 in fiscal P€dr3 as a result of increased pricing
competition. Our current and potential customery decide to purchase directly from our suppliersnfhuing increased competition from «
suppliers that have access to products at loweegthan us could result in reduced sales, loweratipg margins, reduced profitability, loss
market share and diminished brand recognitiondifiton, some of our competitors have used and coajinue to use aggressive pricing
tactics. We expect that competition will furtheteinsify in the future as Internet use and onlin@mm@rce continue to grow worldwide. We t
a number of steps during 2014 to attempt to retlueselling prices of our products while increasimargins, which are discussed below.

Total expenses, which primarily consisted of cdstades and operating costs, increased in fiscal 814 compared to the same period
in 2013 . Components of our cost of sales and d¢ipgraosts are described in further detail undetBasis of Presentatiori below.
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Headcount decreased in fiscal year 2014 compargsctr year 2013 . Our employees at the end oéfigear 2014 decreased by about
4.7% to 983 compared to 1,032 at the end of figeat 2013 . Our employees in the Philippines deg@#o 704 at the end of fiscal year 2014
compared to 714 at the end of fiscal year 2013hérfirst half of 2014 , as part of our initiats/# reduce labor costs and improve operating
efficiencies in response to the challenges in thekatplace and general market conditions, we ratlooce workforce by 77 employees (for
additional detalils, refer tiNote 12-Restructuring Costsiif the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statementtided in Part I, Item 1 of this
report). Partially offsetting the decrease in heauht related to restructuring, we hired 28 emplsyesostly to support the additional inventory
volume at our two remaining warehouses. While weetend continue to undertake several initiativesaittinue to increase revenues, improve
gross margin and reduce the losses in 2015, fidhenward trend in our gross margin and net lossiicea in 2015, we may be required to
further reduce our labor costs. Excluding impairtredvarges and higher depreciation and amortizatidiscal year 2013, operating expenses
increased primarily due to higher fulfillment chasgand marketing spend related to higher salesnmlAs a percent of revenue, operating
expenses were favorable in fiscal 2014 compardéddal 2013 except for fulfillment expense.

In 2014, we made positive strides towards achieving aategic goals and in 2015 we will continue to perthese strategies to conti
our positive sales growth and improve gross prfile reducing operating costs as percent of sales:

. We expect to continue positive e-commerce grdwtiproviding unique catalog content and providisgter content on our
websites thereby improving our ranking on the deagsults. In addition, we intend improve mobil@leled websites to take
advantage of shifting consumer behaviors. We exgpézto increase unigue visitors to our website help us grow our
revenues. We expect revenue trends to remain po&iti2015.

. We continue to work to improve the website purchageerience for our customers by (1) helping ostamers find the par
they want to buy by reducing failed searches anceasing user purchase confidence; (2) selling rigitey customized
accessories by partnering with manufacturers tlllmuistom shopping experiences; (3) increasingraside across our sites
through improved recommendation engines; and (Ajpteting the roll out of high quality images andebs with emphasis
on accessory product lines. In addition, we intenduild mobile enabled websites to take advantdgifting consumer
behaviors. These efforts may increase the converaie of our visitors to customers, total numtfesrders and average
order value, repeat purchases and contribute toem@nue growth.

. We continue to work to becoming one of the bastprice options in the market. We will lower quiices by increasing
foreign sourced private label products as theygareerally less expensive and we believe providebealue for the
consumer. We expect this to improve the convenmsats for our visitors to our website, grow our newes and improve our
margins. We also plan to transition away from lowergin stock ship branded products and expangate label mix,
which provides higher margins.

. Increase product selection by being the firghtrket with new SKUs. We currently have over 4B,@€ivate label SKUs and
1.6 million branded SKUs in our product selectidre will seek to add new categories and expand xigtieg specialty
categories. We expect this to increase the totalb®u of orders and contribute to our revenue groftiitionally, we plan
to continue to maintain our inventory in stock piosi throughout the year to ensure improved senagels and customer
experience.

. Be the consumer advocate for auto repair througioMD.com. We will continue to devote resources tt@MD.com and it:
system development. We expect this to improve ocamdbrecognition and contribute to our revenue ginow

. Continue to implement cost saving measi

Overall, we expect revenue growth and reducedassel in 2015 compared to 2014, due to the iméiative have implemented.
However, if the revenue growth and reduced netelosge experienced in fiscal year 2014 do not castin 2015 and are more negative than
we expect, it could severely impact our liquidis/vae may not be able to provide positive cash flra operations in order to meet our
working capital requirements. We may need to boraoditional funds from our credit facility, whicmder certain circumstances may not be
available, sell additional assets or seek additiegaity or additional debt financing in the futuRefer to théLiquidity and Capital Resources
" section below for additional details. There canrm assurance that we would be able to raiseanditional financing or engage in such asse
sales on acceptable terms, or at all. If our netde continue for longer than we expect becaussti@iegies to return to profitability are not
successful or otherwise, and if we are not abkaite adequate additional financing or proceeds fisset sales to continue to fund our ong
operations, we will need to defer, reduce or elatérsignificant planned expenditures, restructarggnificantly curtail our operations.

28




As we redesign our approach to attracting custotmeosigh search engines, we hope to offset mutheoflecline in visitors to our e-
commerce sites by continuing to pursue revenue rgpities in third-party online marketplaces, a @mof which are growing significantly
each year. Auto parts buyers are finding thirdypartline marketplaces to be a very attractive emritent, for many reasons, the top four
being: (1) the security of their personal inforrati(2) the ability to easily compare product affgs from multiple sellers; (3) transparency
(consumers can leave positive or negative feedbbolt their experience); and (4) favorable priclgccessful selling in these third-party
online marketplaces depends on product innovatind,strong relationships with suppliers, both ofolitwe believe to be our core
competencies.

Adjusted EBITDA, which is not a Generally Accept&dcounting Principle measure, is presented becswsie measure is used by rating
agencies, securities analysts, investors and ptgies in evaluating the Company. It should notdesidered, however, as an alternative to
operating income, as an indicator of the Compaaptrating performance, or as an alternative to lasls as measures of the Company’s
overall liquidity, as presented in the Company’asmidated financial statements. Further, the Adjd€BITDA measure shown may not be
comparable to similarly titted measures used bgwotiompanies. The table below reconciles net mggljusted EBITDA for the periods
presented (in thousands):

Fifty-Two Fifty-Two
Fifty-Three Weeks Ended Weeks Ended
Weeks Ended December 28, December 29,
January 3, 2015 2013 2012

Consolidated

Net loss $ (7,080 $ (15,639 $ (35,979
Interest expense, net 1,101 972 774
Income tax provision (benefit) 13¢ 43 (937)
Amortization of intangibles 422 381 1,18¢
Depreciation and amortization 8,92: 12,17¢ 15,20«
EBITDA 3,49¢ (2,067) (29,749
Impairment loss on goodwill — — 18,85«
Impairment loss on property and equipment — 4,83 1,96(
Impairment loss on intangible assets — 1,24t 5,61:
Share-based compensation 2,371 1,26: 1,67:
Loss on debt extinguishment — — 36C
Legal costs related to intellectual property rights — — 67
Inventory write-down related to Carson clostire 897 — —
Restructuring cost® 1,13 723 64C
Adjusted EBITDA 7,90 6,00( 9,41¢
Add: AutoMD net loss 2,151 1,99( 2,32:
Less: AutoMD depreciation and amortization (1,699 (1,589 (1,056
Adjusted EBITDA attributable to Base USAP $ 8,361 $ 6,40 $ 10,68t

(1) We incurred restructuring costs related toioitiatives to reduce labor costs and improve apirg efficiencies in response to the
challenges in the marketplace and general marketitons. Refer tdNote 12 — Restructuring Costsif our Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements for additional details.

(2) As aresult of the closure of the Carson wawnsle, the Company expects that the remaining wasgisomay reach capacity constraints
when inventory levels peak in late winter/earlyisgr To mitigate this risk, the Company has redutedsales price of certain inventory
and incurred lower of cost or market adjustmen@nreffort to reduce inventory levels. Additionabeges were incurred related to
inventory that was not deemed economical to trariefthe remaining warehouses. RefetNote 12 — Restructuring Costsif our
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements fortewtdil details
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Basis of Presentation

Net SalesOnline and offline sales represent two differetésahannels for our products. We generate onktasaes primarily through
the sale of auto parts to individual consumersughoour network of e-commerce websites, which idetumobile based sales, and online
marketplaces, including online advertising. E-cormroaesales are derived from our network of websitddéch we own and operate. E-
commerce and online marketplace sales also in¢himrind telephone sales through our call centerstingports these sales channels. Online
marketplaces consist primarily of sales of our puizid on online auction websites, where we selluphoauctions as well as through storefronts
that we maintain on third-party owned websites. 3&k advertising and sponsorship positions on ecwramerce websites to highlight vendor
brands and offer complementary products and sexvic# benefit our customers. Advertising is tazddb specific sections of the websites
can also be targeted to specific users based orettieles they drive. Advertising partners primaiiiclude part vendors, national automotive
aftermarket brands and automobile manufacturers offline sales channel represents our distributibproducts directly to commercial
customers by selling auto parts to collision reghimps. Our offline sales channel also includeglisteibution of our KooWue™ mirror line tc
auto parts distributors nationwide. We also seoresumers by operating a retail outlet store in llaSHlinois.

Cost of SalesCost of salesonsists of the direct costs associated with pingyrarts from suppliers and delivering productsustomers
These costs include direct product costs, outbdaight and shipping costs, warehouse suppliesnardanty costs, partially offset by
purchase discounts and cooperative advertisingrd2egiion and amortization expenses are excluded @ost of sales and included in
marketing, general and administrative and fulfilihexpenses as noted below.

Marketing Expenséviarketing expense consists of online advertisirgnsp internet commerce facilitator fees and otldeettising costs
as well as payroll and related expenses associateeur marketing catalog, customer service anesspersonnel. These costs are generally
variable and are typically a function of net saMarketing expense also includes depreciation amoktization expense and share-based
compensation expense.

General and Administrative Expenskeneral and administrative expense consists piliynaradministrative payroll and related
expenses, merchant processing fees, legal andsprofal fees and other administrative costs. Géaarhadministrative expense also includes
depreciation and amortization expense and shamdlEsnpensation expense.

Fulfillment Expense Fulfillment expense consists primarily of payratid related costs associated with our warehoupéogees and our
purchasing group, facilities rent, building mairdane, depreciation and other costs associatedmwiéimtory management and our wholesale
operations. Fulfillment expense also includes shased compensation expense.

Technology Expens&echnology expense consists primarily of payrot eglated expenses of our information technologggenel, the
cost of hosting our servers, communications exypeand Internet connectivity costs, computer suppodtsoftware development amortization
expense. Technology expense also includes shaeebaspensation expense.

Amortization of Intangible Asset&\mortization of intangibles consists of the anmation expense associated with our definite-lived
intangible assets.

Impairment Loss Impairment loss is recorded as a result of intpairt testing performed for goodwill and indefiniiteed intangible
assets in accordance with ASC 350 Intangibles -d@&idband Other, and long-lived assets, includintangible assets subject to amortization,
in accordance with ASC 360 Property, Plant and Egent.

Other Income, Netther income, net consists of miscellaneous inconexpense such as gains/losses from dispositiassats, and
interest income comprised primarily of interestam® on investments.

Interest Expenselnterest expense consists primarily of interegie@se on our outstanding loan balance, deferneahding cost
amortization and capital lease interest.

Segment Datz

The Company operates in two reportable segmentsifidel as Base USAP, which is the core auto pgausness, and AutoMD, an online
automotive repair source of which the Companyrnisagority stockholder. Segment information is pregbon the same basis that our chief
executive officer, who is our chief operating demmismaker, manages the segments, evaluates finaesidts, and makes key operating
decisions. Management evaluates the performanite @perating segments based on net sales, groisgird loss from operations. The
accounting policies of the operating segmentsteesame as those describetiNiote 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Pol&ief our
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. Opgyaticome represents earnings before other incotegest expense and income taxes.
identifiable assets by segment disclosed in this are those assets specifically identifiable wittdich segment.
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Summarized segment information for our continuipgrations from the two reportable segments fop#réods presented is as follows

(in thousands):

Fiscal year ended January 3, 2015

Net sales

Gross profit

Operating costs (1)

Loss from operations

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Total assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Fiscal year ended December 28, 2013

Net sales

Gross profit

Operating costs (1)

Loss from operations

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Total assets, net of accumulated depreciation
Fiscal year ended December 29, 2012

Net sales

Gross profit

Operating costs (1)

Loss from operations

Capital expenditures

Depreciation and amortization

Total assets, net of accumulated depreciation

Base USAP AutoMD Consolidated

283,21: 297 $ 283,50¢
78,15 297 78,45(
81,881 2,47¢ 84,36:
(3,739 (2,17¢) (5,917)
4,237 1,31¢ 5,55¢
7,23( 1,69: 8,92:
74,41 8,49: $ 82,907
254,42 331 254,75:
73,80: 331 74,13
86,57¢ 2,321 88,90(
(22,777 (1,990 (14,767
6,297 2,02¢ 8,32t
10,67¢ 1,49¢ 12,17t
67,03¢ 2,14: 69,18:
303,66° 35C $ 304,01
91,28¢ 35C 91,63¢
125,04¢ 2,38( 127,42¢
(33,760) (2,030) (35,790)
8,547 1,60¢ 10,15t
13,47¢ 1,72¢ 15,20
86,81¢ 2,05¢ 88,87"

(1) Operating costs for AutoMD primarily consist of degiation on fixed assets and personnel ¢




Results of Operations

The following table sets forth selected stateméwiperations data for the periods indicated, exggedsas a percentage of net sales:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012

Net sales 100.(% 100.( % 100.C %
Cost of sales 72.% 70.¢ 69.¢
Gross profit 27.1 29.1 30.1
Operating expenses:

Marketing 14.¢ 16.1 16.¢

General and administrative 5.¢ 6.S 6.5

Fulfillment 7.2 7.3 7.3

Technology 1.7 2.C 2.1

Amortization of intangible assets 0.1 0.2 0.4

Impairment loss on goodwill — — 6.2

Impairment loss on property and equipment — 1.6 0.€

Impairment loss on intangible assets — 0.t 1.¢
Total operating expenses 29.7 34.¢ 41.€
Loss from operations (2.0 (5.9 (11.¢)
Other income (expense):

Other income, net — 0.1 —

Interest expense (0.9 (0.9 (0.2

Loss on debt extinguishment — — (0.7
Total other expense (0.9 0.3 (0.9
Loss before income taxes (2.9 (6.2) (12.7)
Income tax (benefit) provision — — (0.3
Net loss (2.9% (6.2)% (11.9%

Fifty-Three Weeks Ended January 3, 2015 Comparedhe Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 28, 2013

Net Sales and Gross Marg

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Net sales $ 283,50¢ $ 254,75; $ 28,75¢ 11.2%
Cost of sales 205,05! 180,62( 24,43t 135%
Gross profit $ 78,45( % 74,131 % 4,317 5.8%
Gross margin 27.1% 29.1% (1.9%

Net sales increased $28,755 , or 11.3% , for figeat 2014 compared to fiscal year 2013 . Our alessconsisted of online sales, which
included mobile based online sales, representing?®@f the total for fiscal year 2014 (compare®®0% in fiscal year 2013 ), and offline
sales, representing 9.3% of the total for fiscarn2014 (compared to 10.0% in fiscal year 201§ fiet sales increase was due to an increas
of $27,764 , or 12.1% , in online sales and a $3923.9% , increase in offline sales. Online saleseased primarily due to a 14.1f6rease i
number of orders.

Gross profit increased $4,317 , or 5.8% , in figesdr 2014 compared to fiscal year 2013 . Grosgimaecreased 1.4% to 27.7fwfiscal
year2014 compared to 29.1% in fiscal year 2013 . Greaggin primarily decreased in fiscal year 2014 cared to fiscal year 2013 due to
reduced margins from online sales. Our gross mangare negatively impacted by the factors describddrther detail under “Executive
Summary” above.
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Marketing Expens

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Marketing expense $ 42,00¢ % 41,048 % 963 2.23%
Percent of net sales 14.8% 16.1% (1.9%

Total marketing expense increased $963 , or 2.Rffiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 20a8declined as a percent of sales by
130 basis points due to more efficient marketingnshin fiscal year 2014. Online advertising expemggch includes catalog costs, was
$18,485, or 7.2%, of online sales for fiscal ye@t4£, compared to $16,619, or 7.2%, of online s@efiscal year 2013 . Online advertising
expense increased primarily due to increased orlicemmerce advertising and non-catalog advertisirsgs of $1,608. Marketing expense,
excluding online advertising, was $23,523, or 8.8%et sales for fiscal year 2014 , compared 426, or 9.6%, of net sales for fiscal year
2013 . Marketing expenses, excluding online adsiedi decreased primarily due to lower product ngangent wages and depreciation and
amortization expense.

General and Administrative Expense

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administrative expense $ 16,70: $ 17,567 $ (86€) (4.9%
Percent of net sales 5.€% 6.% (1.0%

General and administrative expense decreased $8669% , for fiscal year 2014 compared to figedr 2013 . The decrease for fiscal
year2014 as compared to fiscal year 2013 was primdriky to lower wages and overhead. The decreasearajeand administrative expense
was partially offset by greater merchant procesf@eg resulting from increased online sales duzioity.

Fulfillment Expens:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Fulfillment expense $ 20,36¢ % 18,70: $ 1,66¢ 8.€ %
Percent of net sales 7.2% 7.2% (0.2

Fulfillment expense increased $1,666 , or 8.9% fizal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 28h8 declined as a percent of sales dt
improving sales volume during 2014, which led tor@ased shipping costs and warehouse wages. Aalliiipwe incurred severance costs of
$414 and labor related and other restructuringggeof approximately $145 associated with the cs@iour Carson warehouse in 2014. The
increase in fulfilment expense was partially offlg lower depreciation and amortization expensm&bse of certain assets that were fully
depreciated after the third quarter of 2013 .
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Technology Expense

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Technology expense $ 486 $ 512¢ % (265) (5.2%
Percent of net sales 1.7% 2.C% (0.9%

Technology expense decreased $265 , or 5.2% isfml fyear 2014 compared to fiscal year 2013 .ddwease was primarily due to
lower telephone costs and computer support costsried in fiscal year 2014 compared to the fisezin2013 .

Amortization of Intangible Asse

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Amortization of intangible assets $ 42z % 381 $ 41 10.€%
Percent of net sales 0.1% 0.2% (0.)%

Amortization of intangibles increased by $41 , 0r82% , for fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal y2@t3 . The increase was primarily
due to the purchase of intangible assets durirglfiz014.

Impairment Loss on Property and Equipm

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Impairment loss on property and equipment $ — 9 483: % (4,837 (100.0%
Percent of net sales —% 1.S% (1.9%

Impairment loss on property and equipment consistésnon-cash impairment charge during fiscal y€d3for the excess of the carryi
value over the fair value of internally developeftware of $4,832. During fiscal 2014 there wereémpairment losses on property and
equipment. See further detail‘iNote 1- Summary of Significant Accounting Policzasl Nature of Operations’“Note 3 — Fair Value
Measuremen” and“Note 4- Property and Equipment, Netif the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerdisided in Part IV, Item 15 of
this report and undéCritical Accounting Policies and Estimatesection below.

Impairment Loss on Intangible Ass

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Impairment loss on intangible assets $ — 9 1,248  $ (1,245 (100.0%
Percent of net sales —% 0.5% (0.5%

Impairment loss on intangible assets consistsmafracash impairment charge during fiscal 2013 eelab certain intangible assets in the
amount of $1,245. During fiscal 2014 there werempairment losses on intangible assets. See fudiigil in1- Summary of Significant
Accounting Policies and Nature of Operati” , “Note 3 — Fair Value Measurementsind“Note 5- Intangible Assets, netif the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Rartem 15 of this report and und&Critical Accounting Policies and Estimatesection
below.
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Total Other Expense, Net

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Other expense, net $ (2,036 $ 829 $ 212 25.7%
Percent of net sales 0.4% 0.2% 0.1

Total other expense, net increased $212 , or 25fd¥iscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year 20I8tal other expense increased
during fiscal year 2014 compared to fiscal year2pdmarily due to increased interest expense. {@tieer detail in “Note 6 — Borrowings’df
the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statement&ydiecl in Part IV, Item 15 of this report).

Income Tax Provisio

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013 $ Change % Change

(in thousands)
Income tax provision $ 136 % 43 % 95 220.%%
Percent of net sales —% —% —%

We have a full valuation allowance against ourdederred income tax assets. In fiscal year 2014figndl 2013 , we recorded an
addition of $2,366 and $6,621, respectively, toinaome valuation allowance. Income tax expens0it4 and 2013 relate primarily to
deferred taxes related to earnings of our Philippisubsidiary (see below).

Income tax provision differs from the amount thaiud result from applying the federal statutoryeras follows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,

2015 December 28, 2013
Income tax at U.S. federal statutory rate $ (2,362 $ (5,307
Share-based compensation 33 43
State income tax, net of federal tax effect (143) (1,34
Foreign tax 117 7C
Other 127 (42)
Change in valuation allowance 2,36¢ 6,621
Effective income tax provision $ 136 $ 43

The Company’s effective tax rate was impacted lognme taxes incurred in foreign jurisdictions. Thedrable impact of foreign taxes
for fiscal year 2013 is due in large part to altakday in the Philippines, which was effectivedhgh September 2013. The Company does nc
expect to receive any future tax holidays. Accagtlinthe Philippines tax liability has been compgligssuming no tax holiday on the post
expiration earnings. The impact of this tax holidiegreased foreign taxes by $39 for fiscal yeaB20he benefit of the tax holiday on net |
per share was immaterial for the related years.

Prior to 2012, the Company treated earnings ofdhsign subsidiaries as permanently invested ihjthiésdiction. As a result, no
additional income tax withholding was provided ba possible future repatriation of these earninghé parent company in prior years.
During fiscal year 2012, based on current year atpeg and future cash flow needs the Company dddiut it could no longer represent that
these funds would be indefinitely reinvested infbreign jurisdictions but that such funds may lkeded for general corporate purposes. As &
result, the Company recorded future withholdingegawhich would be due if the funds are requirebdeoepatriated. The Company intends to
continue to pursue all reasonable means to inciitsasevestment in the foreign jurisdictions astdied by future growth in general business
activities or as allowed by the foreign jurisdictoto avoid incurring the income tax withholdingerse.

As of January 3, 2015the Company had no material unrecognized taxflisnimterest or penalties related to federal stade income te
matters. At January 3, 2015 , federal and statepetating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards were $57,558
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$73,610, respectively. Federal NOL carryforward$2690 were acquired in the acquisition of WAG atthare subject to Internal Revenue
Code section 382 and limited to an annual usagégliion of $135. Additionally, the tax benefit o4 % of the federal and state NOL
carryforwards which was created by the exercisgtafk options will be credited to additional pandeapital once recognized. Federal NOL
carryforwards begin to expire in 2029, while stidteL carryforwards begin to expire in 2015.

As a result of the October 8, 2014 sale transacAomoMD will no longer be included in the consalidd state and federal tax filings of
the Company. For the fiscal year ended Januar@ 1, 2he effective tax rate for AutoMD was (0.2)86itoMD's effective tax rate differs from
the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily as a ltesfithe recording of a $195 valuation allowangaiast the Company's net deferred tax asset:
At January 3, 2015, AutoMD had NOLs of approximate?,582 for federal tax purposes that begin tdrexp 2031. These amounts are
included in the consolidated figures presented abAutoMD state NOLs were not material as of JanB3a015.

Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 28, 2013 ComparetthéoFifty-Two Weeks Ended December 29, 2012

Net Sales and Gross Marg

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Net sales $ 254,75! $ 304,01° $ (49,269 (16.29%
Cost of sales 180,62( 212,37¢ (31,759 (15.0%
Gross profit $ 74,137 % 91,63¢ % (17,505 (19.9%
Gross margin 29.1% 30.1% (1.0%

Net sales decreased $49,264 , or 16.2% , for fiszal 2013 compared to fiscal year 2012 . Our alessconsisted of online sales,
representing 90.0% of the total for fiscal year20dompared to 91.8% in fiscal year 2012 ), antin&fsales, representing 10.0% of the total
for fiscal year 2013 (compared to 8.2% in fiscaiyB012 ). The net sales decrease was due toiaele€l$49,705, or 17.8%, in online sales,
partially offset by a $440, or 2.0%, increase fflilné sales. Included in the net sales decread® @% in fiscal year 2013 is a decrease in net
sales channels, excluding websites we retired #82®f 8.5%. Online sales decreased primarilytdue 21% reduction in unique visitors, a
20% reduction in total number of orders and a dedlh average order value by 2%. The overall deser@aunique visitors was due to a
reduction in customer traffic as a result of changearch engines made the algorithms that seagihesnuse to optimize their search results.

Gross profit decreased $17,505 , or 19.1% , irafigear 2013 compared to fiscal year 2012 . Gromgim rate decreased 1.0% to 29.1%
in fiscal year 2013 compared to 30.1% in fiscalry@@l2 . Gross margin decreased in fiscal year 20h3ared to fiscal year 2012 due to
reduced margins from online sales partially offsehigher margins on offline sales.

Marketing Expens

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Marketing expense $ 41,04 % 51,41¢ $ (10,377 (20.29)%
Percent of net sales 16.1% 16.% (0.9%

Total marketing expense decreased $10,371 , o#@20f@r fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscal yeat200nline advertising expense,
which includes catalog costs, was $16,619, or 76nline sales for fiscal year 2018ompared to $21,067, or 7.5%, of online saledisoal
year2012 . Online advertising expense decreased piyraue to reduced online e-commerce advertisingraotdcatalog advertising costs of
$4,448. Marketing expense, excluding online adsiengi, was $24,425, or 9.6%, of net sales for figealr 2013 , compared to $30,348, or
10.0%, of net sales for fiscal year 2012 . Markgtnpenses, excluding online advertising, decrepsathrily due to lower call center wages,
marketing overhead, depreciation and amortizatiggerse and stock-based compensation.
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General and Administrative Expense

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
General and administrative expense $ 17,567 $ 19,857 $ (2,290 (11.5%
Percent of net sales 6.% 6.5% 0.4%

General and administrative expense decreased $2¢#901.5% , for fiscal year 2013 compared todigear 2012 . The decrease for
fiscal year 2013 as compared to fiscal year 2012 pvenarily due to reduced merchant processingfesdting from lower online sales and
lower overhead.

Fulfillment Expens:

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Fulfillment expense $ 18,70: % 22,268 % (3,567) (16.0%
Percent of net sales 7.2% 7.2% — %

Fulfillment expense decreased $3,563 , or 16.086fjgcal year 2013 compared to fiscal year 20IBe decrease was primarily due to
lower shipments and revenues, lower depreciatignaamortization expense because of certain asste/ére fully depreciated after the third
quarter of 2012 and lower warehouse wages andesl#iso, severance charges were lower in fiseat Y013 compared to the prior fiscal
year.

Technology Expense

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Technology expense $ 512¢ % 6,27¢ % (1,14¢) (18.9%
Percent of net sales 2.(% 2.1% (0.)%

Technology expense decreased $1,146 , or 18.3#4is€al year 2013 compared to fiscal year 20TRchnology expense as a percen
of net sales remained consistent compared to theywar. The decrease was primarily due to lowlpthone expenses incurred in fiscal year
2013 compared to fiscal year 2012 .

Amortization of Intangible Asse

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Amortization of intangible assets $ 381 $ 1,18¢ $ (80¢) (68.0%
Percent of net sales 0.1% 0.4% (0.2%

Amortization of intangible assets decreased by $8088.0% , for fiscal year 2013 compared todigear 2012 . The decrease was
primarily due to certain intangible assets thatenerpaired in the fourth quarter of 2012. We reedrdnpairment losses on intangible assets
subject to amortization of $1,189, which reducealribt carrying amount of those intangible asseteto in the fourth quarter of 2012.
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Impairment Loss on Goodw

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Impairment loss on goodwill $ — 9 18,85 % (18,859 (100.0%
Percent of net sales —% 6.2% (6.2)%

Impairment loss on goodwill consists of a non-caspairment charge during the fourth quarter of 26i&r2he excess of the carrying
value over the implied fair value of goodwill inetlamount of $18,854. See further detail Mdte 1- Summary of Significant Accounting
Policies and Nature of Operatio” , “ Note 3 — Fair Value Measuremeritand “ Note 5- Intangible Assets, rfedf the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Part IV, Item 18hé report and under “Critical Accounting Poéisiand Estimates” section below.

Impairment Loss on Property and Equipm

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Impairment loss on property and equipment $ 483: % 1,96 $ 2,87: 146.5%
Percent of net sales 1.% 0.€% 1.3%

Impairment loss on property and equipment consist®n-cash impairment charge during fiscal yedr2for the excess of the carrying
value over the fair value of internally developeftware of $4,832. Impairment loss on property agdipment consists of a non-cash
impairment charge during fiscal year 2012 for tkeess of the carrying value over the fair valua duilding and internally developed website
and software development costs of $1,000 and $@68pectively. See further detail ilfNbte 1-Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Nature of Operation” , “ Note 3 — Fair Value Measuremeritand “ Note 4- Property and Equipment, Neif the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Part IV, Item 15 report and under “Critical Accounting Poéisiand Estimates” section below.

Impairment Loss on Intangible Ass

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Impairment loss on intangible assets $ 1,248  $ 561: $ (4,36%) (77.9%
Percent of net sales 0.5% 1.S% (1.9%

Impairment loss on intangible assets consistsnafrecash impairment charge during fiscal year 2013edl#o product design intellect
property and certain domain and trade names o#i$1/tnpairment loss on intangible assets consfst®n-cash impairment charge during
2012 related to certain intangible assets in theuarnof $5,613. See further detail inSummary of Significant Accounting Policies and Ne:
of Operations”, ‘Note 3 — Fair Value Measuremeritand “ Note 5- Intangible Assets, retf the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Part IV, Item 15 of this report and antiCritical Accounting Policies and Estimates” sea below.
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Total Other Expense, Net

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Other expense, net $ 824 % 1,128  $ (307) (26.9)%
Percent of net sales 0.2% 0.2% — %

Total other expense, net decreased $301, or 26d8%tscal year 2013 compared to fiscal year 200@al other expense decreased
during fiscal year 2013 compared to fiscal year2pdmarily due to loss on debt extinguishment & during the second quarter of 2012,
partially offset by higher interest expense. (Sether detail in ‘Note 6 — Borrowings of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Part IV, Item 15 of this report).

Income Tax Beneti

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, 2013 December 29, 2012 $ Change % Change
(in thousands)
Income tax provision (benefit) $ 43 937 $ 98C (104.6%
Percent of net sales —% (0.9% 0.2%

The Company has a full valuation allowance agaisstiet deferred income tax assets. In fiscal 843 and fiscal 2012, the Company
recorded an addition of $6,621 and $14,080, resmdygt to its valuation allowance. Income tax expein 2013 related primarily to deferred
taxes related to the earnings of its Philippindssiliary. In 2012, the effective income tax benstiims primarily from the reversal of the net
deferred income tax liability resulting from theiterdown of goodwill and other intangible assets] the impact of the Philippine tax holiday,
partially offset by the accrual of withholding taxeslated to potential repatriation of earningthim Philippines. The Company’s Philippine tax
holiday was effective through September 2013.

As of December 28, 2013, the Company had no materiacognized tax benefits, interest or penatidsted to federal and state income
tax matters.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Sources of Liquidity

During the fifty-three weeks ended January 3, 204B primarily funded our operations with cash aadh equivalents generated from
operations as well as through borrowing under oedit facility. We had cash and cash equivalent$79653 as of January 3, 2015,
representing a $6,835 increase from $818 of cadltash equivalents as of December 28, 2013 . T$teinarease was primarily due to the
$7,000 AutoMD cash investment from third party istegs reducing the Company's ownership intere84th%. Based on our current opera
plan, we believe that our existing cash and caslivaetents, investments, cash flows from operatims debt financing will be sufficient to
finance our operational cash needs through at tkastiext twelve months (see “Debt and Availabler®oing Resources” below).

As of January 3, 2015, our credit facility provided a revolving commitment of up to $40,000 subjeca borrowing base derived from
certain of our receivables, inventory and propartg equipment (see “Debt and Available Borrowingdeces” below).

In August 2014, we filed a shelf registration sta¢amt covering the offer and sale of up to $100 &0 mmon stock with the SEC. The
shelf registration was declared effective by th€SI August 20, 2014. The terms of any offeringarmalir shelf registration statement will be
determined at the time of the offering and disalbisea prospectus supplement filed with the SE@ 3lelf registration expires on August 20,
2017. Refer to Note 7 — Stockholders’ Equity and Share-Based Casgi®n“ of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemémtiided in
Part |, Item 1 of this report for additional degail
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On October 8, 2014, AutoMD entered into a commoglspurchase agreement to sell seven million starésitoMD common stock at
purchase price of $1.00 per share to third pastgstors reducing the Company’s ownership interestLitoMD to 64.1%. The proceeds from
the sale of AutoMD common stock will be used toduhe operating activities of AutoMD.

Working Capital

As of January 3, 2015 and December 28, 2013 , ouking capital was $14,645 and $9,761 , respegtiv@ur revolving loan does not
require principal payments, however it is classifés current due to certain U.S. GAAP requiremégs “Debt and Available Borrowing
Resources” below for further details). The histakeasonality in our business during the yearceaise cash and cash equivalents, inventory
and accounts payable to fluctuate, resulting imgka in our working capital.

Cash Flows

The following table summarizes the key cash flowtriog from our consolidated statements of cashd$léov fiscal year 2014 , 2013 and
2012 , respectively (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012
Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities $ 1,24 % 867 $ (400
Net cash used in investing activities (5,730 (8,339 (7,179
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities 11,31 7,21¢ (1,73¢)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash 11 41 9
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ 6,83t $ (212) $ (9,30%)

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities is primadbmprised of net loss, adjusted for non-cash digs/such as depreciation and
amortization expense, amortization of intangiblsets impairment losses and share-based compensapense. These non-cash adjustment:
represent charges reflected in net loss and, threxetb the extent that non-cash items increaskearease our operating results, there will be n
corresponding impact on our cash flows. Net logssted for non-cash adjustments to operating aets/ivas $4,689 (adjusted for non-cash
charges primarily consisting of depreciation andeimation expense of $8,923 ) for the period endfatuary 3, 2015 compared to $4,398
(adjusted for non-cash charges primarily consistihignpairment losses of $6,077 and depreciatiahamortization expense of $12,175 ) for
the period ended December 28, 2013 .

Net loss adjusted for non-cash adjustments to tipgractivities was $4,398 (adjusted for non-cdsérges primarily consisting of
impairment losses of $6,077 and depreciation anarézation expense of $12,175) for the period eridedember 28, 2013 compared to
$8,161 (adjusted for non-cash charges primarilysimg of impairment losses of $26,427 and depti&ni and amortization expense of
$15,204) for the period ended December 29, 201trAfkcluding the effects of the non-cash charthesprimary changes in cash flows
relating to operating activities resulted from op@sin operating assets and liabilities.

. Accounts receivable decreased to $3,804 at 3ai3u2015 from $5,029 at December 28, 2013 , tiegpin a decrease in
operating assets and reflecting a cash inflow 228 for the fiscal year ended January 3, 2015coAnts receivable
decreased primarily due to the closure of the Gavgarehouse and the related accounts receivaleiatsd with offline
sales processed through the Carson warehouse. #tsa@ceivable decreased to $5,029 at Decemb&028, from $7,431 at
December 29, 2012, resulting in a decrease in tipgrassets and reflecting a cash inflow of $2 #03he fiscal year ended
December 28, 2013. Accounts receivable decreaseadully due to lower revenues.

. Inventory increased to $48,362 at January 35Zfm $36,986 at December 28, 2013 , resultingniincrease in operating
assets and reflecting a cash outflow of $11,37@Herfiscal year ended January 3, 2015 . Inverdegreased to $36,986 at
December 28, 2013 from $42,727 at December 29,,2@%8lting in a decrease in operating assetseftfetting a cash
inflow of $5,740 for the fiscal year ended Decembgr2013.

. Accounts payable and accrued expenses incréas8,109 at January 3, 2015 compared to $25,6R@@ember 28, 2013
resulting in an increase in operating liabilitieslaeflecting a cash inflow of $7,481 for
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the fiscal year ended January 3, 2015 . Accountalga and accrued expenses increased primarilyadilne increase in
accounts payable of $5,693 , a $733 increase iuadanarketing and a $602 increase in payrolledlaiccruals. Accounts
payable and accrued expenses decreased to $25 B28ember 28, 2013 compared to $38,510 at Decefther012
resulting in a decrease in operating liabilitied agflecting a cash outflow of $11,833 for the fikgear ended December 28,
2013 and unpaid accruals for asset purchases apény acquired under capital leases of $1,0670kts payable and
accrued expenses decreased primarily due to threaterin accounts payable of $8,356.

. Other current liabilities decreased to $3,503aatuary 3, 2015 compared to $3,682 at Decemb&(23, , resulting in a
decrease in operating liabilities and reflectincpah outflow of $177 for the fiscal year ended day3, 2015 . Other current
liabilities decreased due to decreases in defeenat] deferred revenues and customer depositsr Qdineent liabilities
decreased to $3,682 at December 28, 2013 compaft/ 138 at December 29, 2012, resulting in a daserén operating
liabilities and reflecting a cash outflow of $1,0f6 the fiscal year ended December 28, 2013. Gtheent liabilities
decreased due to decreases in sales returns defevenues and customer deposits.

Investing Activitie:

For the fiscal years ended January 3, 2015 andrbleee28, 2013 , net cash used in investing aawitvas primarily the result of
increases in property and equipment ($5,556 ar@P$8respectively). Property and equipment is priljmanternally developed software.
Capitalized costs include amounts directly relatediebsite and software development, primarily plyand payroll related costs for
employees and outside contractors who are dirasipciated with and devote time to the internalsa$evare project. We expect our capital
expenditures to be flat or slightly higher in fisg@15 compared to fiscal 2014.

For the fiscal year ended December 29, 2012, rs#t gaed in investing activities was primarily theult of increases in property and
equipment of $10,155, partially offset from netgeeds received from the sales of our investmers8df71. Property and equipment is
primarily internally developed software.

Financing Activities

For the fiscal year ended January 3, 2015 , nét passided by financing activities was primarilyedto gross proceeds of $7,000
received from the sale of 35.9% of AutoMD's outdiag common stock and the net draws made on dwmhtintg $4,248. For the fiscal year
ended December 28, 2013, net cash provided bgding activities was primarily due to gross proceezteived from the issuance of Series A
Preferred of $6,017 and common stock of $2,235,padeeds from the sale leaseback of our LaSélis facility for $9,584, partially
offset by the net payments made on debt, totalthd4y (see further discussion ilDébt and Available Borrowing Resourceselow).

For the fiscal year ended December 29, 2012, reft gsed in financing activities was primarily tesult of payments made on debt,
totaling $28,384, which included the payoff of guevious term loan balance of $17,875 and payrmantsur new revolving loan of $10,509,
partially offset by the proceeds received from mwolving loan of $26,731.

Debt and Available Borrowing Resourc

Total debt (primarily comprised of a revolving lopayable of $11,022 , discussed further below,capital leases of $9,539 ) was
$20,561 as of January 3, 2015, compared to $1§E#Barily comprised of a revolving loan payabfe$6,774 , discussed further below, and
capital leases of $9,771 ) as of December 28, 2013

The Company maintains an asset-based revolvingt daedlity that provides for, among other thingstevolving commitment in an
aggregate principal amount of up to $25,000 , wiscsubject to a borrowing base derived from centaceivables, inventory and property and
equipment. Upon satisfaction of certain conditiaghe, Company has the right to increase the revgleammitment to up to $40,000 . The
Company, to date, has not requested any such sege@he credit facility matures on April 26, 2017

On August 4, 2014, the Company, certain of its dstinesubsidiaries and JPMorgan entered into a RAmiended Credit Agreement
amending the Credit Agreement to, among other thiaghend certain definitions to allow for additibadd-backs to adjusted EBITDA for
fiscal quarters ended June 28, 2014 and Septenib@024.

On October 8, 2014, the Company, certain of its ektio subsidiaries and JPMorgan entered into & Riftendment to Credit Agreeme
and First Amendment to Pledge and Security Agre¢émdrich amended the Credit Agreement previoustgread into by the Company, cert:
of its domestic subsidiaries and JPMorgan on A36il2012 and the Pledge and Security Agreementquely entered into by the Company,
certain of its domestic subsidiaries and JPMorgaApril 26, 2012. Pursuant to the Amendment, JPMorgcreased its revolving commitm
from $20,000 to $25,000, which is subject to a twing base derived from certain receivables, inmentproperty and pledged cash. In
addition, the Company’s ability to
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perform certain contingent obligations set forthlia documents executed in connection with thelrase Agreement is dependent on the
Company satisfying certain contractual and findrteists, including, without limitation, (i) with spect to the purchase of two million shares o
AutoMD common stock described above, the Comparinhaexcess availability to borrow under the Créditeement of at least $4 million
and the satisfaction of a minimum fixed charge cage ratio of 1.25:1.0, (ii) with respect to thembursement of certain intellectual property
litigation expenses incurred by AutoMD, which then@pany could be required to do for a period ofg¢hrears, the Company having excess
availability to borrow under the credit agreemeinatdeast $4 million, and (iii) with respect teetiCompany electing to purchase AutoMD
common stock in connection with certain transferspermitted under an investor rights agreemerdredtinto by the Company or AutoMD
electing to exercise its option to repurchase shafés common stock under specific circumstarasesontemplated by such investor rights
agreement, the Company having excess availahdlibotrow under the credit agreement of at leashiigon and the satisfaction of a minimt
fixed charge coverage ratio of 1.25:1.0. In additicertain definitions were amended to allow fadiidnal add-backs to adjusted EBITDA for
fiscal quarters ended September 27, 2014 and Ja8udf15.

The Company entered into a sixth amendment toréditdfacility effective January 2, 2015. Pursuamthe Amendment, the following
amendments to the Credit Agreement were made, aotbegs:

* The net orderly liquidation value inventory advanae was increased from 85% to 90%.

« The Company’s required excess availability edab the “Covenant Testing Trigger Period” (asrdsf under the Credit
Agreement) under the revolving commitment underGhedit Agreement was reduced to less than $2,@00 fess than $4,000
for the period commencing on any day that exceasahility is less than $2,000 and continuing usiitess availability has
been greater than or equal to $2,000 for 45 cotisecdays.

» The period during which the Company is subjed fixed charge coverage ratio begins after JOn@@16 and the applicable
testing period would begin for a 5 month periodiegdvay 31, 2016 or fiscal year 2016 rather thdarading twelve month
period. The full trailing twelve month testing pettiwould begin with the twelve month period endbecember 31, 2016.

» Certain negative covenants applicable to the @omw and AutoMD, Inc. (“AutoMD”), a subsidiary dfé¢ Company, related to
certain contractual and financial tests to perhet€ompany and AutoMD to consummate certain ohtigatset forth in the
agreements entered into by the Company and AutoRlDatober 8, 2014 (the “Financing Documents”) inrection with the
sale of AutoMD common stock to certain investohe (tAutoMD Financing”) have been revised wheredhailability
requirements are no longer applicable until aftereJ30, 2016 and further revised reducing the albiity requirement to
$2,000 before and after giving effect to the consation of such obligations. A summary of the Finagdocuments and the
AutoMD Financing were disclosed by the Company @uarent Report on Form 8-K filed with the Secestiand Exchange
Commission on October 9, 2014.

» The trigger, requiring the Company to providet@ia reports under the Credit Agreement, relatingxcess availability under
the revolving commitment under the Credit Agreembas been reduced to less than $4,000 from lassi$,000 and
continuing until excess availability has been geetttan or equal to $4,000 for 45 consecutive days.

Loans drawn under the Credit Facility bear interasthe Company’s option, at a per annum rateldgqugther (a) one month LIBOR
plus an applicable margin of 2.25% , or (b) anefadate base rate” plus an applicable margin of%8.25ubsequent to June 30, 2016, each
applicable margin as set forth in the prior sengégscsubject to reduction by up to 0.50% per anbased upon the Company’s fixed charge
coverage ratio. At January 3, 2015 , the Compan\BOR based interest rate was 2.44% (on $11,00cfwal) and the Company’s prime
based rate was 3.50% (on $22 principal). A commitnfige, based upon undrawn availability under tieglit facility bearing interest at a rate
of 0.25% per annum, is payable monthly. Underténes of the credit facility, cash receipts aread#ed into a lock-box, which are at the
Company’s discretion unless the “cash dominionquBris in effect, during which cash receipts widl bsed to reduce amounts owing under th
Credit Agreement. The cash dominion period is &iggl in an event of default or if excess availgbi$ less than $4,000 at any time, as
defined, and will continue until, during the preteg45 consecutive days, no event of default ediated excess availability has been greater
than $4,000 at all times. The Company’s excesdahiiy was $8,329 at January 3, 2015 . Also aMafch 12, 2015, our excess availability
was $7,189 and our outstanding revolving loan lizdamas $12,698. As of the date hereof, the cashirdmmperiod has not been in effect;
accordingly no principal payments are currently.due

Certain of the Company’s domestic subsidiariescarborrowers (together with the Company, the “Baecs”) under the Credit
Agreement, and certain other domestic subsidiarieguarantors (the “Guarantors” and, together thighBorrowers, the “Loan Partiesihder
the Credit Agreement. The Borrowers and the Guararare jointly and severally liable for the Borerw' obligations under the Credit
Agreement. The Loan Parties’ obligations underGhedit Agreement are secured, subject to custopemyitted liens and certain exclusions,
by a perfected security interest in (a) all tangihd
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intangible assets and (b) all of the capital stmeked by the Loan Parties (limited, in the castodign subsidiaries, to 65% of the capital
stock of such foreign subsidiaries). The Borrowaes voluntarily prepay the loans at any time widyment of a premium equal to the
aggregate revolving commitments multiplied by 0.5%uch termination of the commitments occurs ptmdanuary 2, 2016. If prepayment
occurs after January 2, 2016 no premium is requirbd Borrowers are required to make mandatorygymeents of the loans (without paym

of a premium) with net cash proceeds received tipemmccurrence of certain “prepayment events,” Wimclude certain sales or other
dispositions of collateral, certain casualty ora@®mnation events, certain equity issuances oralamntributions, and the incurrence of certair
debt.

The Credit Agreement contains customary representatind warranties and customary affirmative aeghtive covenants applicable to
the Company and its subsidiaries, including, anathgr things, restrictions on indebtedness, likmgjamental changes, investments,
dispositions, prepayment of other indebtednessgensy and dividends and other distributions.

The period during which the Company is subject tixed charge coverage ratio begins after Jun2806 and the applicable testing
period would begin for a five month period endingyB1, 2016 or fiscal year 2016 rather than aitigiwelve month period. The full trailing
twelve month testing period would begin with theelve month period ending December 31, 2016. Dutegperiod when the Company is not
subject to a fixed charge coverage ratio an “Avalily Block” (as defined under the Credit Agreeneof $2,000 will be in effect, and
thereafter the “Availability Block” will be eliminted. Beginning July 1, 2016, in the event that &sgavailability” &s defined under the Cre
Agreement) is less than $2,000, the Company skalkfuired to maintain a minimum fixed charge cagerratio of 1.0 to 1.0. Events of
default under the Credit Agreement include: failtwéimely make payments due under the Credit Agesd; material misrepresentations or
misstatements under the Credit Agreement and otteied agreements; failure to comply with covesamider the Credit Agreement and ot
related agreements; certain defaults in respecthafr material indebtedness; insolvency or othiated events; certain defaulted judgments;
certain ERISA-related events; certain securityrggés or liens under the loan documents cease, tur laee challenged by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries as not being, in full force affict; any loan document or any material provisié the same ceases to be in full force and
effect; and certain criminal indictments or coniios of any Loan Party. As of January 3, 2015 QGbenpany was in compliance with all
covenants under the Credit Agreement.

Our Credit Facility requires us to satisfy certirancial covenants which could limit our ability teact to market conditions or satisfy
extraordinary capital needs and could otherwisgicesur financing and operations. If we are uestol satisfy the financial covenants and test
at any time, we may as a result cease being aliertow under the Credit Facility or be requirednonediately repay loans under the Credit
Facility, and our liquidity and capital resourceslability to operate our business could be seyémgbacted, which would have a material
adverse effect on our financial condition and ressof operations. In those events, we may needltadditional assets or seek additional ec
or additional debt financing or attempt to modifyr @xisting Credit Agreement. There can be no asse that we would be able to raise such
additional financing or engage in such asset salescceptable terms, or at all, or that we wouldlie to modify our existing Credit
Agreement.

As of January 3, 2015 , the Company had total ablgiases payable of $9,539 . The present valtieeafiet minimum payments on
capital leases as of January 3, 2015 is as follows:

Total minimum lease payments $ 18,52(
Less amount representing interest (8,98))
Present value of net minimum lease payments 9,53¢
Current portion of capital leases payable 26¢
Capital leases payable, net of current portion $ 9,27(

See additional information ifNote 6 — Borrowings”of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemerdisided in Part IV, Item 15 of
this report.

Funding Requiremen

Based on our current operating plan, we believedhaexisting cash, cash equivalents, investmeatsh flows from operations and
available debt financing will be sufficient to fimee our operational cash needs through at leastetkitwelve months. Our future capital
requirements may, however, vary materially froms#haow planned or anticipated. Changes in our @ipgrplans, lower than anticipated net
sales or gross margins, increased expenses, cedtaruvorsened economic conditions, worsening dipgraerformance by us, or other
events, including those described in “Risk Factamsfuded in
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Part Il, Item 1A may force us to sell additionasets and seek additional debt or equity finanainté future. We may need to issue additiona
common stock under our shelf registration, disadisg®ve. There can be no assurance that we wouwdtlbdo raise such additional financing
or engage in such additional asset sales on addep&ms, or at all. If we are not able to raidecquate additional financing or proceeds from
additional asset sales, we will need to defer, cedar eliminate significant planned expenditurestructure or significantly curtail our
operations.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no significant off-balance sheet arrangésnen

Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth our contractual cabligations and commercial commitments as of Jgn8a2015 :

Payment Due By Period (in thousands)

Less than More than
Contractual Obligations: Total 1 year 1-3 years 3-5years 5years
Principal payments on revolving loan payable $ 11,02: $ — ¢ 11,02: $ — 3 =
Interest payments on revolving loan payaBle 62¢ 271 357 —
Operating lease obligatioffs 2,06t 1,27¢ 78€ — —
Capital lease obligatiort§ 18,52( 1,00¢ 1,87 1,84: 13,79:
Q) Amounts represent the expected principal pastments relating to our debt and do not includefain value adjustments or

discounts and premiums. Our outstanding debt isocimed of a revolving loan which currently has mimgipal payment
requirements, and matures in April 2017. The ppaktoutstanding balance at January 3, 2015 is preduo be the amount due
April 2017. See additional information in “Liquigitnd Capital Resources — Debt and Available BoimgWresources” above.

(2) Amounts represent the expected interest cagiments relating to our revolving loan balanceaatuary 3, 2015. The principal
outstanding balance and the interest rates prevalelanuary 3, 2015 were used to calculate theated future interest paymer

) Commitments under operating leases relategriiynto our leases on our principal facility iniSan, California, our distribution
centers in Chesapeake, Virginia and La Salle,ditinand our call center in the Philippines.

4 Commitments under capital leases includeghsé for our LaSalle distribution facility and qauent lease agreements which

include interest.

Seasonality

We believe our business is subject to seasondlfitions. We have historically experienced higlaes of body parts in winter months
when inclement weather and hazardous road conditigrically result in more automobile collisionsidine parts and performance parts and
accessories have historically experienced higHes $ia the summer months when consumers have limoeetd undertake elective projects to
maintain and enhance the performance of their apitdles and the warmer weather during that timeisdeicive for such projects. We expect
the historical seasonality trends to continue teeteamaterial impact on our financial condition aesults of operations during the reporting
periods in any given year.

Inflation

Inflation has not had a material impact upon oweraping results, and we do not expect it to hawd sun impact in the near future. We
cannot assure you that our business will not becedtl by inflation in the future.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See “Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Poliaied Nature of Operationsif the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
included in Part IV, Item 15 of this report.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our consolidated financial statements have beguaped in accordance with accounting principles galyeaccepted in the United
States. The preparation of our financial statemegaires us to make estimates and assumptionaffeat the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, net sales, costs and expenses, asasgdlie disclosure of contingent assets and li@siland other related disclosures. On an ongoin
basis, we evaluate our estimates, including, butimited to, those related to

44




revenue recognition, uncollectible receivableseirery, valuation of deferred tax assets and ligds| intangible and other long-lived assets
and contingencies. We base our estimates on luat@xperience and on various other assumptionswh®elieve to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the bfsisnaking judgments about carrying values of @asess and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results coiffdrdrom those estimates, and we include anysiewis to our estimates in our results for the
period in which the actual amounts become known.

We believe the critical accounting policies desedifbelow affect the more significant judgments asiiimates used in the preparation of
our consolidated financial statements. Accordintitgse are the policies we believe are the mastalrio aid in fully understanding and
evaluating our historical consolidated financiahdibion and results of operations:

Revenue RecognitioWe recognize revenue from product sales and shipeivenues, net of promotional discounts and return
allowances, when the following four revenue rectignicriteria are met: persuasive evidence of aangement exists, both title and risk of
or damage have transferred, the selling pricexedfior determinable, and collectability is reasdyalssured. The Company retains the risk of
loss or damage during transit, therefore, revenum product sales is recognized at the deliverg ttathe customer. Return allowances, whict
reduce product revenue by the Company’s best etiofeexpected product returns, are estimated usstgrical experience.

Revenue from sales of advertising is recorded wieggformance requirements of the related advertigsingram agreement are met.

We evaluate the criteria of ASC 605-RBvenue Recognition Principal Agent Consideratiordetermining whether it is appropriate to
record the gross amount of product sales and tetaists or the net amount earned as commissiomer&@ly, when the Company is the
primary party obligated in a transaction, the Conypia subject to inventory risk, has latitude itedishing prices and selecting suppliers, or
has several but not all of these indicators, reegauecorded at gross.

Payments received prior to the delivery of goodsustomers are recorded as deferred revenue.

We periodically provide incentive offers to our tarsers to encourage purchases. Such offers incluidtent discount offers, such as
percentage discounts off of current purchases #ret similar offers. Current discount offers, wrestepted by our customers, are treated as
reduction to the sales price of the related tratiwac

Sales discounts are recorded in the period in witiehrelated sale is recognized. Sales return athoes are estimated based on historice
amounts and are recorded upon recognizing theetkatles. Credits are issued to customers fomedysroducts.

Fair Value Measurement8Ve account for fair value measurements in accomavith ASC Topic 82Fair Value Measurements and
Disclosures(*ASC 820"), which defines fair value, providesrarhework for measuring fair value and providesdiselosure requirements for
fair value measurements. ASC 820 also establisiie®e-tier fair value hierarchy, which prioritizé® inputs used in measuring fair value.
These tiers include: Level 1 - defined as obsessaiputs such as quoted prices in active marketeel2 - defined as inputs other than quotec
prices in active markets that are either directljndirectly observable; and Level 3 - defined ashservable inputs in which little or no market
data exists, therefore requiring an entity to depeéls own assumptions.

Inventory.Inventory consists of finished goods availablegate. We purchase inventory from suppliers bothekiially and
internationally, primarily in Taiwan and China. Welieve that our products are generally availatdenfmore than one supplier, and we
maintain multiple sources for many of our produbtsth internationally and domestically. We offdiraad line of auto parts for automobiles,
trucks, motorcycles and recreational vehicles froadel years 1965 to 2014. Because of the contideetand for our products, we primarily
purchase products in bulk quantities to take achgmbf quantity discounts and to ensure inventeajiability.

Inventory is accounted for using the first-in fimit (“FIFO”) method and valued at the lower of tosmarket value. During this
valuation, we are required to make judgments abrpécted disposition of inventory, generally, tilgbsales, returns to product vendors, or
liquidations of obsolete or scrap products, anceetqu recoverable values of each disposition cagdzgsed on currently-available
information. If actual market conditions are leagdrable than those anticipated by managementiaali write-down of the value of our
inventory may be required.

Website and Software Development Casts.capitalize certain costs associated with softvagveloped for internal use according to
ASC Topic 350-40intangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-Use t8aifre (“ASC 350-40"), and ASC Topic 350-50itangibles -Goodwiill
and Other — Website Development CgASC 350-50"). Under these provisions, we capialcosts associated with website development an
software developed for internal use when both tleéirpinary project

45




design and testing stage are completed and managéaeauthorized further funding for the projedtjch it deems probable of completion
and to be used for the function intended. Capéalizosts include amounts directly related to welgtvelopment and software development
such as payroll and payroll-related costs for eygs who are directly associated with, and who tetime to, the internal-use software
project. Capitalization of these costs ceases wiineproject is substantially complete and readyitfointended use. These amounts are
amortized on a straight-line basis over two toehyears once the software is placed into service.

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibl&8e acquire tangible and intangible assets in themabcourse of business. We evaluate the
recoverability of the carrying amount of these ldwgd assets whenever events or changes in cirteunoss indicate that the carrying value of
an asset may not be recoverable in accordanceA&it Topic 360-Property, Plant, and Equipme(itASC 360”"). Management assesses
potential impairments whenever events or changeséumstances indicate that the carrying valuarodsset may not be recoverable. An
impairment loss will result when the carrying vakieeeds the undiscounted cash flows estimatezstdtifrom the use and eventual
disposition of the asset. We continually use judginreghen applying these impairment rules to deteentiire timing of the impairment tests,
undiscounted cash flows used to assess impairmerdghe fair value of a potentially impaired as¥ée reasonableness of our judgments
could significantly affect the carrying value ofrdang-lived assets. As of January 3, 201Be Company identified adverse events relatebe
Company's financial performance, including a dowrdateend in gross margin, and continued operatisgés, which indicated property and
equipment and intangibles subject to amortizati@y mot be recoverable. The Company performed impait testing under the provisions of
ASC 360 and after performing step 1, the Compangrdened property and equipment was not impaireof danuary 3, 2015. For fiscal year
2013, we recorded impairment charges on propedyegnipment and intangibles subject to amortizatio®4,832 and $1,245, respectively.
For fiscal year 2012, we recorded impairment chaageproperty and equipment and intangibles sulbjeginortization of $1,960 and $5,613,
respectively. Any further reduction in the fair walof long-lived assets will result in additionadgairment charges.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangible¥/e account for goodwill under the guidance sehfartASC Topic 350intangibles —
Goodwill and Othe*ASC 350"), which specifies that goodwill and irfoéte-lived intangibles should not be amortizede Wave historically
evaluated goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibfes impairment on an annual basis or more fregueéhévents or circumstances occur that
would indicate a reduction in fair value. The godtimpairment test is a two-step impairment tdsie first step compares the fair value of
each reporting unit with its carrying amount inghglgoodwill. We estimate the fair value of theagmg unit based on the income approach,
which utilizes discounted future cash flows. Asstions critical to the fair value estimates under tliscounted cash flow model include
discount rates, cash flow projections, projectedjtterm growth rates and the determination of teatmvalues. The market approach is used a
a test of reasonableness to corroborate the inemmeach. The market approach utilized market plekiof invested capital from publicly
traded companies in similar lines of business. Maeket multiples from invested capital include mwes, total assets, book equity plus debt
and EBITDA. In fiscal year 2012, we recorded impant charges on goodwill of $18,854 and impairnobiarges on other indefinite-lived
intangibles of $3,894. Subsequent to those writerdp the carrying value of goodwill and indefiniteed intangibles was zero.

Income TaxesThe Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC Topic 740ncome Taxe§'ASC 7407). Under ASC 740,
deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognfi@aethe future tax consequences attributable tgptaary differences between the financial
statement carrying amount of existing assets atulities and their respective tax bases. Defetagdissets and liabilities are measured using
enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxablarirda the years in which those temporary differsrae expected to be recovered or settled.
When appropriate, a valuation reserve is estallisheeduce deferred tax assets, which includertagits and loss carry forwards, to the
amount that is more likely than not to be realiZEe ability to realize deferred tax assets depende ability to generate sufficient taxable
income within the carryback or carryforward perigaevided for in the tax law for each applicable jirisdiction. We consider the following
possible sources of taxable income when assedséngalization of our deferred tax assets:

. Future reversals of existing taxable temporaryedéhces

. Future taxable income exclusive of reversing terapodifferences and carryforwar
. Taxable income in prior carryback years;

. Taxplanning strategie

The assessment regarding whether a valuation atloavis required or should be adjusted also corsi@enong other matters, the nature.
frequency and severity of recent losses, foreaddtgture profitability, the duration of statutocarryforward periods, our experience with tax
attributes expiring unused and tax planning altiévaa. In making such judgments, significant weiighgiven to evidence that can be
objectively verified.
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Concluding that a valuation allowance is not reegiiis difficult when there is significant negatié@dence that is objective and
verifiable, such as cumulative losses in recentsyé&le utilized a three-year analysis of actualltesas the primary measure of cumulative
losses in recent years. However, because a sulbstartion of those cumulative losses relate tpaimment of intangible assets and goodwill,
those three-year cumulative results are adjustethéeffect of these items. In addition, the naad medium-term financial outlook is
considered when assessing the need for a valuatmmance.

The valuation of deferred tax assets requires judrand assessment of the future tax consequehegerds that have been recorded in
the financial statements or in the tax returns, @mndfuture profitability represents our best estienof those future events. Changes in our
current estimates, due to unanticipated eventsherwise, could have a material effect on our foiahcondition and results of operations. Due
to our combined cumulative thrgear adjusted loss position, it was determinedithads not more likely than not that we would izalour ne
deferred tax assets. As of December 29, 2012,ghetion allowance was $36,915, after recordingdditional valuation allowance of
$14,080 in fiscal year 2012. As of December 28 @ie valuation allowance was $43,509, after diogran additional valuation allowance
of $6,621 in fiscal year 2013. As of January 3,2Ghe valuation allowance was $45,867, after diogran additional valuation allowance of
$2,358 in fiscal year 2014.

If, in the future, we generate taxable income @nstained basis in jurisdictions where we haverdambfull valuation allowances, our
conclusion regarding the need for full valuatiolowhnces in these tax jurisdictions could changsulting in the reversal of some or all of the
valuation allowances. If our operations generatatite income prior to reaching profitability onwstined basis, we would reverse a portic
the valuation allowance related to the correspandialized tax benefit for that period, without kgang our conclusions on the need for a full
valuation allowance against the remaining net defetax assets.

As of January 3, 2015, federal and state NOL carwérds were $57,552 and $73,610, respectivelyefeddNOL carryforwards of
$2,690 were acquired in the acquisition of WAG whize subject to Internal Revenue Code sectioreB8Jimited to an annual usage
limitation of $135. Additionally, the tax benefif $41 of the federal and state NOL carryforwardschtwas created by the exercise of stock
options will be credited to additional paid-in-c@bionce recognized. Federal NOL carryforwards exipi 2029, while state NOL
carryforwards begin to expire in 2015 The state Nfatryforwards expire in the respective tax yearfoows (in thousands):

2015 - 2022 $ 40,55
2023 - 2032 33,057
$ 73,61(

As a result of the October 8, 2014 sale transacfioimoMD will no longer be included in the consaltdd state and federal tax filings of
the Company. For the fiscal year ended Januar@ 5 ,2he effective tax rate for AutoMD was (0.2)86itoMD's effective tax rate differs from
the U.S. federal statutory rate primarily as a ltesfithe recording of a $195 valuation allowangaiast the Company's net deferred tax asset:
As of January 3, 2015, AutoMD had net operating kearryforwards (NOLs) of approximately $2,582 fiederal tax purposes that begin to
expire in 2031. These amounts are included in timsalidated figures presented above. AutoMD st&dNwere not material as of January 3,
2015.

We utilize a two-step approach to recognizing am@saring uncertain tax positions. The first stefp isvaluate the tax position for
recognition by determining if the weight of availalevidence indicates it is more likely than natttthe position will be sustained on audit,
including resolution of related appeals or litigatiprocesses. The second step is to measure thenefit as the largest amount which is more
than 50% likely of being realized upon ultimatetleetent. We consider many factors when evaluatiyestimating our tax positions and tax
benefits, which may require periodic adjustmentahich may not accurately forecast actual outcorAef January 3, 2015, we had no
material unrecognized tax benefits, interest oafiars related to federal and state income taxermtihe Company’s policy is to record
interest and penalties as income tax expense.

We are subject to U.S. federal income tax as vegiheome tax of foreign and state tax jurisdictidbaring fiscal 2010, the Company
was audited by the Internal Revenue Service foy#ar ended December 31, 2008. The audit was cdediwith no change. The tax years
2010-2013 remain open to examination by the majxing jurisdictions to which the Company is subjestcept the Internal Revenue Service
for which the tax years 2011-2013 remain open. Campany does not anticipate a significant changee¢@mount of unrecognized tax
benefits within the next twelve months.

Share-Based Compensatidlie account for share-based compensation in acooedaith ASC Topic 718€ompensation — Stock
Compensatiof‘ASC 718"). ASC 718 requires that all share-basethpensation to employees,
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including grants of employee stock options, be gaixed in our financial statements based on tlesipective grant date fair values. Under this
standard, the fair value of each share-based payamerd is estimated on the date of grant usingpdion pricing model that meets certain
requirements. We currently use the Black-Scholé®opricing model to estimate the fair value of share-based payment awards. The
Black-Scholes valuation models require extensiveafsaccounting judgment and financial estimateduding estimates of the expected term
participants will retain their vested stock optidoesore exercising them, the estimated volatilitpar common stock price over the expected
term and the number of options that will be foddiprior to the completion of their vesting reqmmmnts. Application of alternative
assumptions could produce significantly differestimaates of the fair value of share-based compemsand, consequently, the related amoun
of share-based compensation expense recognizbd bdnsolidated Statements of Comprehensive Opasatiould have been significantly
different than the amounts recorded.

The Company has incorporated its own historicahtilitly into the grant-date fair value calculatiofifie Company’s historical volatility
was not materially different than the estimatediapgdo past award fair value calculations. Theestpd term of an award is based on
combining historical exercise data with expecteighted time outstanding. Expected weighted timetauiding is calculated by assuming the
settlement of outstanding awards is at the midgoétiveen the remaining weighted average vesting alad the expiration date. Forfeitures are
estimated at the time of grant and revised, if agagy, in subsequent periods if actual forfeitgignificantly differ from those estimates. The
Company considers many factors when estimatingaggddorfeitures, including employee class, ecomoamvironment, and historical
experience.

The Company accounts for equity instruments issn@schange for the receipt of services from nomplesee directors in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 718. The Company accsdiot equity instruments issued in exchange foréoeipt of goods or services from ot
than employees in accordance with ASC 50%&6Qity-Based Payments to Non-Employ&assts are measured at the estimated fair market
value of the consideration received or the estithfa@ value of the equity instruments issued, Wbicer is more reliably measurable. The v
of equity instruments issued for consideration othan employee services is determined on theegartia performance commitment or
completion of performance by the provider of goodservices. Equity instruments awarded to non-eygas are periodically re-measured as
the underlying awards vest unless the instrumeetfudly vested, immediately exercisable and norfieiitable on the date of grant.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Market RiskMarket risk represents the risk of loss that magant our financial position, results of operationgash flows due to
adverse changes in financial commodity market praged rates. We are exposed to market risk priynarhe area of changes in U.S. interest
rates and conditions in the credit markets. We h#s@ some exposure related to foreign currencpuations. Under our current policies, we
do not use interest rate derivative instrumenteanage exposure to interest rate changes. We dwmetany derivative financial instruments
as of January 3, 2015. We attempt to increaseatetysand preservation of our invested principaldsiby limiting default risk, market risk and
reinvestment risk. We mitigate default risk by istieg in investment grade securities and mutuail$uhat hold debt securities.

Interest Rate RislOur investment securities generally consist of mtunds. As of January 3, 2015 , our investmergsaveomprised of
$62 of investments in mutual funds that primaribfchdebt securities.

As of January 3, 2015 , we had a balance of $110d2&anding under a revolving loan under our ¢riedility. The interest rate on this
loan is computed based on a LIBOR and Prime lotm aaljusted by features specified in our loan@ment. At our debt level as of January 3,
2015, a 100 basis point increase in interest rategd not materially affect our earnings and cieis. If, however, we are unable to meet the
covenants in our loan agreement, we would be reduo renegotiate the terms of credit under the breement, including the interest rate.
There can be no assurance that any renegotiated tércredit would not materially impact our eagsnAt January 3, 201,5%ur LIBOR base
interest rate was 2.44% per annum (on $11,00@ipal) and our Prime based rate was 3.50% perrar{on $22 principal). Refer to
additional discussion in Item 7, under the captiduiguidity and Capital Resources — Debt and AvaikaBbrrowing Resourcé€sand in “Note
6 — Borrowings”of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Stateméntsyded in Part 1V, Item 15 of this report.

Foreign Currency RiskOur purchases of auto parts from our Asian supphee denominated in U.S. dollars; however, a ohamthe
foreign currency exchange rates could impact oodpet costs over time. Our financial reporting eaay is the U.S. dollar and changes in
exchange rates significantly affect our reportesiits and consolidated trends. For example, itit& dollar weakens year-over-year relative
to currencies in our international locations, oomsolidated gross profit and operating expensdswihigher than if currencies had remained
constant. Likewise, if the U.S. dollar strengthgear-overyear relative to currencies in our internationaklions, our consolidated gross pr
and operating expenses will be lower than if cwienhad remained constant. Our operating expémske Philippines are generally paid in
Philippine Pesos, and as the exchange rate fleduatadversely or favorably impacts our operatemylts. In light of the above, a fluctuation
of 10% in the Peso/U.S. dollar exchange rate whalte approximately a $410 impact on our Philipmiperating expenses for the
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fifty-three weeks ended January 3, 2015 . Duriegdi 2014 we hedged a portion of our forecastezldarcurrency exposure associated with
operating expenses incurred in the Philippines. ddeeof such hedging activities may not offset angnore than a portion of the adverse
financial effects of unfavorable movements in fgreexchange rates over the limited time the hedge place. As of January 3, 2015, we
had no hedges in place. We are evaluating ourmpta how to manage this risk and considering uarinethods to mitigate such risk. Our
Canadian website sales are denominated in Candditams; however, fluctuations in exchange ratesfthese operations are only expected t
have a nominal impact on our operating resultstdube relatively small number of sales generateddanada. We believe it is important to
evaluate our operating results and growth ratesrbefnd after the effect of currency changes.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The financial statements required by this ItemeBsat forth in Part IV, Item 15 of this report sareé hereby incorporated into this Item 8
by reference.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduregydesi to provide reasonable assurance that infoomagiquired to be disclosed in
reports filed with the SEC under the Securitieshexmge Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Astfecorded, processed, summarized
and reported within the specified time periods, #rad such information is accumulated and commueécto management, including our Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, ggpeopriate, to allow timely decisions regardinguiegd disclosure. Our management, with
the participation of our Chief Executive Officerda@hief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiges of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of January 3, 2015 pursuant to Ralel® and 15d-15 of the Exchange Act. Based oretratiation, the Chief Executive
Officer and Chief Financial Officer have concludhdt, as of such date, our disclosure controlspradedures were effective to meet the
objectives for which they were designed and opdratéhe reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finandal Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finahaaorting (as defined in Rule 13a-
15(f) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934rasnded). We assessed the effectiveness of eun@hicontrol over financial reporting as
of January 3, 2015 , based on the “Internal Cortrdhtegrated Framework (2013)” issued by the Cottaaiof Sponsoring Organizations of
the Treadway Commission. This assessment was ctawlutilizing our documentation of policies and ggdures, risk control matrices, gap
analysis, key process walk-throughs and managemkntwledge of and interaction with its controlsl aesting of our key controls.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projection of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future pericdsubject to the risk that controls may becomednadte because of changes in conditions, ol
that the degree of compliance with the policieprocedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or combinatibdeficiencies, in internal control over finanaieporting, such that there is
reasonable possibility that a material misstateroéotir annual or interim financial statements wibt be prevented or detected on a timely
basis. Based on such assessment and criteria, arapaghas concluded that the internal controls fimancial reporting were effective, and
were operating at the reasonable assurance lee¢lanuary 3, 2015 .

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

The Company monitors and evaluates on an ongoisig fia internal control over financial reportingarder to improve its overall
effectiveness. In the course of these evaluatiblesCompany modifies and refines its internal psses as conditions warrant. As required by
Rule 13a-15(d), the Company’s management, inclutliegChief Executive Officer and the Chief Finah&#icer, also conducted an
evaluation of the Company’s internal control ovieahcial reporting to determine whether any chammgesirred during the quarter ended
January 3, 2015 that have materially affectedyere@asonably likely to materially affect, the Camp'’s internal control over financial
reporting. Based on that evaluation, there has heesuch change during the period covered by dpert.
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.

PART Il

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

(@) Identification of DirectorsThe information under the caption “Election of Qiters,” appearing in the Proxy Statement (“Proxy
Statement”), is hereby incorporated by referente Froxy Statement will be filed with the SEC withi20 days from the end of fiscal
year 2014 .

(b) Identification of Executive Officers and Certaigidficant Employeed he information under the caption “Executive
Compensation and Other Information—Executive Offceappearing in the Proxy Statement, is herebygriporated by reference. The
Proxy Statement will be filed with the SEC withidQldays from the end of fiscal year 2014 .

(c) Compliance with Section 16(a) of the Exchange Rt information under the caption “Section 16(ah&eial Ownership
Reporting Compliance,” appearing in the Proxy Steset, is hereby incorporated by reference. TheP8&atement will be filed with the
SEC within 120 days from the end of fiscal year£201

(d) Code of Ethics The information under the caption “Corporate Goaace — Code of Ethics and Business Conduct,”appgin
the Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporated byreefee. The Proxy Statement will be filed with tHeCSwithin 120 days from the end of
fiscal year 2014 .

(e) Board CommitteesThe information under the caption “Corporate Goaace — Board Committees and Meetings,” appeaning
the Proxy Statement, is hereby incorporated byreefee. The Proxy Statement will be filed with tHeCSwithin 120 days from the end of
fiscal year 2014 .

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information under the caption “Executive Congagion and Other Information”, appearing in thexyr8tatement, is incorporated
herein by reference. The Proxy Statement will lfivith the SEC within 120 days from the end etéil year 2014 .

ITEM 12, SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information under the captions “Equity CompeiasaPlans” and “Ownership of Securities by Certaaneficial Owners and
Management,appearing in the Proxy Statement, is incorporatadih by reference. The Proxy Statement will bedfivith the SEC within 12
days from the end of fiscal year 2014 .

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information under the captions “Corporate Gonaace — Director Independence” and “Certain Ratstiips and Related
Transactions,appearing in the Proxy Statement, is incorporatgdih by reference. The Proxy Statement will bedfilvith the SEC within 12
days from the end of fiscal year 2014 .

ITEM 14, PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES

The information under the caption “Fees Paid tepehdent Registered Public Accounting Firm,” apipgain the Proxy Statement, is
incorporated herein by reference. The Proxy Stat¢mal be filed with the SEC within 120 days frattme end of fiscal year 2014 .
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ITEM 15.

(@)

PART IV

EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Documents filed as part of this report:

(1) Financial Statement§.he following financial statements of U.S. Auto BaXetwork, Inc. are included in a separate secifon
this Annual Report on Form 10-K commencing on thggs referenced below:
Page
Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent regjistl public accounting firm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 3, 2@l becember 28, 2013 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsalee®perations for each of the three years ip#reod ended January 3, 2015
F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equiteémh of the three years in the period ended Jau&015 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheofiiree years in the period ended January 3, 2015 F-5
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-6

Exhibit
No.

2.1*

2.2

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.1~

10.1+*

10.2+*

10.3+*

(2)

Financial Statement Schedules

All schedules have been omitted because they danequoired or the required information is includeaur consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto.

(3)

Exhibits.

The following exhibits are filed herewith or incamated by reference to the location indicated below

EXHIBIT INDEX

Description

Acquisition Agreement dated May 19, 2006 by and iagnd.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Partsbin,,lon.the one hand, and
The Partsbin.com, Inc., All OEM Parts, Inc., Powest, Inc., Auto Parts Web Solutions, Inc., Web Calutions, Inc.,
Everything Internet, LLC, Richard E. Pine, Lowellann, Brian Tinari and Todd Daugherty, on theeothand

Stock Purchase Agreement executed August 2, 20bb@ihe Acquisition Sub, WAG, Riverside and theeotftockholders of
WAG (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5The Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed vilie Securities and
Exchange Commission on August 4, 2010)

Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatfmor of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. as filedlwihe Delaware Secretary
of State on February 14, 2007 (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 3.1 to the Annual Report on Fo@rKlfiled with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on April 2, 2007

Amended and Restated Bylaws of U.S. Auto Parts Ne¢wnc. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit ®&2he Annual Report on
Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchangen@ussion on April 2, 2007)

Certificate of Designation, Preferences and Rightbe Series A Convertible Preferred Stock of LAGto Parts Network, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoff@m 8-K filed on March 25, 2013)

Specimen common stock certificate
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity IncentiRian
Form of Stock Option Agreement under the U.S. ARdots Network, Inc. 2006 Equity Incentive Plan.

Form of Notice of Grant of Stock Option under th&UAuto Parts Network, Inc. 2006 Equity IncentRian.



10.4+* Form of Acceleration Addendum to Stock Option Agneat under the U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 20§6ify Incentive Plan.

10.5+* U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. 2007 Omnibus Plan famchs of agreements
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Exhibit
No.

10.6t*

10.7+

10.8*

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19+

10.20

10.21

Description

Catalog License and Parts Purchase Agreement Natesimber 20, 2006 by and between U.S. Auto Parta/dik, Inc. and
WORLDPAC, Inc.

Form of Indemnification Agreement for Officers aDatectors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit380to the Annual Report
on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Excha@gammission on March 15, 2010)

Deeds of Assignment and Declarations of Trust ebeet8eptember 2006 regarding MBS Tek Corporatiockstransfer.

Form of Suppliers’ Agreement entered into betwee®. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and certain of its Lh&8sed suppliers and
primary drop-ship vendors (incorporated by refeestacExhibit 10.2 to the Quarterly Report on For@aQ filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on August 1a70

Employment Agreement dated February 14, 2014 betwke8. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and Shane Evang@fisorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.39 to the Current ReporForm 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchanger@assion on February 18,
2014)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated Octdd®r2007 between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. @hdne Evangelist
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.3 to therént Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securiteesd Exchange Commission
on October 17, 2007)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement dated Octaber2007 (performance grant) between U.S. AutosPéetwork, Inc. and
Shane Evangelist (incorporated by reference tol#ix89.4 to the Current Report on Form 8-K filedwihe Securities and
Exchange Commission on October 17, 2007)

2007 New Employee Incentive Plan (incorporateddigrence to Exhibit 99.5 to the Current Report om#8-K filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Octoberd7)2

Employment Agreement dated February 14, 2014, letwiee Company and Aaron Coleman (incorporatecference to
Exhibit 10.44 to the Current Report on Form 8-kedilwith the Securities and Exchange Commissionetimiary 18, 2014)

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement, dated May 2808, by and between the Company and Shane Evsingetorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Current Reporform 8-K filed with the Securities and Excha@mmmission on May 15,
2008)

Commercial Lease Agreement dated December 16, 2p@8d between U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. andlésindian River,
LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.66He Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the Séttes and Exchange
Commission on March 26, 2009)

Contract of lease dated January 7, 2010 by anddest.S. Autoparts Network Philippines Corporatiod Robinsons Land
Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit5b to the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed witie tSecurities and
Exchange Commission on March 15, 2010)

Agreement of Sublease dated September 22, 201adpetween the Company and Timec Company Inc.dfparated by
reference to Exhibit 10.61 to the Company’s Quérteeport on Form 10-Q filed with the SecuritiescBange and Commission
on November 9, 2011)

U.S. Auto Parts Network Inc. Director Payment EtatiPlan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 8@ the Company’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Setiasi and Exchange Commission on November 9, 2011)

Credit Agreement, dated April 26, 2012, by and leetvU.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., certain of isn@stic subsidiaries and JP
Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. (incorporated by referendexhibit 99.1 to the Current Report on Form 8HiEd with the Securities
and Exchange Commission on April 30, 2012)

First Amended Credit Agreement, effectivefaslarch 12, 2013, by and between U.S. Auto FRdetsvork, Inc., certain of its
domestic aiihsidiaries and .IPMaornan Chase Rank Mhwénrnoarated hv reference ta Fxhihit 10 78 tao Amani1al Renaort ni



10.22

10.23

Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 2922%iled with the Securities Exchange CommissiorMarch 25, 2013)

Second Amended Credit Agreement, effective as ata5, 2013, by and between U.S. Auto Parts Né¢wac., certain of its
domestic subsidiaries and JPMorgan Chase Bank, (Mi¢orporated by reference to exhibit 10.79 toGherent Report on Form
8-k filed with the Securities and Exchange Commoissin March 25, 2013)

Purchase and Sale Agreement dated April 17, 20I8hdyamong Whitney Automotive Group, Inc. and STGRipital
Acquisitions, LLC (incorporated by reference to @arrent Report on Form 8-K filed on April 23, 2013
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Exhibit
No.

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

Description
Lease Agreement dated April 17, 2013 by and amoisg Ruto Parts Network, Inc. and STORE Master Fogdil, LLC
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoffamm 8-K filed on April 23, 2013)

Employment Agreement dated February 14, 2014 betwhez=Company and Bryan P. Stevenson. (incorpokatedference to
Exhibit 10.82 to the Current Report on Form 8-kdilwith the Securities and Exchange Commissionedmmlary 18, 2014)

Form of Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporatedreference to exhibit 10.835 to the Current ReporForm 8-k filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on Febi&r2014)

Form of Stock Unit Award Agreement (incorporatedrbference to exhibit 10.84 to the Current ReparForm 8-k filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on Februar2aB})

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as ofusti@, 2013 by and between U.S. Auto Parts Netwark, certain of its
domestic subsidiaries and JPMorgan Chase Bank, (séorporated by reference to the Quarterly ReponrEorm 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 29, 2013)

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated Augug044 by and between U.S. Auto Parts Network, keertain of its
wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries and JPMorgans€liank, N.A. (incorporated by reference to ExHibitl to the Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q filed with the Securities an@liange Commission on August 5, 2014)

Common Stock Purchase Agreement, dated Octob&18, By and among AutoMD, Inc., U.S. Auto Partsvidek, Inc., Muzzy-
Lyon Auto Parts, Inc., Manheim Investments, Inak@nvestment Partners Xl, L.P. and the Sol Khakarnng Trust
(incorporated by reference to the Current Repoffam 8-K filed on October 9, 2014)

Investor Rights Agreement, dated October 8, 20§4nd among AutoMD, Inc., U.S. Auto Parts Netwdric., Muzzy-Lyon
Auto Parts, Inc., Manheim Investments, Inc., Oalebiment Partners XI, L.P. and the Sol Khazanirgvirust (incorporated by
reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K fileddxtober 9, 2014)

Voting Agreement, dated October 8, 2014, by andrayr&utoMD, Inc., U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., MyzLyon Auto Parts,
Inc., Manheim Investments, Inc., Oak Investmentrigas Xl, L.P. and the Sol Khazani Living Trustd@mporated by reference to
the Current Report on Form 8-K filed on Octobe?2®@]4)

Right of First Refusal and Co-Sale Agreement, d&etbber 8, 2014, by and among AutoMD, Inc., U.8toAParts Network,
Inc., Muzzy-Lyon Auto Parts, Inc., Manheim Investitg Inc., Oak Investment Partners XI, L.P. and3beKhazani Living
Trust (incorporated by reference to the CurrentdrRepn Form 8-K filed on October 9, 2014)

Fifth Amendment to Credit Agreement and First Ammaedt to Pledge and Security Agreement, dated Oc&i2014, by and
among U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., certain oflibgnestic subsidiaries and JPMorgan Chase Bank{iNcarporated by
reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K fileddxtober 9, 2014)

Sixth Amendment to Credit Agreement and First Anmeadt to Pledge and Security Agreement, dated Jaiy@015, by and
among U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., certain oflibgnestic subsidiaries and JPMorgan Chase Bank{iNcarporated by
reference to the Current Report on Form 8-K filadlanuary 5, 2015)



10.36

211

23.1

31.1

31.2

32.1

32.2

101.INS

101.SCH

101.CAL

Board Candidate Agreement dated March 20, 2014dmtthe Company and Timothy Maguire and MaguireAsEnagement
LLC (incorporated by reference to the Current ReparForm 8-K filed on March 23, 2014)

Subsidiaries of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.
Consent of Independent Registered Public Accouriing

Certification of the Principal Executive Officerqred by Rule 13a-14(a) or 18da) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193¢
amended

Certification of the Principal Financial Officerqaired by Rule 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) of the S¢iesrExchange Act of 1934, as
amended

Certification of the Chief Executive Officer reqeidt by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursaa&@edtion 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification of the Chief Financial Officer reqed by 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursa&edtion 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

XBRL Instance Document
XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne

53




Exhibit
No. Description

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen
101.LAB  XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin

* Incorporated by reference to the exhibit of saene number from the registration statement on Fdrof U.S. Auto Parts Network,
Inc. (File No. 333-138379) initially filed with th®ecurities and Exchange Commission on Novemb20@5, as amended.

+ Indicates a management contract or compensatomyoplarrangeme

t U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. has been grantedidential treatment with respect to certain pors of this exhibit (indicated by

asterisks), which have been separately filed wighSecurities and Exchange Commission.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report on
Form 10-K to be signed on its behalf by the undgesil, thereunto duly authorized.

Date: March 19, 2015 U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC.

By: /s/ Shane Evangelist
Shane Evangelist
Chief Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

We, the undersigned officers and directors of W80 Parts Network, Inc., do hereby constitute apdoint Shane Evangelist and Mike
Yoshida, and each of them, our true and lawfulratigs-in-fact and agents, each with full powerwfstitution and resubstitution, for him and
in his name, place and stead, in any and all capacto sign any and all amendments to this repod to file the same, with exhibits thereto,
and other documents in connection therewith, withS$ecurities and Exchange Commission, granting seitl attorneys-in-fact and agents,
and each of them, full power and authority to dd parform each and every act and thing requisiteecessary to be done in and about the
premises, as fully to all intents and purposeseasight or could do in person, hereby, ratifyingl @onfirming all that each of said attorneys-
in-fact and agents, or his substitute or subsstutgay lawfully do or cause to be done by virtueebe

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report on Form 10-K has bs&gned below by the following
persons on behalf of the registrant in the capecaind on the dates indicated:

Signature Title Date
/sl Shane Evangelist Chief Executive Officer and Director March 19, 2015
Shane Evangelist (principal executive officer)
/sl Mike Yoshida Chief Financial Officer March 19, 2015
Mike Yoshida (principal financial and accounting officer)
/sl Robert J. Majteles Chairman of the Board March 19, 2015

Robert J. Majteles

/s/ Joshua L. Berman Director March 19, 2015
Joshua L. Berman

/sl Fredric W. Harman Director March 19, 2015
Fredric W. Harman

/sl Jay K. Greyson Director March 19, 2015
Jay K. Greyson

/s/ Sol Khazani Director March 19, 2015
Sol Khazani
/sl Warren B. Phelps 11l Director March 19, 2015

Warren B. Phelps IlI

/sl Barbara Palmer Director March 19, 2015
Barbara Palmer

/s/ Bradley E. Wilson Director March 19, 2015




Bradley E. Wilson

55




INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Report of Deloitte & Touche LLP, independent regjistl public accounting firm F-1
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of January 3, 2@l becember 28, 2013 F-2
Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsale®perations for each of the three years irpheod ended January 3, 2015 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' Equityeémh of the three years in the period ended Jaiy@015 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for eacheofiiree years in the period ended January 3, 2015 F-5

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-6




REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.
Carson, CA

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsineets of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. andididrges (the “Company”) as of
January 3, 2015 and December 28, 2013, and thedatansolidated statements of operations and amepsive operations, stockholders’
equity, and cash flows for each of the three yeatlse period ended January 3, 2015. These finbstEilements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to egpran opinion on the financial statements basedipaudits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversighafBioUnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet &andbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. The Company is not required to hamewere we engaged to perform, an audit of isrirdl control over financial reporting.
Our audits included consideration of internal cohtwer financial reporting as a basis for desigramdit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of exprgsamopinion on the effectiveness of the Compamg&rnal control over financial reporting.
Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An autiibancludes examining, on a test basis, evidenpparting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accouptingiples used and significant estimates made dgagement, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We belithat our audits provide a reasonable basis foopimion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statetagresent fairly, in all material respects, timaricial position of U.S. Auto Parts
Network, Inc. and subsidiaries as of January 35241d December 28, 2013 and the results of theirations and their cash flows for eact
the three years in the period ended January 3,,20tBnformity with accounting principles geneyadiccepted in the United States of Amer

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

Los Angeles, CA
March 19, 2015




U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In Thousands, Except Par and Per Share Liquidatiaiue)

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $41 &%t January 3, 2015 and December 28, 2

respectively
Inventory
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net
Intangible assets, net
Other non-current assets
Total assets
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Revolving loan payable
Current portion of capital leases payable
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Capital leases payable, net of current portion
Deferred income taxes
Other non-current liabilities
Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:

Series A convertible preferred stock, $0.001 pawesabl.45 per share liquidation value or
aggregate of $6,017; 4,150 shares authorized; 448,150 shares issued and outstanding at
January 3, 2015 and December 28, 2013, respectively

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000 shareoandhl; 33,624 and 33,352 shares issued and

outstanding at January 3, 2015 and December 28, 283pectively

Additional paid-in-capital

Common stock dividend distributable on Series Avestible preferred stock

Accumulated other comprehensive income
Accumulated deficit
Total stockholders’ equity
Noncontrolling interest
Total equity
Total liabilities and equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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January 3, December 28,
2015 2013
7,65¢ $ 81¢
62 47
3,80¢ 5,02¢
48,36: 36,98¢
2,66¢ 3,23¢
62,55( 46,11
16,96¢ 19,66:
1,70 1,601
1,684 1,80¢
82,907 $ 69,18:
2536: $ 19,66¢
7,747 5,95¢
11,02: 6,77
26¢ 26¢
3,50¢ 3,68
47,90¢ 36,35
9,27( 9,50z
1,61¢ 33t
1,891 2,12¢
60,68¢ 48,31¢
4 4
33 33
174,36 168,69:
— 6C
36C 44¢€
(155,48Y) (148,37()
19,27 20,86¢
2,94¢ —
22,220 20,86¢
82,907 $ 69,18:




U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE OPERATIONS
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3, December 28, December 29,
2015 2013 2012
Net sales $ 283,50t % 254,75. $ 304,01
Cost of sale8) 205,05¢ 180,62( 212,37¢
Gross profit 78,45( 74,13: 91,63¢
Operating expenses:
Marketing 42,00¢ 41,04¢ 51,41¢
General and administrative 16,70: 17,561 19,857
Fulfillment 20,36¢ 18,70 22,26!
Technology 4,86: 5,12¢ 6,27¢
Amortization of intangible assets 422 381 1,18¢
Impairment loss on goodwill — — 18,85«
Impairment loss on property and equipment — 4,83 1,96(
Impairment loss on intangible assets — 1,24t 5,61:
Total operating expenses 84,36: 88,90( 127,42t
Loss from operations (5,919 (14,767 (35,790
Other income (expense):
Other income, net 65 14¢ 2C
Interest expense (1,209 (972) (785)
Loss on debt extinguishment — — (360)
Total other expense, net (1,036 (824) (1,125
Loss before income taxes (6,94¢) (15,597 (36,91%)
Income tax (benefit) provision 13¢ 43 (937)
Net loss including noncontrolling interests (7,08¢) (15,63¢) (35,979
Net loss attributable to noncontrolling interests (207) — —
Net loss attributable to U.S. Auto Parts (6,879 (15,63¢) (35,979
Other comprehensive income attributable to U.So/Rarts, net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustments 20 55 31
Actuarial loss on defined benefit plan (10€) — —
Unrealized gains on investments — 7 26
Total other comprehensive income (loss) attribiablU.S. Auto Parts (86) 62 57
Comprehensive loss attributable to U.S. Auto Parts $ (6,965 % (15,57) $ (35,92)
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ (0.2)) $ (0.48) $ (1.19)
Shares used in computation of basic and dilutedosstper share 33,48¢ 32,69° 30,81¢
(1) Excludes depreciation and amortization expeviseh is included in marketing, general and adstrative and fulfilment expense as

described ifNote 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policéand Nature of Operationdielow.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financédstents.
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U.S AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(In Thousands)

Preferred Accumulated
Preferred Stock Common Stock  additional Stock Other Total
Paid-in- Dividend Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders’ Noncontrolling
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Distributable  Income (Loss) Deficit Equity Interest Total
Balance, January 1, 2012 = — 30,62 $ 31 $157,14( — 3 327 66,30 $ 60,92 — 60,92
Net loss — — — — (35,979 (35,979 — (35,979
Issuance of shares in
connection with stock option
exercises — — 48¢ — 63€ — — — 63€ — 63€
Issuance of stock awards _ _ 13 — 53 — — — 53 — 52
Share-based compensation _ _ _ — 1,95; — — — 1,952 — 1,95
Unrealized gain on
investments, net of tax — — — — — — 26 — 26 — 2€
Effect of changes in foreign
currencies — — — — — — 31 — 31 — 31
Balance, December 29, 2012 __ — 31,12 31 159,78 — 384 (132,55 27,64« — 27,64
Net loss — — — — — — — (15,639 (15,639 — (15,639

Issuance of shares in

connection with Series A

Preferred Stock, net of

issuance costs 4,15( 4 — — 5,16¢ — — — 5,17(C — 5,17(

Issuance of shares in

connection with common

stock offering, net of issuanc

costs — — 2,05( 2 1,98¢ — — — 1,991 — 1,991

Issuance of common stock in
connection with preferred
stock dividends — — 50 — 60 — — — 60 — 6C

Issuance of shares in
connection with stock option

exercises — — 101 — 18z — — — 183 — 18<
Issuance of shares in

connection with BOD fees — — 23 — 31 — — 31 — 31
Share-based compensation ~ _ _ — — 1,482 — — — 1,48: — 1,48:

Common stock dividend
distributable on Series A

Preferred Stock — — — — — 60 — (220 (60) — (60)
Cash dividends on preferred

stock — — — — — — — (64) (64) — (64)
Unrealized gain on

investments, net of tax — — — — — — 7 — 7 — 7
Effect of changes in foreign

currencies — — — — — — 55 — 55 — 5E
Balance, December 28, 20134 15 4 33,35 33 168,69 60 44¢€ (148,37() 20,86¢ — 20,86t
Issuance of shares of Auto v

common stock — — — — 2,51 — — — 2,51% 3,15: 5,66¢
Net loss — — — — — — — (6,879 (6,879 (207 (7,086

Issuance of common stock ir

connection with preferred

stock dividends — — 107 — 30C (300) — — — — —
Issuance of shares in

connection with stock option

exercises — — 144 — 29t — — — 29t — 29t

Issuance of shares in
connection with restricted
stock units vesting — — 21 — — — — — — — —

Share-based compensation _ _ _ — 2,56¢ — — — 2,56¢ —_ 2,56¢
Common stock dividend

distributable on Series A
Preferred Stock — — — — — 24C (240) — — _

Actuarial loss on defined
benefit plan — — — — — — (206) — (206) — (20¢)

Unrealized gain on
investments, net of tax — — — — — = — — — — —

Effect of changes in foreic



currencies _ _ — — — — 20 — 20 — 2C

Balance, January 3,2015 415 § 4 3362« $ 34 $17436¢ $ — % 36 $ (15548) $ 19277 $ 2,946 $22,22:

See accompanying notes to consolidated financéstents.
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U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities

Net loss including noncontrolling interests

(In Thousands)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash (irseprovided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization expense
Amortization of intangible assets
Deferred income taxes
Share-based compensation expense
Stock awards issued for non-employee director servi
Impairment loss on goodwiill
Impairment loss on property and equipment
Impairment loss on intangible assets
Amortization of deferred financing costs
Loss on debt extinguishment
Loss (gain) from disposition of assets
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Other current assets
Other non-current assets
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Other current liabilities
Other non-current liabilities
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing activities
Additions to property and equipment
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Cash paid for intangibles
Proceeds from sale of marketable securities aresinvents
Purchases of marketable securities and investments
Purchases of company-owned life insurance
Net cash used in investing activities
Financing activities
Proceeds from revolving loan payable
Payments made on revolving loan payable
Proceeds from sale-leaseback transaction
Payments made on long-term debt
Payment of debt extinguishment costs
Payments of debt financing costs

Proceeds from issuance of Series A convertibleepredl stock

Payment of issuance costs from Series A convenitéterred stock

Proceeds from issuance of common stock
Payment of issuance costs from common stock
Proceeds from sale of equity in subsidiary
Payments on capital leases

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Other

Net cash provided by (used in) financina activi

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3, December 28, December 29,
2015 2013 2012

(7,086 (15,639 $ (35,979
8,92 12,17¢ 15,20¢
422 381 1,18¢
74 59 (875)
2,371 1,26: 1,67:
— 31 53
— — 18,85«
— 4,832 1,96(
— 1,24¢ 5,61
81 81 94
— — 36(
(96) (35) 14
1,10¢ 2,40 491
(11,417 5,74( 9,52(
471 954 (61€)
(39) (219 (281)
6,992 (11,837 (14,917
(302) (1,059 (2,969
(261) 472 202
1,247 867 (400)
(5,556) (8,325) (10,15Y
27 47 14
(200) — (34)
74E 52 3,171
(746) ™ (©)
— (106) (16€)
(5,730) (8,339 (7,179
19,50¢ 19,56 26,73:
(15,258 (29,009 (10,509
_ 9,58¢ _
— — (17,879
= — (17%)
_ — (407)
— 6,017 —
— (847) —
— 2,23¢ —
— (244) —
7,00( — —
(232) (19€) (137)
20t 18: 63€
J— (64) J—
11 21° 7 21¢ (1720



Effect of exchange rate changes on cash
Net change in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing arahting activities:

Accrued asset purchases

Property acquired under capital lease

Unrealized gain on investments
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Cash paid during the period for income taxes

Cash paid during the period for interest

See accompanying notes to consolidated finanaédstents.
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11 41 9
6,83t (212) (9,305
81¢ 1,03( 10,33t
7,65: 81¢ 1,03(
1,23 73¢ 1,80:

— 32z 104
= 7 2€
60 43 =
1,02¢ 884 49t




U.S. AUTO PARTS NETWORK, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In Thousands, Except Per Share Data)

Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policieand Nature of Operations

U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. (including its subaiies) is a distributor of aftermarket auto pamsl accessories and was established in
1995. The Company entered the e-commerce sectaubghing its first website in 2000 and currentlyides the majority of its revenues from
online sales channels. The Company sells its ptedadndividual consumers through a network of sieds and online marketplaces.
Through AutoMD.com, the Company educates consuorersaintenance and service of their vehicles. Thleepsovides auto information, wi
tools for diagnosing car troubles, locating rehiops and do-it-yourself (“DIY”) repair guides. Cllagship websites are located at
www.autopartswarehouse.cogmvww.carparts.com, www.jcwhitney.camdwww.AutoMD.conand our corporate website is located at
www.usautoparts.netReferences to the “Company,” “we,” “us,” or “owefer to U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc. and its smidated
subsidiaries.

The Company’s products consist of body parts, parts, performance parts and accessories. Thepmotty category is primarily
comprised of parts for the exterior of an autonm@l@ur parts in this category are typically reptaeat parts for original body parts that have
been damaged as a result of a collision or thragyegteral wear and tear. The majority of these prmdare sold through our websites. In
addition, we sell an extensive line of mirror prothy including our own private-label brand calledokVue™, which are marketed and sold as
aftermarket replacement parts and as upgradesdtingxparts. The hard parts category is comprafezhgine components and other
mechanical and electrical parts. These parts ssveplacement parts for existing engine partsaaadienerally used by professionals and do-
it-yourselfers for engine and mechanical mainteraara repair. We offer performance versions of maarys sold in each of the above
categories. Performance parts and accessoriesajjgramesist of parts that enhance the performari¢le automobile, upgrade existing
functionality of a specific part or improve the gigal appearance or comfort of the automobile.

The Company is a Delaware C corporation and isduestiered in Carson, California. The Company al®dmployees located in
Kansas, Virginia, Tennessee, Texas, Wyoming aimblll, as well as in the Philippines.

Fiscal Year

The Company'’s fiscal year is based on a 52/53 iise&l year ending on the Saturday closest to Déeer81. The fiscal year ended
January 3, 2015 (fiscal year 2014) is a 53 weelogemnd the fiscal years ended December 28, 20d&a(fyear 2013) and December 29, 2012
(fiscal year 2012) are 52 week periods.

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include tw@ants of the Company, its wholly-owned subsiésand its subsidiaries in which it
has a controlling interest. On October 8, 2014 oMD, Inc. ("AutoMD") sold seven million shares & icommon stock to thirgarty investor:
reducing the Company’s ownership interest in AutodM®4.1% . The 35.9% of AutoMD controlled by thjpdrty investors is being reported
as a noncontrolling interest. The Company repastecantrolling interests in consolidated entitieaa®mponent of equity separate from the
Company'’s equity. All inter-company transactionsi®en and among the Company and its consolidatesidiaries have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Basis of Presentation

During fiscal year 2014 , the Company’s revenuessiased 11.3% from fiscal Year 2013 after havingeksed in fiscal year 2013 by
16.2% from fiscal year 2012 . In Fiscal Year 20thé, Company incurred a net loss of $6,879 , aftewriring net losses of $15,634 &$@8b,97¢
in Fiscal Years 2013 and 2012 , respectively. Basedur current operating plan, we believe thatexisting cash, cash equivalents,
investments, cash flows from operations and aviaildebt financing will be sufficient to finance ocaperational cash needs through at least th
next twelve months. When compared to fiscal yedd2@e expect our revenues to increase and ouoseto be lower in fiscal year 2015.
Should the Company’s operating results not mee¢egtions in 2015, it could negatively impact aquidity as we may not be able to provide
positive cash flows from operations in order to trme working capital requirements. We may neebdwow additional funds from our credit
facility, which under certain circumstances may Io@tvailable, sell assets or seek additional gguiadditional debt financing in the future.
There can be no assurance that we would be abdésto such additional financing or engage in sulthtinal asset sales on acceptable terms
or at all. If revenues were to decline and theloss is larger or continues for longer than we ekpecause our strategies to return to
profitability are not successful or otherwise, dnae are not able to raise adequate additionalrfiing or proceeds from asset sales to contint
to fund our ongoing operations, we will need toetdlefeduce or eliminate significant planned expemds, restructure or significantly curtail
our operations.
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Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymiith U.S. GAAP requires management to make egtsiand assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liaslgind disclosure of contingent assets and ligisilét the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdbhgmeporting period. Significant estimates miaglenanagement include, but are not
limited to, those related to revenue recognitiargallectible receivables, the valuation of investitsevaluation of inventory, valuation of
deferred tax assets and liabilities, valuatiomédimgible assets including goodwill and other Itimgd assets, recoverability of software
development costs, contingencies and share-basegetsation expense that results from estimated dede fair values and vesting of issued
equity awards. Actual results could differ fromgheestimates.

Statement of Cash Flows

The net change in the Company’s book overdraftésgnted as an operating activity in the cons@uiatatement of cash flows. The
book overdraft represents a credit balance in hr@any’s general ledger but the Company has aipe&iank account balance.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all money market funds and-¢&rm investments purchased with original maiesiof ninety days or less to be
cash equivalents.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Financial instruments that are not measured aw#dire include accounts receivable, accounts payaind debt. Refer toNote 3 — Fair
Value Measurementdor additional fair value information. If the Cqrany’s revolving loan payable (s#¢ote 6 — Borrowings”) had been
measured at fair value, it would be categorizeldawel 2 of the fair value hierarchy, as the estedatalue would be based on the quoted m
prices for the same or similar issues or on theetiirates available to the Company for debt ofstimae or similar terms. The carrying values
of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivadl@ecounts payable approximate fair value at Jgrj&2015 and December 28, 2048 to
their short-term maturities. Marketable securiiesl investments are carried at fair value, as dsemlibelow. Based on the borrowing rates
currently available to the Company for bank loaiith wimilar terms and average maturities, thealue of our revolving loan payable,
classified as current liability in our consolidateslance sheet, approximates its carrying amouwguse the interest rate is variable.

Accounts Receivable and Concentration of CreditIRis

Accounts receivable are stated net of allowanceéobtful accounts. The allowance for doubtful acts is determined primarily on the
basis of past collection experience and general@oe conditions. The Company determines termscandlitions for its customers primarily
based on the volume purchased by the customengroastcreditworthiness and past transaction history.

Concentrations of credit risk are limited to thetoumer base to which the Company’s products ack $ble Company does not believe
significant concentrations of credit risk exist.

Investments

Investments are comprised of closed-end funds piliyriavested in mutual funds that hold governmieahds and stock and short-term
money market funds. Mutual funds are classifiedhast-term investments available-for-sale and medmat fair market value, based on quotet
prices of identical assets that are trading invaatharkets as of the end of the period for whiehwalues are determined.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment

All of the Company’s marketable securities and staeents are subject to a periodic impairment revigve Company recognizes an
impairment charge when a decline in the fair valfiigs investments below the cost basis is judgelokt other-than-temporary. The Company
considers various factors in determining whetheetmgnize an impairment charge, including the tlerd time and extent to which the fair
value has been less than the Company’s cost lasifinancial condition and near-term prospecthefinvestee, and the Compamijntent anc
ability to hold the investment for a period of timefficient to allow for any anticipated recovenythe market value. No other-than-temporary
impairment charges were recorded on any investnuemisg fiscal years presented.
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Inventory

Inventories consist of finished goods availabledale and are stated at the lower of cost or madee, determined using the first-in
first-out (“FIFO”) method. The Company purchaseseimory from suppliers both domestically and inggionally, and routinely enters into
supply agreements with U.S.—based suppliers amtiitsary drop-ship vendors. The Company believasits products are generally available
from more than one supplier and seeks to maintaitipie sources for its products, both internatignand domestically. The Company
primarily purchases products in bulk quantitiesalce advantage of quantity discounts and to erisuestory availability. Inventory is report
at the lower of cost or market, adjusted for sloaving, obsolete or scrap product. Inventory at dan@, 2015 and December 28, 2013 was
$48,362 and $36,986 , respectively, which incluitienhs in-transit to our warehouses, in the amo@i$tl@,155 and $6,750 , respectively.

Website and Software Development Costs

The Company capitalizes certain costs associatddweébsite and software developed for internalacm®rding to ASC 350-50
Intangibles— Goodwill and Other — Website Development CastsASC 350-40ntangibles — Goodwill and Other — Internal-Use (8aire
when both the preliminary project design and tessitage are completed and management has authtuileer funding for the project, which
it deems probable of completion and to be usethi®function intended. Capitalized costs includ@ants directly related to website and
software development such as payroll and payrtdited costs for employees who are directly assediafith, and who devote time to, the
internal-use software project. Capitalization aftsgosts ceases when the project is substantiathptete and ready for its intended use. Thes
amounts are amortized on a straight-line basis tweto three years once the software is placexidatvice. The Company capitalized website
and software development costs of $5,651 and $8jiAg fiscal year 2014 and 2013 , respectivelyJ@nuary 3, 2015 and December 28,
2013, our internally developed website and soféwarsts amounted to $40,757 and $50,250 , respBgtand the related accumulated
amortization and impairment amounted to $36,060%#211 , respectively. During fiscal year 2018 8012, the Company recognized an
impairment loss on websites and software developemsts of $4,832 and $3,868 , respectively. Noaimmpent was recognized during fiscal
year 2014

Long-Lived Assets and Intangibles Subject to Amadiion

The Company accounts for the impairment and disiposbf long-lived assets, including intangible®get to amortization, in
accordance with ASC 3@®@roperty, Plant and EquipmefitASC 360”) . Management assesses potential impairments wheeaegsts or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carnydige of an asset or asset group may not be reaolee An impairment loss will result when
the carrying value exceeds the undiscounted caglsféstimated to result from the use and evenispbdition of the asset or asset group.
Impairment losses will be recognized in operatiespits to the extent that the carrying value exséleel discounted future cash flows estimi
to result from the use and eventual dispositiothefasset or asset group. The Company continusdly judgment when applying these
impairment rules to determine the timing of the &nment tests, undiscounted cash flows used tsadsgairments, and the fair value of a
potentially impaired asset or asset group. Theoresgeness of our judgments could significantlgetfthe carrying value of our long-lived
assets. As of January 3, 2015 , the Company’s liwed-assets did not indicate a potential impairmarder the provisions of ASC 360,
therefore no impairment charges were recordedgoalfyear 2014 During the second quarter of 2013, the Compaoggeized an impairme
loss on property and equipment and intangible assatject to amortization of $4,832 and $1,245peetively. During the fourth quarter of
2012, the Company recognized an impairment logsroperty and equipment and intangible assets sutgjieanortization of $1,960 and
$1,745 , respectively. Future impairment lossedccmesult if the fair value of the Company’s lorgeld assets continues to decline. Refer to “
Note 3— Fair Value Measurements” “Note 4 — Property anguipment, Net'and “Note 5 — Intangible Assets, ndtr further details.

Goodwill and Indefinite-Lived Intangibles.

The Company accounts for goodwill under the guidaset forth in ASC Topic 350natangibles — Goodwill and Oth€fASC 350”),
which specifies that goodwill and indefinite-livadangibles should not be amortized. The Compamgytistorically evaluated goodwill and
indefinite-lived intangibles for impairment on amnaial basis or more frequently if events or circtamses occur that would indicate a
reduction in fair value. The goodwill impairmenstés a two-step impairment test. The first stemares the fair value of each reporting unit
with its carrying amount including goodwill. The @pany estimates the fair value of the reporting based on the income approach, which
utilizes discounted future cash flows. Assumptiorisical to the fair value estimates under the disted cash flow model include discount
rates, cash flow projections, projected long-terowgh rates and the determination of terminal valdédne market approach is used as a test G
reasonableness to corroborate the income appréaemarket approach utilized market multiples eksted capital from publicly traded
companies in similar lines of business. The mankeitiples from invested capital include revenuetaltassets, book equity plus debt and
EBITDA.
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During the fourth quarter of 2012, the Company tded adverse events related to the Company’salvBnancial performance,
including the continued downward trend in the Comypsrevenues and negative cash flows from operatio
and a sustained decline in the Company’s share,ghat would more likely than not reduce the Yailue of our reporting units below their
carrying amounts. The excess of carrying value &iewvalue for our reporting unit as of October, 2012, the annual testing date, was
approximately $21,843 . If the carrying amount extsthe estimated fair value, then the secondodtdye impairment test is performed to
measure the amount of any impairment loss andtipairment losses will be recognized in operatirsyiits. Therefore, the Company
performed the second step of the goodwill impairntest to measure the amount of impairment lose. SEtond step compares the implied fai
value of goodwill with the carrying amount of goadwT he implied fair value of goodwill is determéd in the same manner as the amount of
goodwill recognized in a business combination. &keess of the fair value of a reporting unit over &amounts assigned to its assets and
liabilities is the implied fair value of goodwilBased on its analysis, the Company recognized paiiment loss on goodwill of $18,854 ,
which represented its carrying value as of Oct@ie2012. For indefinite lived intangible asseltg, Company utilized the royalty savings
method to determine the fair value of the trade eartangible assets using a discounted rate oPA%ud royalty rate of 0.1% for fiscal year
2012. During the fourth quarter of 2012, we recdrde impairment loss on indefinite lived intangibksets totaling $3,86&\s a result of the
impairment losses taken in fiscal year 2012, they@any did not have any goodwill or indefinite-livedangibles on its balance sheet in fiscal
year 2013. In addition, all the remaining indefirived intangibles were reclassified as definited intangibles and subject to amortizati
Refer to“Note 3- Fair Value Measurementsind “Note 5 — Intangible Assets, ndtr additional detalils.

Deferred Catalog Expenses

Deferred catalog expenses consist of third-pargcticosts including primarily creative design, @apprinting, postage and mailing costs
for all Company direct response catalogs. Suctsarst capitalized as deferred catalog expenseararamortized over their expected future
benefit period. Each catalog is fully amortizedhiritnine months . Deferred catalog expenses ahedad in other current assets and amounte
to $441 and $485 at January 3, 2015 and Decemb@028 , respectively.

Deferred Financing Costs

Deferred financing costs are being amortized dvellife of the loan using the straight-line metlasdt is not significantly different from
the effective interest method.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue from product saléskipping revenues, net of promotional discoantsreturn allowances, when
following revenue recognition criteria are met: esive evidence of an arrangement exists, bghatiid risk of loss or damage have
transferred, delivery has occurred, the sellingeis fixed or determinable, and collectabilityéasonably assured. The Company retains the
risk of loss or damage during transit, therefoegenue from product sales is recognized at theetglidate to customers. Return allowances,
which reduce product revenue by the Company’s dstighate of expected product returns, are estimsiey historical experience.

Revenue from sales of advertising is recorded wiggformance requirements of the related advertigingram agreement are met. For
each of the fiscal years ended 2014 , 2013 and 20fadvertising revenue represented approxisnagél, of our total revenue.

The Company evaluates the criteria of ASC 603Ré5enue Recognition Principal Agent Consideratiargetermining whether it is
appropriate to record the gross amount of prodaiessand related costs or the net amount earneahammissions. Generally, when the
Company is the primary party obligated in a tratiea¢cthe Company is subject to inventory risk, le#ude in establishing prices and
selecting suppliers, or has several but not alhe$e indicators, revenue is recorded at gross.

Payments received prior to the delivery of goodsustomers are recorded as deferred revenue.

The Company periodically provides incentive offerdts customers to encourage purchases. Suclsadffelude current discount offers,
such as percentage discounts off current purcteasksther similar offers. Current discount offevhen accepted by the Compasigustomer:
are treated as a reduction to the purchase pritteegklated transaction.

Sales discounts are recorded in the period in wihielhrelated sale is recognized. Sales return athoes are estimated based on historice
amounts and are recorded upon recognizing theetkatles. Credits are issued to customers fomedysroducts. Credits for returned product:
amounted to $24,903 , $24,618 , and $30,420 foalffigear 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , respectively.
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No customer accounted for more than 10% of the Gmyip net sales.

The following table provides an analysis of th@athnce for sales returns and the allowance for tfiolidoccounts (in thousands):

Charged to
Balance at Revenue, Balance at
Beginning Cost or End of
of Period Expenses Deductions Period
Fifty-Three Weeks Ended January 3, 2015
Allowance for sales returns $ 89 $ 24,907 $ (24,90) $ 897
Allowance for doubtful accounts 213 64 (23¢€) 41
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 28, 2013
Allowance for sales returns $ 1,36 $ 24,147 $ (24,619 $ 89:
Allowance for doubtful accounts 221 181 (189) 213
Fifty-Two Weeks Ended December 29, 2012
Allowance for sales returns $ 1,72¢  $ 30,05¢ % (30,420) $ 1,36¢
Allowance for doubtful accounts 182 247 (209) 221

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales consists of the direct costs assatiaith procuring parts from suppliers and delingrproducts to customers. These costs
include direct product costs, outbound freight ahigphping costs, warehouse supplies and warrantg,qoartially offset by purchase discounts
and cooperative advertising. Total freight and gimpg expense included in cost of sales for fise@n2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $40,428 ,
$34,182 , and $39,702 , respectively. Depreciadiwh amortization expenses are excluded from coslet and included in marketing, genera
and administrative and fulfillment expenses as chbielow.

Warranty Costs

The Company or the vendors supplying its produasige the Company’s customers limited warrantiesertain products that range
from 30 days to lifetime. In most cases, the Corgfgavendors are the party primarily responsiblevf@arranty claims. Standard product
warranties sold separately by the Company are dedoas deferred revenue and recognized ratablytioedife of the warranty, ranging from
one to five years . The Company also offers exténagrranties that are imbedded in the price ofcseteprivate label products we sell. The
product brands that include the extended warramigmage are offered at three different serviceléea) a five year unlimited product
replacement, (b) a five year one-time product regizent, and (c) a three year one-time product ceplant. Warranty costs relating to
merchandise sold under warranty not covered by mesnare estimated and recorded as warranty oldigatt the time of sale based on each
product’s historical return rate and historical r@aty cost. The standard and extended warrantgatidins are recorded as warranty liabilities
and included in other current liabilities in thensolidated balance sheets. For the fiscal year 20814013 , the activity in our aggregate
warranty liabilities was as follows (in thousands):

January 3,
2015 December 28, 2013
Warranty liabilities, beginning of period $ 29¢ $ 282
Adjustments to preexisting warranty liabilities (129 (58
Additions to warranty liabilities 11¢ 165
Reductions to warranty liabilities (74) (93
Warranty liabilities, end of period $ 21¢ % 29¢

Marketing Expense

Marketing costs, including advertising, are experegincurred. The majority of advertising expeigggaid to internet search engine
service providers and internet commerce faciligtéior fiscal year 2014 , 2013 and 2012 , the Camppacognized advertising costs of
$18,485 , $16,619 and $21,068 , respectively. Mamrgecosts also include depreciation and amortira¢ixpense and shabased compensati
expense.
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General and Administrative Expense

General and administrative expense consists priiynafradministrative payroll and related expensasrchant processing fees, legal and
professional fees and other administrative costsie@al and administrative expense also includesedigtion and amortization expense and
share-based compensation expense.

Fulfilment Expense

Fulfillment expense consists primarily of payratiderelated costs associated with warehouse emp@mdthe Company’s purchasing
group, facilities rent, building maintenance, degton and other costs associated with inventoapagement and wholesale operations.
Fulfilment expense also includes share-based cosgi®n expense.

Technology Expense

Technology expense consists primarily of payrot aglated expenses of our information technologgganel, the cost of hosting the
Company’s servers, communications expenses anchétteonnectivity costs, computer support and smféwdevelopment amortization
expense. Technology expense also includes shaeetbaspensation expense.

Share-Based Compensation

The Company accounts for share-based compensatetordance with ASC 7XBompensation — Stock CompensagksSC 7187).
All share-based payment awards issued to emplareascognized as share-based compensation expehsdinancial statements based on
their respective grant date fair values, and azegeized within the statement of comprehensiverimeor loss as marketing, general and
administrative, fulfillment or technology expenbased on employee departmental classificationsettiis standard, compensation expense
for both time-based and performance-based resirgtteck units is based on the closing stock pricaio common shares on the date of grant,
and is recognized on a straight-line basis overehaisite service period. Compensation expenspddbrmance-based awards is measured
based on the amount of shares ultimately expeotedsdt, estimated at each reporting date basedaoagement’s expectations regarding the
relevant performance criteria. Compensation expérsgtock options is based on the fair value estéd on the date of grant using an option
pricing model that meets certain requirements,iamecognized over the vesting period of threeoto fyears. The Company currently uses the
Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimatefdievalue of share-based payment awards for stattk ®ptions, which is affected by the
Company’s stock price and a number of assumptionkiding expected volatility, expected life, riflee interest rate and expected dividends.

The Company incorporates its own historical valgtihto the grant-date fair value calculations floe stock options. The expected term
of an award is based on combining historical eserdiata with expected weighted time outstandingeEted weighted time outstanding is
calculated by assuming the settlement of outstgnalivards is at the midpoint between the remainiagkted average vesting date and the
expiration date. The risk-free interest rate assionps based on observed interest rates apprepoathe expected life of awards. The
dividend yield assumption is based on the Compaexfectation of paying no dividends on its commtoicls Forfeitures are estimated at the
time of grant and revised, if necessary, in subsegperiods if actual forfeitures significantly féif from those estimates. The Company
considers many factors when estimating expectddifores, including employee class, economic emvitent, and historical experience.

The Company accounts for equity instruments isgn@schange for the receipt of services from nompleyee directors in accordance
with the provisions of ASC 718. The Company accsdat equity instruments issued in exchange fordoeipt of goods or services from of
than employees in accordance with ASC 505-50 Eeidtyed Payments to Non-Employees. Costs are mebattiee estimated fair market
value of the consideration received or the estithéd@ value of the equity instruments issued, \hier is more reliably measurable. The v
of equity instruments issued for consideration pthan employee services is determined on theegaria performance commitment or
completion of performance by the provider of goodservices. Equity instruments awarded to non-eygas are periodically re-measured as
the underlying awards vest unless the instrumetéully vested, immediately exercisable and norfieiitable on the date of grant.

The Company accounts for modifications to its stiErsed payment awards in accordance with the pomg®f ASC 718. Incremental
compensation cost is measured as the excess,, ibathe fair value of the modified award over fai& value of the original award immediatt
before its terms are modified, measured basedealtare price and other pertinent factors at thig, &ind is recognized as compensation cos
on the date of modification (for vested awardspwer the remaining service (vesting) period (fovested awards). Any unrecognized
compensation cost remaining from the original awang@cognized over the vesting period of the niedibward.
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Other Income, net

Other income, net consists of miscellaneous inconexpense such as gains/losses from dispositiass#ts, and interest income
comprised primarily of interest income on investisen

Interest Expense

Interest expense consists primarily of interesie@sg on our outstanding loan balance, deferredding cost amortization, and capital
lease interest.

Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordaitbeASC 740Income Taxe§'ASC 740"). Under ASC 740, deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognized for the future taxsequences attributable to temporary differeneésden the financial statement carrying
amount of existing assets and liabilities and thespective tax bases. Deferred tax assets arilitiésbare measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the yeavghith those temporary differences are expectdxbtecovered or settled. When appropri
a valuation allowance is established to reducertkxfdax assets, which include tax credits anddasgy forwards, to the amount that is more
likely than not to be realized. In making such deieation, the Company considers all available fpgsiand negative evidence, including
future reversals of existing taxable temporaryat#hces, future taxable income exclusive of remgreg@mporary differences and carryforwa
taxable income in prior carryback years, tax plagrstrategies and recent financial operations.

The Company utilizes a two-step approach to readggiand measuring uncertain tax positions. Tha §itep is to evaluate the tax
position for recognition by determining if the whtgf available evidence indicates it is more fkdan not that the position will be sustained
on audit, including resolution of related appeail$itmation processes. The second step is to nreabe tax benefit as the largest amount w
is more than 50% likely of being realized uponralite settlement. The Company considers many fastoes evaluating and estimating our
tax positions and tax benefits, which may requégqalic adjustments and which may not accuratalgdast actual outcomes. As of January 3
2015, the Company had no material unrecognizeti¢aefits, interest or penalties related to fedanal state income tax matters. The
Company’s policy is to record interest and pensléis income tax expense.

Taxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to Gorental Authorities

We present taxes collected from customers and tefrtib governmental authorities on a net basisdomance with the guidance on
ASC 605-45-50-Faxes Collected from Customers and Remitted to i@mental Authorities

Leases

The Company analyzes lease agreements for opexagisgs capital lease treatment in accordanceABifi 840Leases Rent expense
for leases designated as operating leases is esghensa straight-line basis over the term of tlasde For capital leases, the present value of
future minimum lease payments at the inceptiomefiéase is reflected as a capital lease asset ealital lease payable in the consolidated
balance sheets. Amounts due within one year assifiled as current liabilities and the remainingabae as non-current liabilities.

Foreign Currency Translation

For each of the Comparg/foreign subsidiaries, the functional currencigddocal currency. Assets and liabilities of fapeioperations a
translated into U.S. dollars using the current exge rates, and revenues and expenses are trdristat®).S. dollars using average exchange
rates. The effects of the foreign currency traimteadjustments are included as a component ofnagladed other comprehensive income or
loss in the Company’s consolidated balance sheets.

Comprehensive Income

The Company reports comprehensive income or loasdnrdance with ASC 220omprehensive Incomeé\ccumulated other
comprehensive income or loss, included in the Catyigaconsolidated balance sheets, includes foreigrency translation adjustments relatec
to the Company'’s foreign operations, and unrealtr@lding gains and losses from available-$ate marketable securities and investments.
Company presents the components of net incomeserdnd other comprehensive income or loss in iisal@ated statements of
comprehensive operations.
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Segment Data

The Company operates in tweportable operating segments. The criteria weaiggentify operating segments are primarily theura of
the products we sell or services we provide andtmsolidated operating results that are regutashewed by our chief operating decision
maker to assess performance and make operatingjateciWe identified twoeportable operating segments, Base USAP, whittfeisore aut
parts business, and AutoMD, an online automotipairesource, in accordance with ASC Z88gment ReportingASC 280") .

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standardsf8dq&-ASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update R@14-9, “Revenue from
Contracts with Customers,” (“ASU 2014-9") which tgeps an entity to recognize the amount of revenuehich it expects to be entitled for
the transfer of promised goods or services to ousts. This guidance will replace most existing rexerecognition guidance in U.S. GAAP
when it becomes effective. The new standard it for fiscal years beginning after December2®16. Early application is not permitted.
The standard permits the use of either the retaisfgeor cumulative effect transition method. Thentpany is evaluating the effect that ASU
2014-9 will have on the consolidated financialeta¢nts and related disclosures. The Company haghselected a transition method nor ha:
the effect of the standard on ongoing financiabrépg been determined.

On August 27, 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-15¢kprovides guidance on determining when and heporting entities must
disclose going-concern uncertainties in their friahstatements. The new standard requires managemperform interim and annual
assessments of an entity’s ability to continue gsiag concern within one year of the date of issgaof the entity’s financial statements (or
within one year after the date on which the finahstatements are available to be issued, wherncapj#). Further, an entity must provide
certain disclosures if there is “substantial daaliut the entity’s ability to continue as a goilngicern.” The ASU is effective for annual
periods ending after December 15, 2016, and intpanods thereafter; early adoption is permittdse Tompany is evaluating the impact the
adoption of ASU 2014-15 will have on its consol@thfinancial statements.

Note 2 — Investments
As of January 3, 2015 , the Company held the fallgveecurities and investments, recorded at fdireza

Unrealized
Amortized

Cost Gains Losses Fair Value

Mutual funds® $ 62 $ — 3 — 3 62

As of December 28, 2013 , the Company held thewoitig securities and investments, recorded awlire:

. Unrealized
Amortized
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Mutual funds® $ 4C $ 7 $ = & 47
(1) Mutual funds are classified as short-term gineents available-for-sale and recorded at faiketaralue, based on quoted prices of

identical assets that are trading in active mar&etsf the end of the period for which the valuesdetermined.

Proceeds from the sale of available-for-sale stesrare disclosed separately in the accompanyingatidated statements of cash flow.
For fiscal years 2014 and 2013, the Company rezegra realized loss of $1 from the sale of mutuadi§.

Note 3 — Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as an exit price represerttiegamount that would be received to sell an agsgaid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participantsséeh, fair value is a market-based measuremenshioalld be determined based on
assumptions that market participants would useiging an asset or liability.

Provisions of ASC 820 establish a three-tier failue hierarchy, which prioritizes the inputs usednieasuring fair value. These tiers
include:

Level 1- Observable inputs such as quoted prices in actadets;
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Level 2— Inputs other than quoted prices in active marttetsare either directly or indirectly observalaap
Level 3— Unobservable inputs in which little or no marlata exists, therefore, requiring an entity to dgyés own assumptions.

We measure our financial assets and liabilitifaiatvalue on a recurring basis using the followurgduation techniques:

(&) Market Approach — uses prices and other relewormation generated by market transactionslivimg identical or comparable assets or
liabilities.

(b) Income Approach — uses valuation techniquestwert future estimated cash flows to a singésent amount based on current market
expectations about those future amounts, usingpteslue techniques.

Financial Assets Valued on a Recurring Basis

As of January 3, 2015 and December 28, 2013 , theg@ny held certain assets that are required todasured at fair value on a
recurring basis. These included the Company'’s firinstruments, including cash and cash equitaland investments. The following table
represents our fair value hierarchy and the valnagchniques used for financial assets measurfadt aalue on a recurring basis:

January 3, 2015

Valuation
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Techniques
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalefits $ 7,65. % 7,65. 3 —  $ — ()
Investments — mutual funéfs 62 62 — — (a)
$ 7,71 $ 7,71 $ — 8 —
December 28, 2013
Valuation
Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Techniques
Assets:
Cash and cash equivalefits $ 81 $ 81 $ —  $ — ()
Investments — mutual funéfs 47 47 — — (a)
$ 865 % 86 $ — % —
(1) Cash equivalents consist primarily of moneykatfunds and short-term investments with origmalturity dates of three months or
less at the date of purchase, for which the Complatgrmines fair value through quoted market prices
(2) Investments consist of mutual funds, clasdifis short-term investments available-for-salerandrded at fair market value, based on

guoted prices of identical assets that are trathiragtive markets as of the end of the period fhicl the values are determined.

During fiscal year 2014 and 2013 , there were andfers into or out of Level 1 and Level 2 assets.

Non-Financial Assets Valued on a Non-Recurring Basis

The Company’s long-lived assets, including intateyéssets subject to amortization, are measurfsir atalue on a non-recurring basis.
These assets are measured at cost but are wraten- fair value, if necessary, as a result ofampent. As of January 3, 2018he Compan
identified adverse events related to the Compdimgdscial performance, including a downward trendjioss margin, and continued operating
losses, which indicated certain property and egeipirmay not be recoverable. The Company performgairment testing under the
provisions of ASC 360 and after performing stefh&, Company determined property and equipment waisnpaired as of January 3, 2015,
such, they were not measured at fair value. If surhfinancial assets had been measured at faieytiey would be categorized in Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy, as the Company woulddepiired to develop its own assumptions and analgsietermine if such nofiancial asse
were impaired.
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During the second quarter of 2013, the Companytifiketh adverse events related to the Company’sailvBnancial performance,
including the continued downward trend in the Comypsrevenues and gross margin, and a sustainditeét the Company’s share price,
that would more likely than not reduce the fairneabf the Company'’s long-lived assets below thairying amount. The Company performed
its impairment testing of long-lived assets, in¢hgdintangible assets subject to amortization,ceoadance with ASC 360. The Company
recorded impairment losses on property and equipamhintangible assets of $4,832 and $1,245 emsely. The fair value measurements
are categorized as Level 3 of the fair value h@maras the Company developed its own assumptiothsaalysis to determine if such assets
were impaired.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the total impaént loss was $26,427 . The Company recorded imgair losses on property and
equipment, goodwill and intangible assets of $1,9%08,854 and $5,613 , respectively. The fair @aheasurements are categorized as Level
of the fair value hierarchy, as the Company dewadidfs own assumptions and analysis to determigecii assets were impaired.

Refer to “Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Polieied Nature of Operations’ “ Note 4 — Property and Equipment, Net”
and “Note 5 — Intangible Assets, Ndtr additional details.

Note 4 — Property and Equipment, Net

The Company'’s fixed assets are stated at cosatessnulated depreciation, amortization and impaiti@epreciation and amortization
expense are provided for in amounts sufficienetate the cost of depreciable and amortizable sigsetperations over their estimated service
lives. Depreciation and amortization expense fardi year 2014 , 2013 and 2012 was $8,923 , $1234d%15,204 , respectively. For fiscal
years 2014 and 2013, the balance includes amaotizexpense c$475 and $317 , respectively, for capital leassgtagelated to the LaSalle,
lllinois facility (see sale-leaseback discussiolobefor details). The cost and related accumulaiggreciation of assets retired or otherwise
disposed of are removed from the accounts ancethdtant gain or loss is reflected in earnings.

The Company accounts for the impairment of propany equipment in accordance with ASC 388 of January 3, 2015 , the Company
identified adverse events related to the Compdimgdsicial performance, including a downward trendjioss margin, and continued operating
losses, which indicated certain property and egeipirmay not be recoverable. The Company performgairment testing under the
provisions of ASC 360 and after performing stefh&, Company determined property and equipment wasnpaired as of January 3, 2015.
During the second quarter of 2013, the Companiytifileth adverse events related to the Company’sallvBnancial performance, including
accelerating downward trend in the Company’s reesrand gross margin, which indicated that the gagrgmount of certain property and
equipment may not be recoverable. Given the indisatf impairment, the Company utilized the royaitvings method rather than cost
method in determining the fair values, using aalistt rate of 14.5% and royalty rate of 1.0% . Baseds analysis, the Company recognized
an impairment loss on internally developed softwar$4,832 . Any future decline in the fair valueam asset group could result in future
impairments. During the fourth quarter of 2012, @@mpany recognized an impairment loss on building internally developed website and
software development costs of $1,000 and $96(ertively. The Company estimated the fair valuéhefbuilding at La Salle, lllinois at the
expected selling price to Store Capital AcquisisionLC. The Company used the royalty savings methtter than cost method in determin
the fair values of the internally developed welssaad software, using a discount rate of 15% ayaltyorate of 2.5% . Any future decline in
the fair value of an asset group could result tnreiimpairments. All impairment losses in fiscahys 2013 and 2012 are included in the Base
USAP reportable segment.

Refer to“Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Policéd Nature of Operationsind “Note 3 — Fair Value Measurementfsr
additional details.
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Property and equipment consisted of the followihdamuary 3, 2015 and December 28, 2013 :

January 3,

2015 December 28, 2013
Land $ 63C $ 63C
Building 8,87 8,87
Machinery and equipment 9,79¢ 12,16:
Computer software (purchased and developed) angrequt 45,17( 55,38:
Vehicles 13€ 264
Leasehold improvements 1,761 1,765
Furniture and fixtures 1,03¢ 1,057
Construction in process 1,904 2,06¢
69,311 82,20"

Less accumulated depreciation, amortization ancimpent (52,34%) (62,544
Property and equipment, net $ 16,96¢ $ 19,66

On April 17, 2013, the Company’s wholly-owned suliiy, Whitney Automotive Group, Inc. (“WAG®ntered into a sales leasebacl
its facility in LaSalle, lllinois, receiving $9,758ursuant to a purchase and sale agreement datédd Ap2013 between WAG and STORE
Capital Acquisitions, LLC. The Company used thepreteeds of $9,507 (net of $77 in legal fees) fthim sale to reduce its revolving loan
payable. Simultaneously with the execution of thechase and sale agreement and the closing oatb@fkthe property, the Company entered
into a lease agreement with STORE Master FundinglLiC (“STORE") whereby we leased back the propéar our continued use as an
office, retail and warehouse facility for storagale and distribution of automotive parts, acceéss@nd related items for 20 years, terminating
on April 30, 2033 . The related assets represenathounts included in land and building in the samnabove. The Company’s initial base
annual rent is $853 for the first year (“Base Remount”), after which the rental amount will incezaannually on May 1 by the lesser of 1.5%
or 1.25 times the change in the Consumer Pricexiadgublished by the U.S. Department of Labor'seBu of Labor Statistics, except that in
no event will the adjusted annual rental amountifalow the Base Rent Amount. We were not requiogolay any security deposit. Under the
terms of the lease, we are required to pay allst@esociated with the lease, pay for any requirgicitenance on the property, maintain certain
levels of insurance and indemnify STORE for lodeearred that are related to our use or occupahtiyeoproperty. The lease was accounted
for as a capital lease and the $376 excess ofaghpraceeds over the net carrying amount of thperty is amortized in interest expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term of 20 yefsf January 3, 2015, the gross carrying vale accumulated depreciation and the net
carrying value of all capital leased assets inaludegoroperty and equipment were $9,643 , $907%%d36 , respectively. As of December 28,
2013, the gross carrying value, the accumulatedegéggion and the net carrying value of all cagialsed assets included in property and
equipment were $9,771 , $518 and $9,253 , respdgtiv

Construction in process primarily relates to thenpany’s internally developed software (refer toteap” Website and Software
Development Cos” in “ Note 1 — Summary of Significant Accounting Polieied Nature of Operations). Certain of the Company’s net
property and equipment were located in the Phifippias of January 3, 2015 and December 28, 201iBe iamount of $244 and $508 ,
respectively.

Depreciation of property and equipment is providsihg the straight-line method for financial rejpagtpurposes, at rates based on the
following estimated useful lives:

Years

Machinery and equipment

Computer software (purchased and developed)
Computer equipment

Vehicles

Leasehold improvements*

Furniture and fixtures

Facility subject to capital lease 20

W W wWwNNDN
1 1
~N o1 ool w Gl

* The estimated useful life is the lesser of 3years or the lease tel
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Note 5 — Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets consisted of the following auday 3, 2015 and December 28, 2013 :

January 3, 2015 December 28, 2013
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accum. Net
Carrying Amort. and Carrying Carrying Amort. and Carrying
Useful Life Amount Impairment Amount Amount Impairment Amount
Intangible assets
subject to amortizatior
Product design
intellectual property® 4 years 2,75( (2,109 64€ 2,75( (1,847 90¢
Patent license
agreements 3 -5 years 537 (94) 443
Domain and trade
names 10 year: 1,19¢ (589 61€ 1,19¢ (50€) 693
Total $ 4,48¢ $ 2,779 $ 1,707 $ 3,94¢ $ (2,34¢) $ 1,601
(1) During the second quarter of 2013, basedsimipairment analysis, the Company changed thmatdd useful life for product design

and intellectual property from 9 years to 4 years.

Intangible assets subject to amortization are dnsatton a straight-line basis. Amortization expergdating to intangibles totaled $422 ,
$381 and $1,189 for fiscal year 2014 , 2013 an®20#&spectively.

The following table summarizes the future estimatedual amortization expense for these assetstioeerext five years:

2015 $ 45¢
2016 45¢
2017 321
2018 162
2019 77
Thereafter 231
Total $ 1,70

Note 6 — Borrowings

The Company maintains an asset-based revolvingt daeility that provides for, among other thingseawolving commitment in an
aggregate principal amount of up to $25,000 , wigctubject to a borrowing base derived from centaceivables, inventory and property and
equipment. Upon satisfaction of certain conditidghe, Company has the right to increase the revgleommitment to up to $40,000 . The
Company, to date, has not requested such increBsesredit facility matures on April 26, 2017 . Xdnuary 3, 2015, our outstanding
revolving loan balance was $11,022 . The custoraaents of default under the credit facility (disses below) include certain subjective
acceleration clauses, which management has detedritie likelihood of such acceleration is more trenote, considering the recurring los
experienced by the Company, therefore a curressifieation of our revolving loan payable was regdi

The Company entered into a sixth amendment toréhditdfacility effective January 2, 2015. Pursumthe Amendment, the following
amendments to the Credit Agreement were made, aotbegs:

* The net orderly liquidation value inventory advanat was increased from 85% to 90%.

« The Company’s required excess availability edab the “Covenant Testing Trigger Period” (asrdef under the Credit
Agreement) under the revolving commitment underGhedit Agreement was reduced to less than $2 @00 fess than $4,000
for the period commencing on any day that exceasahility is less than $2,000 and continuing usiitess availability has
been greater than or equal to $2,000 for 45 cotisecdays.
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» The period during which the Company is subjed fixed charge coverage ratio begins after Jn@@16 and the applicable
testing period would begin for a 5 month periodiegdvay 31, 2016 or fiscal year 2016 rather tharading twelve month
period. The full trailing twelve month testing petiwould begin with the twelve month period endberember 31, 2016.

» Certain negative covenants applicable to the @m and AutoMD, a subsidiary of the Company, esldb certain contractual
and financial tests to permit the Company and Aubofd consummate certain obligations set forth malgreements entered
into by the Company and AutoMD on October 8, 2t (Financing Documents”) in connection with tkaesof AutoMD
common stock to certain investors (the “AutoMD Fiomg”) have been revised where the availabiliyuieements are no
longer applicable until after June 30, 2016 anthkrrrevised reducing the availability requiremien$2,000 before and after
giving effect to the consummation of such obligasio

» The trigger, requiring the Company to provide@a reports under the Credit Agreement, relatingxcess availability under
the revolving commitment under the Credit Agreembas been reduced to less than $4,000 from lass$$,000 and
continuing until excess availability has been geetttan or equal to $4,000 for 45 consecutive days.

Loans drawn under the credit facility bear interasthe Company’s option, at a per annum rateldqueither (a) one month LIBOR plus
an applicable margin of 2.25% , or (b) an “alteeniadse rate” plus an applicable margin of 0.254bs8quent to June 30, 2016, each
applicable margin as set forth in the prior senéeéscsubject to reduction by up to 0.50% per anbased upon the Company’s fixed charge
coverage ratio. At January 3, 2015 , the Compabb\BOR based interest rate was 2.44% (on $11,00&jpal) and the Company’s prime
based rate was 3.50% (on $22 principal). A commitnfiee, based upon undrawn availability under thed® Facility bearing interest at a rate
of 0.25% per annum, is payable monthly. Underténens of the credit agreement, cash receipts gresited into a lock-box, which are at the
Company’s discretion unless the “cash dominionquBris in effect, during which cash receipts widl bsed to reduce amounts owing under th
Credit Agreement. The cash dominion period is &ggl in an event of default or if excess availgbit less than $4,000 at any time, as
defined, and will continue until, during the preed45 consecutive days, no event of default ediated excess availability has been greater
than $4,000 at all times. The Company’s excesdahibliy was $8,329 at January 3, 2015 .

Certain of the Company’s domestic subsidiariescarborrowers (together with the Company, the “Baecs”) under the Credit
Agreement, and certain other domestic subsidiarieguarantors (the “Guarantors” and, together thighBorrowers, the “Loan Partiesipder
the Credit Agreement. The Borrowers and the Guarardre jointly and severally liable for the Boren’ obligations under the Credit
Agreement. The Loan Parties’ obligations underGhedit Agreement are secured, subject to customemyitted liens and certain exclusions,
by a perfected security interest in (a) all tangidhd intangible assets and (b) all of the capttadk owned by the Loan Parties (limited, in the
case of foreign subsidiaries, to 65% of the capiiatk of such foreign subsidiaries). The Borroweey voluntarily prepay the loans at any
time with payment of a premium equal to the aggieegavolving commitments multiplied by 0.5% if suelmination of the commitments
occurs prior to January 2, 2016. If prepayment ccafter January 2, 2016 no premium is requiree. Bbrrowers are required to make
mandatory prepayments of the loans (without payro€atpremium) with net cash proceeds received tperccurrence of certain
“prepayment events,” which include certain salestber dispositions of collateral, certain casualtgondemnation events, certain equity
issuances or capital contributions, and the incuweeof certain debt.

The Credit Agreement contains customary representatind warranties and customary affirmative aeghitive covenants applicable to
the Company and its subsidiaries, including, anathgr things, restrictions on indebtedness, likmgjamental changes, investments,
dispositions, prepayment of other indebtednessgensy and dividends and other distributions.

The period during which the Company is subject tixed charge coverage ratio begins after Jun2806 and the applicable testing
period would begin for a five month period endingyB1, 2016 or fiscal year 2016 rather than aitigitwelve month period. The full trailing
twelve month testing period would begin with theelve month period ending December 31, 2016. Dutegperiod when the Company is not
subject to a fixed charge coverage ratio an “Avalify Block” (as defined under the Credit Agreeneof $2,000 will be in effect, and
thereafter the “Availability Block” will be elimirted. Beginning July 1, 2016, in the event that &sgavailability” &s defined under the Cre
Agreement) is less than $2,000 , the Company bealéquired to maintain a minimum fixed charge cage ratio of 1.0 to 1.0. Events of
default under the Credit Agreement include: failtwéimely make payments due under the Credit Agesd; material misrepresentations or
misstatements under the Credit Agreement and otteied agreements; failure to comply with covesamider the Credit Agreement and ot
related agreements; certain defaults in respecthafr material indebtedness; insolvency or othiated events; certain defaulted judgments;
certain ERISA-related events; certain securityrggés or liens under the loan documents cease tur laee challenged by the Company or any
of its subsidiaries as not being, in full force affict; any loan document or any material provisié the same ceases to be in full force and
effect; and certain criminal
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indictments or convictions of any Loan Party. Aslahuary 3, 2015 , the Company was in compliante ali covenants under the Credit
Agreement.

As of January 3, 2015 , the Company had total ablgiases payable of $ $9,539 . The present vdltleemet minimum payments on
capital leases as of January 3, 2015 is as follows:

Total minimum lease payments $ 18,52(
Less amount representing interest (8,98))
Present value of net minimum lease payments 9,53¢
Current portion of capital leases payable (269)
Capital leases payable, net of current portion $ 9,27(

Note 7 — Stockholders’ Equity and Share-Based Compeation
Non-Controlling Interest

Non-controlling interests represent equity inteséstconsolidated subsidiaries that are not atizsible, either directly or indirectly, to the
Company (i.e., minority interests). Non-controllimjerests include the minority equity holders'goydionate share of the equity of AutoMD.

Ownership interests in subsidiaries held by padtbesr than the Company are presented as non-dorgrimterests within stockholders'
equity, separately from the equity held by the Canmp Revenues, expenses, net loss and other coemsied income are reported in the
consolidated financial statements at the cons@atlamounts, which includes amounts attributabletb the Company's interest and the non-
controlling interests in AutoMD. Net loss and otkemprehensive income is then attributed to the @omy's interest and the non-controlling
interests. Net loss to non-controlling interestdaducted from net loss in the consolidated statésref comprehensive operations to determing
net loss attributable to the Company's common siolders.

The table below presents the changes in the Consamyership interest in AutoMD on the Companysitgq

Fiscal Year Ended

December 28, December 29,
January 3, 2015 2013 2012
Net loss attributable to U.S. Auto Parts stockhde $ (6,879 $ (15,639 $ (35,979
Transfers (to) from the noncontrolling intetre

Increase in U.S. Auto Parts paid-in-capital frore s

AutoMD common stock 2,51z — —
Changes from net loss attributable to U.S. Autd$Pstockholders' )
and transfers to noncontrolling interest $ (4361 $ (15,639 $ (35,979

Common Stock

The Company has 100,000 shares of common stockrzehl. We have never paid cash dividends on oomoon stock. The following
issuances of common stock were made during thal figar ended January 3, 2015 :

. The Company issued 144 shares of common stook @iption exercises under its various shased compensation pla
. The Company issued 2hares of common stock from restricted stock uhds vested during the perii
. 107shares of common stock were issued as stock did&len the Series A Preferr

Series A Convertible Preferred Stock

On March 25, 2013, the Company authorized the resuaf 4,150 shares of Series A Preferred andeghiato a Securities Purchase
Agreement pursuant to which the Company agreedltais to an aggregate of 4,150 shares of our Sériereferred, $0.001 par value per
share at a purchase price per share of $1.45 fyeggte proceeds to the Company of approximatey1$6. On March 25, 2013, we sel@®0C
shares of Series A Preferred for aggregate proaafets, 800 . On April 5, 2013, we sold the remainirb0 shares of Series A Preferred for
aggregate proceeds of $217 . The Company incusseince costs of $847 and used the net proceedsteosale of the Series A Preferred to
reduce its revolving loan payable.
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Each share of Series A Preferred is convertible stiares of our common stock at the initial corearsate of one share of common
stock for each share of Series A Preferred. Theasion will be adjusted for certain non-price lwhegents, such as dividends and
distributions on the common stock, stock splitsnbations, recapitalizations, reclassificationgrgers, or consolidations. If not previously
converted by the holder, the Series A Preferretlavtiomatically convert to common stock if the vokiweighted average price for the
common stock for any 30 consecutive trading daysjisal to or exceeds $4.35 per share. The shabwdthuld be issued if the contingently
convertible Series A Preferred were converted actuded from the calculation of diluted earnings gieare due to the Company’s net loss
position for the fiscal year ended January 3, 20é&fer to“Note 8 — Net Loss Per Sharddr anti-dilutive securities).

In the event of any liquidation event, which inascchanges of control of the Company and salether dispositions by the Company
more than 50% of its assets, the Series A Prefésredtitled to receive, prior and in preferencang distribution to the common stock, an
amount per share equal to $1.45 per share of Sefeeferred, plus all then accrued but unpaidddinds on such Series A Preferred.
Following this distribution, if assets or surpluséls remain, the holders of the common stock shalte ratably in all remaining assets of the
Company, based on the number of shares of comrook gten outstanding. Notwithstanding the foregpifign connection with any
liquidation event, a holder of Series A Preferrealild receive an amount greater than $1.45 per sticderies A Preferred by converting such
shares held by such holder into shares of comnumk sthen such holder shall be treated as though lsalder had converted such shares of
Series A Preferred into shares of common stock idiately prior to such liquidation event, whethemet such holder had elected to so
convert.

Dividends on the Series A Preferred are payableteiy at a rate of $0.058 per share per annunagicin shares of common stock or in
any combination of cash and common stock as detedrby the Company’s Board of Directors. Certainditions are required to be satisfied
in order for the Company to pay dividends on theeSeA Preferred in shares of common stock, inelgdi) the common stock being registe
pursuant to Section 12(b) or (g) of the Securiigshange Act of 1934, as amended, (ii) the commackdeing issued having been approved
for listing on a trading market and (iii) the commstock being issued either being covered by att¥ie registration statement or being freely
tradable without restriction under Rule 144 (subjecertain exceptions). The Series A Preferradl glach be entitled to one vote per share fc
each share of common stock issuable upon convettsgwaof (excluding from any such calculation aiwd#nds accrued on such shares) and
shall vote together with the holders of common st a single class on any matter on which thednsldf common stock are entitled to vote.
In addition, the Company must obtain the consemtotders of at least a majority of the then outdiag Series A Preferred in connection with
(a) any amendment, alteration or repeal of anyipiow of the certificate of incorporation or bylaekthe Company as to adversely affect the
preferences, rights or voting power of the Serid3réferred, or (b) the creation, authorizationssuance of any additional Series A Preferre
any other class or series of capital stock of them@any ranking senior to or on parity with the 8sil\ Preferred or any security convertible
into, or exchangeable or exercisable for SeriesefdPred or any other class or series of capitalksof the Company ranking senior to or on
parity with the Series A Preferred. Concurrent vifita Company’s issuance of Series A PreferredCtmapany, certain of its domestic
subsidiaries and JPMorgan entered into a SeconchAetkeCredit Agreement to allow the Company to meshalividends on the Series A
Preferred in an aggregate amount of up to $40@gerand pay cash in lieu of issuing fractionakshaipon conversion of or in payment of
dividends on the Series A Preferred (refefNote 6 — Borrowings”of our Notes to Consolidated Financial Statememtsdlditional details).
The Company issued Zhares in payment of dividends on the dividend gaytrdate of December 31, 2013 related to the diddbstributabl
on the Series A Preferred of $60 accrued on Dece&$)e2013. For the fiscal year ended January 852the Company recorded dividends of
$240 . The Company issued 83 shares of common Bigikyment of the fiscal 2014 dividends. Thereewso accrued dividends outstanding
as of January 3, 2015.

Share-Based Compensation Plan Information

The Company adopted the 2007 Omnibus Incentive @@1'2007 Omnibus Plan”) in January 2007, whielsdme effective on
February 8, 2007, the effective date of the regiigin statement filed in connection with the Compsainitial public offering. Under the 2007
Omnibus Plan, the Company was previously authoriaésisue 2,400 shares of common stock, underwsiitstruments to eligible employees
and non-employees of the Company, plus an autoraatioal increase on the first day of each of then@any’s fiscal years beginning on
January 1, 2008 and ending on January 1, 2017 ém(aithe lesser of (A) 1,500 shares of commimelsor (B) five percent (5)% of the
number of shares of common stock outstanding ofetelay of the immediately preceding fiscal yaa(ii) such lesser number of shares of
common stock as determined by the CompaBdard of Directors. Options granted under the720hnibus Plan generally expire no later 1
ten years from the date of grant and generally @est a period of four years . The exercise pricalloption grants must be equal to 100% of
the fair market value on the date of grant. The720@hnibus Plan also provides for automatic grartpafons to purchase common stock and
common stock awards to non-employee directors.fAlswouary 3, 2015, 1,515 shares were availableufare grants under the 2007 Omnibus
Plan. Since the restricted stock units (“RSUs”)evgranted under the 2007 Omnibus
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Plan, such RSUs granted have been deducted froovérall pool of equity instruments available untter 2007 Omnibus Plan. For further
detail, see Restricted Stock Unit discussion below.

The Company adopted the 2007 New Employee InceRtize (the “2007 New Employee Plan”) in October 200nder the 2007 New
Employee Plan, the Company is authorized to issp@02shares of common stock under various instrisrsmiely to new employees. Options
granted under the 2007 New Employee Plan genexafiire no later than ten years from the date afitgmad generally vest over a period of
four years . The exercise price of all option gsantst not be less than 100% of the fair markeatevah the date of grant. As of January 3,
2015, 1,552 shares were available for future granter the 2007 New Employee Plan.

The Company adopted the U.S. Auto Parts Netwoik,2006 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2006 Plan"March 2006. All stock options
to purchase common stock granted to employeesdf @@re granted under the 2006 Plan and had eggrdises equal to the fair value of the
underlying stock, as determined by the Company’arBof Directors on the applicable option granedatfter fiscal year 2008, no shares have
been available for future grants under the 2006.Pla

The following table summarizes the Company’s stoption activity for the fiscal year ended Januarg@®15 , and details regarding the
options outstanding and exercisable at JanuarQ1h 2

Weighted Average
Weighted Remaining
Average Contractual Aggregate
Shares Exercise Price Term (in years) Intrinsic Value @
Options outstanding, December 28, 2013 532( $ 2.97 6.77
Granted 84C $ 2.32
Exercised (142) $ 2.0€
Cancelled:
Forfeited (51) $ 1.7¢C
Expired (226) $ 6.61
Options outstanding, January 3, 2015 5281 $ 2.8t 6.10 $ 1,867
Vested and expected to vest at January 3, 2015 4,88 $ 2.9¢ 5.87 $ 1,68¢
Options exercisable, January 3, 2015 3,466 $ 3.3C 468 $ 1,00«
(1) These amounts represent the difference bettteeexercise price and the closing price of U.®oAParts Network, Inc. common

stock on January 3, 2015 as reported on the NASBAIQK Market, for all options outstanding that hameexercise price currently
below the closing price.

The weighted-average fair value of options gratadhg fiscal year 2014, 2013 and 2012 was $18422 and $2.53respectively. Th
intrinsic value of stock options at the date of ¢ixercise is the difference between the fair valuthe stock at the date of exercise and the
exercise price. During fiscal year 2014, 2013 a@ti2? the total intrinsic value of the exercisedam was $153 , $61 and $1,244 ,
respectively. The Company had $1,601 of unrecogrnsbare-based compensation expense related togtioks outstanding as of January 3,
2015, which expense is expected to be recognizedaweighted-average period of 2.66 years.

Restricted Stock Units

During 2014 we granted an aggregate of 1,015 R8Wertain employees of the Company. The RSUs wengted under the 2007
Omnibus Plan, and reduced the pool of equity imsémis available under that plan.

Of the 1,015 RSU'’s, 738 are time-based, which upenh the completion of a pre-defined period of eyiplent, ranging from one- to-
two years. The remaining 277 RSUs are performaased RSUs, the number of which that vest, if anly be determined upon the
achievement of certain pre-defined financial gaalfiscal year 2014. The vesting of each RSU igesttlio the employee’s continued
employment through applicable vesting dates. SoBdsgranted to certain executives may vest on eglerated basis in part or in full upon
the occurrence of certain events. The RSUs areuated for as equity awards and are measured atdhie based upon the grant date price of
the Company's common stock. The closing price ®Gbmpany's common stock on February 14, 2014) Bp#014, and August 1, 2014, the
date of each grant, was $2.03 , $2.93 , and $3018hmre, respectively. Compensation expenseagmnéed on a straight-line basis over the
requisite service period of one-to-two years. Comgption expense for performance-based awards isureshbased on the amount of shares
ultimately expected to vest, estimated at eachrtigodate based on management’s expectationsdiegathe relevant
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performance criteria. As of January 3, 2015, théopmance criteria had been met on 171 RSUs ang&fférmance RSUs were forfeited.

For the fiscal year ended January 3, 2015, we decbcompensation expense of $ 1,345 . As of Jaryy&@915, there was unrecognized
compensation expense of $ 757 related to unvéBtiks based on awards that are expected to vestinfheognized compensation expense |
expected to be recognized over a weighted-averagedoof 0.9 years.

Stock Option Exchange Program

On July 9, 2013, the Compasystockholders approved a proposed stock optiohagge program for the exchange of certain outshay
stock options held by eligible employees for newiays to purchase fewer shares. On August 12, 20&83Company commenced an offering
to eligible employees to voluntarily exchange derteested and unvested stock options with exemiges above $4.00 per share at an
exchange ratio of 3.5 to 1 to be granted followtimg expiration of the tender offer with exercise@s equal to the fair market value of one
share of the Company’s common stock on the dapeéheoptions were issued. Stock options to purchassggregate of 3,733 shares with
exercise prices ranging from $4.01 to $11.68 wégibée for tender at the commencement of the paagrThe Company’s non-employee
directors were not eligible to participate in tiregram. The terms and conditions of the new optamessubject to an entirely new four year
vesting schedule where 25% will vest on the firstigersary, and the remaining 75% will vest monitwer the following 36 months . All new
options have a ten year contractual term. The giéeiod for the stock option exchange ended onedaiper 9, 2013.

On September 10, 2013, the Company accepted fbaage 3,475 eligible options to purchase commarksteith a weighted average
exercise price of $6.65 for 45 eligible employeey] issued 993 unvested options to purchase shiites Company’s common stock with an
exercise price of $0.9866 , the closing price ef@ompany’s common stock on that day. Using thelB&choles option pricing model, the
Company determined that the fair value of the suleeed stock options on a grant-by-grant basislevasr than the fair value of the new stock
options, as of the date of the exchange, resuitimgcremental fair value of $422 . The incremeffigdd value as a result of the stock option
exchange and the remaining compensation expenseiassl with the surrendered stock options wiltésorded as compensation expense
the four year vesting period of the new options.

The fair value of the surrendered stock optionstaechew stock options was estimated on the dateeoxchange using the Black-
Scholes option pricing model with the following asgtions:

Surrendered New

Stock Options Stock Options
Expected life 1.93 — 6.87 years 5.84 years
Risk-free interest rate 0.5% — 2.4% 2.0%
Expected volatility 55% — 73% 72%
Expected dividend yield —% —%

Warrants

On May 5, 2009, the Company issued warrants tohase up to 30 shares of common stock at an exgeneeseof $2.14 per share. On
April 27, 2010, the Company issued additional watisdo purchase up to 20 shares of common stoak ekercise price of $8.32 per share.
Both issuances of warrants terminate seven yetstagir grant date. The warrants were issue@imection with the financial advisory
services provided by a consultant to the Compammywisrrants were exercised as of fiscal year 2084ofAlanuary 3, 2015 , warrants to
purchase 50 shares of common stock were outstaaditig@xercisable. The aggregate intrinsic valueutdtanding and exercisable warrants
was $2 as of January 3, 2015 , which was calculeatie difference between the exercise price dédying awards and the closing price of
the Company’s common stock for warrants that wesgaé-money. Total warrants share-based compensatipense recognized during the
fiscal years ended January 3, 2015 , December®@8 and December 29, 2012 was $0 , $0 and $1pectgely. The Company had no
unrecognized share-based compensation expensedrédatvarrants outstanding as of January 3, 2015 .

Share-Based Compensation Expense

The fair value of each option grant, excluding thoptions issued from the stock option exchanggraro as discussed above, was
estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Bshaption pricing model with the following assutiops for each of the periods ended:
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Fiscal Year Ended

January 3, 2015 December 28, 2013 December 29, 2012
Expected life 5.30 - 5.37 years 5.21 - 5.73 years 5.73 years
Risk-free interest rate 2% - 2% 1% — 2% 1%
Expected volatility 62% - 68% 67% — 73% 71% — 74%
Expected dividend yield —% —% —%

Share-based compensation from options, warrantstacf awards, is included in our consolidatedcest@nts of comprehensive
operations, as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended
January 3, 2015 December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012

Marketing expense $ 54C $ 28t % 50&

General and administrative expense 1,47¢ 80t 1,11¢

Fulfillment expensé’ 22( 102 (39

Technology expense 13t 71 87
Total share-based compensation expense $ 2371 % 1,26 $ 1,67

(1) For the fifty-two weeks ended December 29,2@e negative balance was due to an adjustme$t’#df related to performance stock

options where the performance goal was not metwas not probable to be met at the end of theisdqiservice period.

The share-based compensation expense is net ofnésneapitalized to internally-developed softwar&d®6 , $220 and $252 during the
fiscal year 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. &obenefit was recognized for fiscal year 2014,281d 2012 due to the valuation allowance
position.

Under ASC 718, forfeitures are estimated at the tifhgrant and revised, if necessary, in subsequenidds if actual forfeitures
significantly differ from those estimates. The Canyp's estimated forfeiture rates are calculate@tba@s actual historical forfeitures
experienced under our equity plans. The Companyfsifure rates were 16% - 34% for fiscal years£®D13 and 2012.

Note 8 — Net Loss Per Share

Net loss per share has been computed in accorgatitASC 260Earnings per Sharelhe following table sets forth the computation of
basic and diluted net loss per share:

Fiscal Year Ended
January 3, 2015 December 28, 2013 December 29, 2012

Net loss per share:
Numerator:
Net loss attributable to U.S. Auto Parts

$ (6,879 $ (15,639 $ (35,979
Dividends on Series A Convertible Preferred Stock (240 (189 —
Net loss available to common shares $ (7,119 $ (15,819 $ (35,979
Denominator:
Weighted-average common shares outstanding (badidituted) 33,48¢ 32,69° 30,81¢
Basic and diluted net loss per share $ 0.2) $ (0.48) $ (1.1
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The weighted-average anti-dilutive securities, Wtace excluded from the calculation of diluted @aga per share due to the Company’s
net loss position for the periods then ended (itiolg securities that would otherwise be excludedifthe calculation of diluted earnings per

share due the Company’s stock price), are as fstlow

Fiscal Year
January 3, 2015 December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012
Common stock warrants 50 50 5C
Series A Convertible Preferred Stock 4,15(C 3,14¢ —
Options to purchase common stock 5,46 6,58¢ 7,64
Restricted Stock Units 79€ — —
Total 10,46: 9,77¢ 7,692

Note 9 — Income Taxes

The components of loss before income tax provismmsist of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3, 2015

December 28, 2013

December 29, 2012

Domestic operations $ (7,429 $ (16,155 $ (37,469
Foreign operations 47€ 564 554
Total loss before income taxes $ (6,94¢) $ (15,59) $ (36,919

Income tax (benefit) provision for fiscal year 202813 and 2012 consists of the following:

Fiscal Year Ended

January 3, 2015

December 28, 2013

December 29, 2012

Current:

Federal tax $ — 3 — % —

State tax (15) 20 14

Foreign tax 78 (37 (76)
Total current taxes 63 @7 (62
Deferred:

Federal tax (2,232 (5,260 (12,617)

State tax (125) (1,359 (2,61

Foreign tax 74 60 27¢
Total deferred taxes (2,289 (6,557%) (14,95%)
Valuation allowance 2,35¢ 6,61: 14,08(
Income tax (benefit) provision $ 13t % 43 $ (937)

Income tax (benefit) provision differs from the amothat would result from applying the federakstary rate as follows:
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January 3, 2015 December 28, 2013  December 29, 2012

Income tax at U.S. federal statutory rate $ (2,367) $ (5,300) $ (12,55))
Share-based compensation 33 43 38
State income tax, net of federal tax effect (149 (1,349 (2,52¢)
Foreign tax 117 70 (27
Other 127 (42 51
Change in valuation allowance 2,36¢ 6,621 14,08(
Effective tax (benefit) provision $ 136 $ 43 % (937)

For fiscal year 2014, 2013 and 2012, the effedtixerate for the Company was (2.0)% , (0.3)% abda?, respectively. The Company’s
effective tax rate for fiscal years presented diffieom the U.S. federal rate primarily as a resfithe recording valuation allowances against
the Company'’s deferred tax assets.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilitiesststed of the following:

January 3, 2015 December 28, 2013

Deferred tax assets:

Inventory and inventory related allowance $ 1,33 $ 1,07¢
Share-based compensation 5,24¢ 4,54¢
Amortization 11,80¢ 13,70
Sales and bad debt allowances 472 582
Vacation accrual 264 374
Book over tax amortization 10 377
Net operating loss and AMT credit carry-forwards 26,18¢ 23,11«
Other 807 38¢
Total deferred tax assets 46,12¢ 44,16(
Valuation Allowance (45,867 (43,509
Net deferred tax assets 25¢ 651
Deferred tax liabilities:
Investment in subsidiary 1,33¢ —
Tax over book depreciation 79 784
Foreign tax withholdings 40¢ —
Prepaid catalog expenses 18C 202
Total deferred tax liabilities 2,00: 98¢
Net deferred tax liabilities $ (1,749 $ (33%)

At January 3, 2015, federal and state net operadiss (“NOL”) carryforwards were $57,552 and $28,6 respectively. Federal NOL
carryforwards of $2,690 were acquired in the adtjaisof WAG which are subject to Internal Rever@ede section 382 and limited to an
annual usage limitation of $135 . Additionally, tlae benefit of $41 of the federal and state NOtrydarwards which was created by the
exercise of stock options will be credited to aiddial paid-in-capital once recognized. Federal Nfatryforwards begin to expire in 2029 ,
while state NOL carryforwards begin to expire irl3Q The state NOL carryforwards expire in the eesipe tax years as follows:

2015-2022 $ 40,55:
2023-2032 33,05°
Total $ 73,61(

On October 8, 2014, AutoMD sold seven million skaskits common stock to third-party investors,ugdg the Company’s ownership
interest in AutoMD to 64.1% . AutoMD will no longée included in the consolidated state and federal
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tax filings of the Company. As a result of the istreent a deferred tax liability of $ 1,335 was tedavhich reduced the increase in additional
paid-in-capital which was created as a result efitivestment. For the fiscal year ended Janua2@B5, the effective tax rate for AutoMD was
(0.2)% . AutoMD's effective tax rate differs frometU.S. federal statutory rate primarily as a tesfulhe recording of a $195 valuation
allowance against the Company's net deferred tset@sAt January 3, 2015, AutoMD had net operdtisg carryforwards (NOLS) of
approximately $2,582 for federal tax purposes ltegfin to expire in 2031. AutoMD state NOLs were maiterial as of January 3, 2015.

The valuation allowance for deferred tax assetsroml during fiscal year 2014 and 2013 is based wrore likely than not threshold.
The ability to realize deferred tax assets depend$e ability to generate sufficient taxable ineowithin the carryback or carryforward
periods provided for in the tax law for each apgihie tax jurisdiction. We considered the followjmgssible sources of taxable income when
assessing the realization of deferred tax assets:

. Future reversals of existing taxable temporaryedéhces

. Future taxable income exclusive of reversing terapodifferences and carryforwar
. Taxable income in prior carryback years;

. Taxplanning strategie

Under the provisions of ASC 740, “Income Taxes” nagement is required to evaluate whether a valatiowance should be
established against its deferred tax assets bastee@onsideration of all available evidence usirighore likely than not” standard.
Realization of deferred tax assets is dependent tgp@ble income in prior carryback years, estisatduture taxable income, tax planning
strategies, and reversal of existing taxable teanyatdifferences. ASC 740 provides that forming adatesion that a valuation allowance is not
needed is difficult when there is negative evideswoeh as cumulative losses in recent years ordasggected in early future years. Based on
this evaluation, as of January 3, 2015, a valnatitowance of $45,867 has been recorded againstefarred tax assets.

If, in the future, we generate taxable income @nstained basis in jurisdictions where we haverdambfull valuation allowances, our
conclusion regarding the need for full valuatiolowhnces in these tax jurisdictions could changsulting in the reversal of some or all of the
valuation allowances. If our operations generatatite income prior to reaching profitability onwstained basis, we would reverse a portic
the valuation allowance related to the correspandialized tax benefit for that period, without kang our conclusions on the need for a full
valuation allowance against the remaining net defetax assets.

Included in accrued expenses are income taxes leagh$33 and $26 for the fiscal year 2014 and 2@kpectively, consisting primarily
of foreign taxes.

Note 10 — Commitments and Contingencies
Facilities Leases

The Company’s corporate headquarters is locat€hmson, California. The Compaisycorporate headquarters has an initial leaseaé
five years through October 2016, and optional reaiswhrough January 2020. The Company also leageshwuse space in Chesapeake,
Virginia under an agreement scheduled to expituime 2016 . The Company’s Philippines subsidiaagds office space under a sixty-three
month agreement through May 2015, renewable fadatitional sixty months through April 2020. As betdate hereof, the Company has not
committed to any facilities lease renewals.

Facility rent expense for fiscal year ended 202@13 and 2012 was $1,895 , $2,150 and $2,388 ec#sply. The Company’s facility
rent expense was inclusive of amounts charged &oetated party of $378 during the fiscal year 28fid $374 for both fiscal years 2013 and
2012.

On September 22, 2011, the Company entered intblaase agreement for the leasing of approxim&&J§00 square feet of
commercial office space located in Carson, Calitoriihe Sublease has an initial term of 60 moritimétial Term”), and commenced on
November 1, 2011, effective t42"month of the Initial Term, we have the ability &srminate the Sublease in exchange for the paynient o
termination fee and we have the option to renewuth January 2020.

In January 2010, the Company’s Philippines subsidéatered into a new lease agreement that accome®the Company’s Philippines
workforce into one office building. Under the ternfghe lease agreement, effective March 1, 20i®ntonthly rent will be approximately
$25 , and is subject to 5% annual escalation béggnon the 3 rd year of the lease term and reneaalola sixty month term upon mutual
agreement of both parties.

In December 2008, the Company entered into a fiear-operating lease for warehouse space in Chalsap¢irginia, which commenc:
in January 2009 and was initially scheduled to ex December 2013 . In July 2011, we signed exfiv
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year extension tJune 30, 2016 , which also added approximately®®rs@uare feet of space. The monthly base rent cionemt was $6@s of
January 3, 2015 .

As described in detail undéxote 4 — Property and Equipment Neton April 17, 2013 , the Company entered intola Emse-back
agreement with STORE Master Funding Ill, LLC (“STBRwhereby we leased back our facility located @Balle, lllinois for our continued
use as an office, retail and warehouse facilitysforage, sale and distribution of automotive patsessories and related items for 20 years
commencing upon the execution of the lease andnatimg on April 30, 2033 . The related assetdffiersale lease-back land and building is
represented by the amount included in leased tyadilithe summary above. The Company’s initial baseual rent is $853 for the first year
(“Base Rent Amount”), after which the rental amowiit increase annually on May 1 by the lesser &4 or 1.25 times the change in the
Consumer Price Index as published by the U.S. Deant of Labor's Bureau of Labor Statistics, exdéjat in no event will the adjusted
annual rental amount fall below the Base Rent AnhoMe were not required to pay any security depbbiter the terms of the lease, we are
required to pay all taxes associated with the lgaag for any required maintenance on the propertintain certain levels of insurance and
indemnify STORE for losses incurred that are reldteour use or occupancy of the property. Thed@ess accounted for as a capital lease an
the $376 excess of the net proceeds over the mgtrpamount of the property is amortized in ietgtrexpense on a straight-line basis over th
lease term of 20 years. As of January 3, 2015 né¢hearrying value of all capital leased assetkided in property and equipment was $8,736

Minimum lease commitments under non-cancelableaijpey leases as of January 3, 2015 are as follows:

2015 $ 1,27¢
2016 78€
2017 —
2018 —
2019 —
Thereafter —
Total minimum lease commitments $ 2,06t

Capital lease commitments as of January 3, 2018 agfollows:

Capital Lease Less: Interest Principal

Commitments Payments Obligations
2015 $ 1,00¢ $ 74C  $ 26¢
2016 96¢ 72% 245
2017 90¢ 70¢ 20C
2018 91t 692 22%
2019 92¢ 674 254
2020 onwards 13,79: 5,441 8,35(
Total $ 18,52( $ 8,981 $% 9,53¢

Legal Matters

Asbestos A wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, AutometiSpecialty Accessories and Parts, Inc. and itdlyvloevned subsidiar
WAG, are named defendants in several lawsuits uirglclaims for damages caused by installationrakés during the late 1960’s and early
1970’s that contained asbestos. WAG marketed oebtaikes, but did not manufacture any brakes. WAsBhtains liability insurance coverage
to protect its and the Company’s assets from loagsig from the litigation and coverage is pr@ddn an occurrence rather than a claims
made basis, and the Company is not expected to siguificant out-of-pocket costs in connectiontwiihis matter that would be material to its
consolidated financial statements.

The Company is subject to legal proceedings arithslavhich arise in the ordinary course of its basi As of the date hereof, the
Company believes that the final disposition of saetters will not have a material adverse effecthenfinancial position, results of operations
or cash flow of the Company. The Company mainthafslity insurance coverage to protect the Compsuagsets from losses arising out of or
involving activities associated with ongoing andmal business operations.
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Note 11 — Employee Retirement Plan and Deferred Camensation Plan

Effective February 17, 2006, the Company adopté@igk) defined contribution retirement plan covgrail full time employees who
have completed one month of service. The Compary atats sole discretion, match fifty cents pellaloup to 6% of each participating
employee’s salary. The Company'’s contributions iresinnual installments over three years . Disongtiy contributions made by the
Company totaled $256 , $266 and $324 for fiscat 2844, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

In January 2010, the Company adopted the U.S. Ratts Network, Inc. Management Deferred Compensdian (the “Deferred
Compensation Plan”), for the purpose of providimghly compensated employees a program to meetfihaincial planning needs. The
Deferred Compensation Plan provides participantls thie opportunity to defer up to 90% of their baakary and up to 100% of their annual
earned bonus, all of which, together with the aisged investment returns, are 100% vested fronothset. The Deferred Compensation Plan,
which is designed to be exempt from most provisioithe Employee Retirement Security Act of 1984nformally funded by the Company
through the purchase of Compaoymed life insurance policies with the Company (kper) as the owner and beneficiary, in order &sprve
the tax-deferred savings advantages of a non-igdhfilan. The plan assets are the cash surrentler @athe Company-owned life insurance
policies and not associated with the deferred carsgigon liability. The deferred compensation lialas (consisting of employer contributions,
employee deferrals and associated earnings anesloaee general unsecured obligations of the Compaabilities under the Deferred
Compensation Plan are recorded at amounts duettoipants, based on the fair value of participasédected investments. The Company may
at its discretion contribute certain amounts tgible employee accounts. In January 2010, the Caynpagan to contribute 50% of the figsto
of participants’ eligible contributions into thédeferred Compensation Plan accounts. In Septentld), 2he Company established and
transferred its ownership to a rabbi trust to ikl Company-owned life insurance policies. As ofusay 3, 2015 , the assets and associated
liabilities of the Deferred Compensation Plan w884 and $749 , respectively, and were $876 an8 $83spectively, as of December 28,
2013 and are included in other non-current ase#tsy current liabilities and other neaorent liabilities in our consolidated balanceetkeFol
fiscal year 2014, the change in the associateditiab include the employee contributions of $12fie Company contributions of $32 and
earnings of $43 , offset by distributions of $2%or fiscal year 2013, the associated liabilitigsarily include the employee contributions of
$126 and the Company contributions of $38 and agenof $104 , offset by distributions of $82 . Fiecal year 2014, included in other
income, the Company recorded a net loss of $2thochange in the cash surrender value of the Coyapaned life insurance policies. For
fiscal year 2013, included in other income, the @any recorded a net gain of $73 for the changkdrcash surrender value of the Company-
owned life insurance policies.

Note 12 — Restructuring Costs

Fiscal 2014

On June 25, 2014, the Company committed to a plgetmanently close its distribution facility loedtin Carson, California (the
“Carson Distribution Facility”) effective July 22014. The Company consolidated the Carson DistabRacility’s distribution and
warehousing operations into the Company'’s exidfiistribution facilities located in LaSalle, llliroand Chesapeake, Virginia. This
consolidation was part of the Company’s continuféortes for simplification and improved efficiencieghe closure of the Carson Distribution
Facility resulted in a head count reduction of agpnately 77 employees.

The following table summarizes the charges reltddtie restructure recognized during the fiscal yemled January 3, 2015:

Employee severance $ 52¢
Accounts receivable allowance 73
Relocation costs (employee and equipment) 127
Inventory transfers 411
Total restructuring costs $ 1,13

Substantially all of the unsold inventory in ther€m Distribution Facility on the date of closurasimoved to the remaining two
warehouses. Costs related to inventory transfers veeorded to cost of sales. A charge for $130talken for inventory that was not deemed
economical to transfer. Additionally, due to expgectuture capacity constraints, the Company redtloedales price of certain inventory
resulting in a charge of $767 . The aggregate ehaf897 was recorded to cost of sales. The seeerharges and relocation costs were
included in fulfillment expense. Severance chawgee reduced by $26 in the fourth quarter of 204 4eatain employees were able to find
employment before they became eligible for sevardranefits. As of January 3, 2015, there was neraece payable.
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Fiscal 2013

In the first half of 2013, we laid off 13 employaaghe United States and 163 employees in thedpitiles reducing our workforce by a
total of 176 employees in the first quarter of 2@108 15employees in the second quarter of 2013. For tdualfiyear ended December 28, 2(
the severance charges of approximately $723 wereded in marketing expense, general and admitiisraxpense, fulfillment expense and
technology expense for $394 , $109 , $58 and $1é&pectively. As of December 28, 2013, there wasaverance payable and there were nc
adjustments made to severance payable duringsta frear ended December 28, 2013.

Fiscal 2012
In August 2012, we closed our call center in La&dllinois and reduced our workforce by 71 peaglsulting in severance charges of
approximately $640 recorded in marketing expendéllfnent expense and technology expense of $3288 and $16 , respectively.

All restructuring costs incurred in fiscal yearsl202013 and 2012 are included in the Base USA&rtaiple segment.

Note 13 — Related-Party Transactions

The Company leased its Carson warehouse from Ni@eChLC (“Nia Chloe”), a member of which, Sol Kraax, is one of our board of
directors. Lease payments and expenses associtdlkethis related party arrangement totaled $378igwal year 2014 and $374 each for fiscal
years 2013 and 2012. The lease expired duringl #2344 and was not renewe

On October 8, 2014, Oak Investment Partners Xl, {®ak") and the Sol Khazani Living Trust ("Truspurchased 1,500,000 and
500,000 shares of AutoMD common stock, respectjaia purchase price of $1.00 per share. Fredriel&¥man and Sol Khazani, each a
current director of the Company, are affiliatedhw@ak and the Trust, respectively.

The Company has entered into indemnification agezegswith the Compang’'directors and executive officers. These agreesrequire
the Company to indemnify these individuals to thkeft extent permitted under law against lialgBtihat may arise by reason of their service
to the Company, and to advance expenses incurredessilt of any proceeding against them as totwthiey could be indemnified.

Note 14 — Quarterly Information (Unaudited)

The following quarterly information (in thousandscept per share data) includes all adjustmentshwiianagement considers necessar
for a fair presentation of such information. Faenim quarterly financial statements, the provisionincome taxes is estimated using the best
available information for projected results for #tire year.

F- 29




Quarter Ended

Quarter Ended

March 29, June 28, 2014 Sep. 27,2014 Jan. 3, 2015 March 30, June 29, Sep. 28, Dec. 28,

2014 @) ) (3) 2013 (4) 2013 (5) 2013 2013
Consolidated Statement of
Income Data:
Net sales $ 68,026 $ 7694 $ 6796 $ 7056¢ $ 6540 $ 67,88 $ 61,72« $ 59,73
Gross profit 20,70: 20,42( 18,41 18,91¢ 19,73¢ 19,01 17,90° 17,47¢
Income (loss)
from operations 49k (1,939 (2,21¢) (2,257) (3,147 (9,342) (1,246 (1,03%)
Income (loss) before
income taxes 238 (2,159 (2,479 (2,549 (3,329 (9,499 (1,39¢) (1,379
Net income (loss) 201 (2,180 (2,499 (2,619 (3,349 (9,567 (1,399 (1,325
Net loss attributable to
noncontrolling interests — — — (207) — — — —
Net loss attributable to U.S.
Auto Parts $ 201 $ (2180 $ (2499 $ (2,406 $ (334) $ (9567 $ (1,399 $ (1,329
Basic and diluted net incorr
(loss) per share as reportec
and adjusted $ 0.0C $ (0.07) $ (0.0§) $ (0.0 $ (0.11)) $ (0.29 $ (0.09) $ (0.09)
Shares used in computation
of basic net income (loss)
share as reported and
adjusted

33,38¢ 33,46( 33,53. 33,57: 31,14: 33,11¢ 33,21¢ 33,30¢
Shares used in computatior
of diluted net income (loss)
per share as reported and
adjusted 34,15¢ 33,46( 33,53: 33,57¢ 31,14: 33,11¢ 33,21¢ 33,30¢
Q) Included restructuring charges of $625
2 Included restructuring charges of $410
3 Included restructuring charges of $102
4) Included restructuring charges of $498
(5) Included impairment loss on property and emépt and intangible assets of $4,832 and $1,2d&pectively, and restructuring

charges of $225 .

Note 15 — Segment Information

As described in Note 1 above, the Company opeiat®go reportable segments identified as Base US#ch is the core auto parts
business, and AutoMD, an online automotive repairse of which the Company is a majority stockhal@e=gment information is prepared

the same basis that our chief executive officelg v8hour chief operating decision maker, manageségments, evaluates financial results, ar

makes key operating decisions. Management evalttagserformance of its operating segments basewbsales, gross profit and loss from
operations. The accounting policies of the opegasiegments are the same as those described irlNOfeerating income represents earnings
before other income, interest expense and incoresid he identifiable assets by segment disclasthis note are those assets specifically

identifiable within each segment.

Summarized segment information for our continuipgrations from the two reportable segments fop#téods presented is as follows

(in thousands):
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Base USAP AutoMD Consolidated

Fiscal year ended January 3, 2015

Net sales $ 283,21: $ 297 % 283,50¢
Gross profit 78,15 297 78,45(
Operating costs (1) 81,88 247" 84,36:
Loss from operations (3,739 (2,17¢) (5,917
Capital expenditures 4,23 1,31¢ 5,55¢
Depreciation and amortization 7,23( 1,69:¢ 8,92:
Total assets, net of accumulated depreciation 74,41« 8,49: 82,90°
Fiscal year ended December 28, 2013

Net sales $ 254,42. $ 331 % 254,75:
Gross profit 73,80z 331 74,13
Operating costs (1) 86,57¢ 2,321 88,90(
Loss from operations (22,777 (1,990 (14,767
Capital expenditures 6,297 2,02¢ 8,32t
Depreciation and amortization 10,67¢ 1,49¢ 12,17¢
Total assets, net of accumulated depreciation 67,03¢ 2,14: 69,18:
Fiscal year ended December 29, 2012

Net sales $ 303,66° $ 35C % 304,01
Gross profit 91,28¢ 35( 91,63¢
Operating costs (1) 125,04 2,38( 127,42¢
Loss from operations (33,760) (2,030 (35,790
Capital expenditures 8,54 1,60¢ 10,15t
Depreciation and amortization 13,47* 1,72¢ 15,20«
Total assets, net of accumulated depreciation 86,81¢ 2,05¢ 88,87

(1) Operating costs for AutoMD primarily consist of depation on fixed assets and personnel ¢

Note 16 — AutoMD

On October 8, 2014, AutoMD entered into a CommatisPurchase Agreement ("Purchase Agreement")ltarsaggregate of seven
million shares of AutoMD common stock at a purchasee of $1.00 per share to third-party investond investors that are affiliated with two
of our board members. The Company retained 64.18utfMD's outstanding common stock, and will conérto consolidate AutoMD.

In connection with the sale of the shares of Autghti2 Company recorded an increase to additionidtipecapital of $2,534 . This
amount is equal to the increase in the Companygseést in the net assets of AutoMD, resulting fittis sale of common shares ( $3,847 ), les
the related deferred tax liability of $1,313 . Rdfe“Note 9- Income Taxesfor additional details.

In connection with the sale of the shares, the camtrolling shareholders received certain demanbpdggyback registration rights.
Additionally, pursuant to the terms of the PurchAgeeement, the Company may be required to purctvasenillion shares of AutoMD
common stock at a purchase price of $1.00 per shétte such purchase to be triggered, if applicaiblas of October 8, 2015and October 8,
2016, AutoMD does not meet a required minimum nunob@pproved auto repair shops submitting a qimiain AutoMD’s website
(Registered Repair Shops) , or separately if atimeyduring the two years following the closingalatutoMD fails to meet specified minimum
cash balances and minimum numbers of RegisterediR&amps. The Purchase Agreement also limitsisieeof the $7 million in proceeds
from the sale of AutoMD common stock to only geheggerating purposes of AutoMD. The Company camset or borrow any of the
proceeds without the approval of AutoMD's BoardDakectors.

In addition to the Purchase Agreement, AutoMD exdénto an Investor Rights Agreement. In additoreértain demand and piggyback
registration rights, the agreement includes rdstris on transfers or dilutive transactions invafyiAutoMD common stock. Prior to Octobe
2017, the Company shall not transfer shares of Mt@wned by U.S. Auto Parts or enter
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into any transaction or arrangement (includinghwtitt limitation, any sale, gift, merger or consatidn) that would result in U.S. Auto Parts
owning, at any time, less than 50% of the sharaspital stock of the Company without the priortten consent of shareholders. In the even
of a proposed transfer or dilutive transactionviich any shareholder does not provide its writtensent, in the alternative, upon not less
30 days prior written notice to such non-consengarty, the Company may elect, at its sole optiemurchase all shares of the AutoMD
common stock then owned by any non-consenting kbhtter at a purchase price equal to $1.00 per gharadjusted for any stock
combinations, splits, recapitalizations, etc.) @usannual rate of 10% thereon, compounded annually

Note 17 — Subsequent Events

On January 5, 2015, the Company and JPMorgan Bwage N.A. (“JPMorgan”) entered into a Sixth Amerghto Credit Agreement
and Second Amendment to Pledge and Security Agneeftie “Amendment”), which amended the Credit Agnent previously entered into
by the Company, certain of its domestic subsidsaaied JPMorgan on April 26, 2012 (as amended,Gnedit Agreement”) and the Pledge and
Security Agreement previously entered into by tleen@any, certain of its domestic subsidiaries aridali§an on April 26, 2012. By its terms,
the Amendment is retroactively effective to Janugrg2015. Pursuant to the Amendment, the follovéinrgendments to the Credit Agreement
were made, among others:

* The net orderly liquidation value inventory advanat was increased from 85% to 90%.

« The Company’s required excess availability edab the “Covenant Testing Trigger Period” (asrdef under the Credit
Agreement) under the revolving commitment underGhedit Agreement was reduced to less than $2 @00 fess than $4,000
for the period commencing on any day that exceasahbility is less than $2,000 and continuing uakitess availability has
been greater than or equal to $2,000 for 45 cotisecdays.

» The period during which the Company is subjed fixed charge coverage ratio begins after Jn@@16 and the applicable
testing period would begin for a 5 month periodiegdvay 31, 2016 or fiscal year 2016 rather tharading twelve month
period. The full trailing twelve month testing petiwould begin with the twelve month period endberember 31, 2016.

» Certain negative covenants applicable to the @m and AutoMD, a subsidiary of the Company, esldb certain contractual
and financial tests to permit the Company and AuBofd consummate certain obligations set forth malgreements entered
into by the Company and AutoMD on October 8, 2t (Financing Documents”) in connection with tkesof AutoMD
common stock to certain investors (the “AutoMD Fioimg”) have been revised where the availabilityuieements are no
longer applicable until after June 30, 2016 anthkrrrevised reducing the availability requiremien$2,000 before and after
giving effect to the consummation of such obligasio

» The trigger, requiring the Company to providea@a reports under the Credit Agreement, relatingxcess availability under

the revolving commitment under the Credit Agreembas been reduced to less than $4,000 from lass$$,000 and
continuing until excess availability has been geetttan or equal to $4,000 for 45 consecutive days.
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EXHIBIT 21.1
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT

Name Jurisdiction DBA
PartsBin, Inc. Delaware

Power Host, Inc. (1) Ontario, Canada

U.S. Auto Parts Network (Philippines) Corporation Philippines

Lobo Marketing, Inc. Texas

Go Fido, Inc. Delaware

Private Label Parts, Inc. Delaware Kool-Vue
Pacific 3PL, Inc. Delaware

AutoMD, Inc. Delaware

Local Body Shops, Inc. Delaware Perfect Fit
Automotive Specialty Accessories and Parts, Ing. (2 Delaware

Whitney Automotive Group, Inc. (3) Delaware

(1) Subsidiary of PartsBin, Inc.
(2) Subsidiary of Go Fido, Inc.

(3) Subsidiary of Automotive Specialty Accessoresl Parts, Inc.



EXHIBIT 23.1
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniReggion Statement Nos. 333-143179, 333-149973;1%8224, 333-165493 and 333-
173851 on Form S-8 and Registration Statement BB%.163811, 333-188492 and 333-197903 on Form Se8rareport dated March 19,

2015, relating to the consolidated financial stapta of U.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc., appearinthia Annual Report on Form 10-K of U.S.
Auto Parts Network, Inc. for the fiscal year endeduary 3, 2015.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Los Angeles, CA
March 19, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Shane Evangelist, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f), for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision to provide reasonable assuranaedigy the reliability of financial reporting anlget preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registramthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s Board of Directors (or pesparforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 19, 2015

/s/ SHANE EVANGELIST
Shane Evangelist

Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO EXCHANGE ACT
RULE 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a), AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Michael Yoshida, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 16fK.S. Auto Parts Network, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notador@ny untrue statement of a material fact or dn#ttate a material fact necessary to mak
the statements made, in light of the circumstanoger which such statements were made, not misigadih respect to the period covered by
this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememis,other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations aadh flows of the registrant as of, and for, theégos presented in this report;

4. The registrans other certifying officer and | are responsibledstablishing and maintaining disclosure contanld procedures (as define:
Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and
15d-15(f), for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procsdorecaused such disclosure controls and procedaoitee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us by others
within those entities, particularly during the etiin which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financégdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed under
our supervision to provide reasonable assuranaedigy the reliability of financial reporting anlget preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generally@edeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentesisi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and pros] as of the end of the period covered by #psnt based on such evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thegegnt's internal control over financial reportitiat occurred during the registramthos
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourthdisguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely to
materially affect, the registrant’s internal comeer financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatimiernal control over financial reporting,
to the registrant’s auditors and the audit commititthe registrant’s Board of Directors (or pesparforming the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal céboirer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the regisfeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that invedvmanagement or other employees who have a s@gmifiole in the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 19, 2015

/s/ MICHAEL YOSHIDA
Michael Yoshida

Interim Chief Financial Officer
(principal financial officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U.S. Autar®8 Network, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K tbe fiscal year ended January 3,
2015, as filed with the Securities and Exchange @@sion on the date hereof (the “Report”), |, ShBmangelist, Chief Executive Officer of
the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. 81380adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarb@xkes- Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleaAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 19, 2015

/sl SHANE EVANGELIST
Shane Evangelist
Chief Executive Officer




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. §1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of U.S. Autar®8 Network, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K tbe fiscal year ended January 3,
2015 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Cwsion on the date hereof (the “Report”), I, Mich¥eshida, Interim Chief Financial
Officer of the Company, certify, pursuant to 18 ICS81350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906ecbarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

1. The Report fully complies with the requiremenit$Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities ExcleAgt of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Report fairhegents, in all material respects, the financialdition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 19, 2015

/sl MICHAEL YOSHIDA

Michael Yoshida
Interim Chief Financial Officer



